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RAM Energy Resources, Inc.

is an independent oil and gas company engaged

in the acquisition, exploration, exploitation and
development of oil and natural gas properties
and the production of oil and natural gas.

For over 20 years, RAM Energy, Inc.
conducted a successful development and exploitation
program resulting in the accumulation of significant

long-lived oil and natural gas reserves. |
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After 20 years as a successful private inde
of RAM Energy, Inc. concluded that its f

a publicly traded enterprise with i

pendent oil and gas company, the management
uture growth goals could best be achieved as

mproved access to the capital markets.
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his past year has been one of significant accom-
ptishment for RAM Energy Resources, Inc. (formerly
Tremisis Energy Acquisition Corporation). The
most important accomblishment, our merger with
RAM Energy, Inc., fulfilled our initial corporate

bjective of completing, within 24 months after

ur formation, a strategic business combination
with an operating business in the energy industry.
The fit with RAM Energy was perfect. After 20 years
Itas. a successful, private, independent oil and gas
company, RAM Energy's owners and management
team had just recently concluded that achievement
of the company’s future growth goals and liquidity
desires of key shareholders were best realized as
a publicly traded enterprise with the attendant
improved access to the capital markets. A merger
with Tremisis offered just that opportunity. So on
May 8, 2006, RAM Energy became our wholly
owned subsidiary, and, promptly thereafter, we

changed our name to RAM Energy Resources, Inc.

Following the merger, RAM's experienced manage-
ment team became our management team, and
a new Board of Directors was appointed to lead

‘he way forward and shape our corparate decision

“Since the date of the merger, we have

 Larry E. Lee

making. The transition was seamless, and since

the date of the merger, we have continued to

pursue the strategy initia
of targeting growth throﬂr

reserves, the devetopm

ted by RAM Energy, Inc.
gh exploitation of proved

nt of unproved properties

and the acquisition of ptoved properties with

upside potential. Becaude RAM Energy is now

the key component of ol
accounts for substantiall
operating income, much
of the comparisons in th
as though RAM Energy h
the beginning.

r corporate family and
all of cur business and
of the data and many
s lefter are presented
ad been part of us from

continued

to pursue the strategy initiated by RAM Energy, Inc.
of targeting growth through exploitation of proved reserves,
the development of unproved properties and the

acquisition of proved properties with upside potential.”
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2006 Operational and

Financial Performance

During the past year, our operating focus was
concentrated on maintaining and enhancing
production from our existing producing properties,
principally in our Electra/Burkburnett and Boonsville
areas, while positioning the company to capitalize
on potential growth opportunities in our North Texas
Barnett Shale acreage, as well as developing two
exploratory projects in West Texas. OQur operating
income for 2006 was $23.3 million on oil and gas
sales revenue of $68.0 million, EBITDA was strong
at $33.4 million. Net cash flow from operations,
a nan-GAAP measure we find usefu! in evaluating
our ability to generate cash for funding exploration

and development activities and to service debt,

In 2006, RAM’s drilling success
rate was 95%, consistent with
the-93% success rate achieved
#5m 1987 to 2006.
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“Our North Texas Barnett Shale acreage continues to be our
most exciting and challenging asset, and we look forward to further
developing the play during 2007 and beyond.”

was $18.1 millien. Qur net income for the year
was $5.0 million, or $.20 per fully diluted share.
Average daily production for 2006 was 3,533
barrels of oil equivalen (BOE).

The macra-economic environment during 2006
was once again very favorable for the oil and gas
exploration and production sector. Robust world
demand for crude oil continued to overtake new
supplies and, combined with market concems for
the security of supplies and historically small spare
production capacity in parts of the Middle East,
contributed to a 17 percent increase in th2 average
NYMEX reference price of cil to $66.22 per barrel.
Demand for natural gas in the United States rose,
although new supplies and mild winter weather
combined to depress the average domestic natural
gas price to an average of $7.23 per MMBTU.

As a result, our average realized prices for oil,
natural gas liquids (NGL) and natural gas were

a mixed influence on revenues during 2006.

Reserve Volumes Held Steady
Proved raserves at year-end 2006 were 18.5 mil-
lion BOE, 98 percent of the year-ago level of
18.8 million BOE, reflecting our capital spending
focus on exploitation and the conversion of proved
undeveloped, or PUD, reserves into proved pro-

ducing reserves. Proved devetoped reserves were

13.1 million BOE, or 71 percent of total proved
reserves, at year-end 2006. Reserve adds from
extensions, discoveries, revisions and acquisitions
totaled 946,000 BOE. Production for the year
totaled 1.3 million BOE, stightly reducing our total
volume of proved reserves at year-end 2006,
Alt-in finding cost for the three-year period ended
2006 was $8.15 per BOE. The finding cost of
$27.18 per BOE in 2006 reflected the capital
spending allocation focused on converting PUD

reserves to proved developed producing reserves.

The present value of estimated future net revenues,
before income taxes, discounted at 10 percent
(PV-10), attributable to total proved reserves was
approximately $270 million at December 31,
2006. This compares to a PV-10 of $345 million
at year-end 2005. The reduction of PV-10 value
at year-end 2006 was primarily attributabte to a
substantially lower natural gas price, $5.51 per
MMBTU, at December 31, 2006, compared to
$9.14 per MMBTU at year-end 2005. The lower
price at December 31, 2006 reflected the antici-
pation of & continued mild winter accompanied by
substantial inventories of gas in storage. As you
know, winter weather finally did arrive, albeit late,
and as a result the PV-10 value of year-end 2006
reserve volumes calculated using prices in effect
as of March 30, 2007 is in excess of $330 million.

andfproperties)

L. Electra/Burkburnett

2, Boonsville

3. North Texas Barnett Shate
4, Vinegarane Field

5. Egan Field

A. Woodford Barnett Shales
B. Woltcamp Formation

Capital Expenditures Aimed

at Continuing Growth

We made total capital investments of $28.1 millio
during 2006, spending $4.5 million on the acqui
sition of proved reserves, $18.5 million for devel-
opment and exploitation activities and $5.2 millio

for exploration. Non-acquisition capital spending ;
rose to $23.7 million, up 77 percent from the |
prior year's $13.4 million. Development and
exploitation activities accounted for approximately
78 percent of total non-acquisition capital spending
Non-acquisition capital spending continued to be
concentrated on lower-risk exploitation activities
in our existing principal operating areas: the Electrz
Burkburnett and Boonsville fields in North Texas
and, to a lesser extent, the Egan field in Louisian:
and the Vinegarone field in Southwest Texas. The
mix of capital spending supported our continued
high level of drilling success. The company's dritlin
success rate in 2006 was 95 percent, consistent
with the 93 percent success rate achieved over
the 1987-2006 time period.

At year-end 2006, the company had a substantia
inventory of 228 PUD lecations, which amounts t
about three years of drilling activity at recent rate:



drilling. Importantly, 200 of the PUD locations
entified are in the mature Electra/Burkburnett
Id, an area responsible for 54 percent of total
mpany production during 2006. As a part of

r exploitation program, we drilled 79 develop-

ent wells in this field during the year, primarily
nverting PUD reserves to proved developed

oducing reserves. It is notewarthy that our

ectra/Burkburnett drilling established 64 new
UD well locations, replacing most of the PUD
cations drilled with new PUD locations to be
illed in the future and effectively extending

r project inventory and potential cash flow to

pport future growth.

pital spending for exploration and unproven
operties accounted for the remaining 22 percent
non-acquisition expenditures, Capital spent for
proven properties targeted primarily natural gas
hale plays which have the potential to positively
ect both near-term and longer term preduction.
'e own 27,700 gross (6,800 net) leasehold

res in the core area of the ongoing Barnett

ale play in the Fort Worth Basin of North Texas
d are working diligently to acquire the necessary
logical and geophysical information to develop
potential. Advances in horizontal drilling and
cture stimulation techniques, coupled with the
ospect of continued high prices for domestic
tural gas, have combined to make the Barnett
ale and other unconventional shale plays
ronomically viable. The potential reward from

rsuing an uncenventional gas resource program

 that if a play concept can be commercially pro-

ctive, it has the capacity to be repeated multiple

mes over a large area with relatively low risk,

t year-end 2006, we owned interests in nine
roducing wells on our North Texas Barnett Shale
sreage. So far in 2007, we have participated in
ne Barnett Shale well drilled by Devon Energy

“We continue to evaluate acquisition op

Valuo

Reserves

PV-10 Value

Estimated
Reserve Life

Corperation and one dri
We have proposed thred
on our jointly held Barn

RAM's estimated proved reserves at year-end 2006 were
18.5 million BOE of which approximately 70% were crude oil
and natural gas liquids and 30% were natural gas.

Approximately $270 million based on prices RAM was receiving

at year-end 2006.

Estimated reserve life for total proved reserves was approximately
14 years at the 2006 rate of productien.

led by EOG Resources.
additional wells to EOG
2tt Shale acreage. EOG

has affirmatively elected to participate in and
operate two of the wells| while the contractual
time for making an election with respect to the
third well has not yet expired. We own 35 square
miles of 3-D seismic covering a portion of our
Barnett Shale acreage and expect to acquire an
additional 60 square miles of 3-D seismic data
during 2007. We had 18§

potential future drilling lotations at year-end 2006,

seismically identified

with more locations adddd as we moved into
2007. Qur North Texas Barnett Shale acreage
continues to be our mostlexciting and challenging
asset, and we look forward to further developing
the play during 2007 and beyond.

In addition to our expendiﬁures in the Barnett Shale,

during the past year we sient $508,000 to acquire
15,000 acres in a Wolf-

[exas, where we drilled

and option leases covering!
camp Shale play in West
and cored two vertical test wells during the fourth
quarter of 2006. We ownja 100 percent working
n the two test weils. We

are currently in the process of evaluating the wells

interest in the acreage and

and should have some mofe definitive information

to share with our stockholdgrs and with the markets

by the end of the second gdarter. As of this writing,

the information gained to date is inconclusive.

rtunities

on a regular basis and plan to pursue|those

opportunities that provide the greatest

otential

for enhancing our proved reserves |..”
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Acquisitions are an integral part of our growth strat-
egy. During 2006, we successfully consummated
a producing property acquisition for $4.5 million
in the North Texas region near our Boonsville field.
The acquired property is a logical extension to

our existing property base and is characterized by
a well-established, predictable production profile.
We continue to evaluate acquisition opportunities
on a regular basis and plan to pursue those
opportunities that provide the greatest potential
for enhancing our proved reserves, while providing
potential for further development and perhaps

even further exploration.

2007: BUILDING ON A
STRONG FOUNDATION

Qur plan for 2007 is to continue the high level
of exploitation activity established last year and

to increase our efforis aimed at developing our

Lr
%Iaily

RAl ; average"
protluction forgZ_OOG
was 3,533 barrels of
oil equivalent, or BOE.
-]




In addition to the 20+ year history of asset stewardship in the volatile
energy sector, the attractive %gset mix and extensive management

experience brought by RAM
RAM Energy Resources an at

Stabte cash flow base from proveJ reserves
Compelling valuation vs. peers ’

Significant management
and technical experience

Unique balance of oil and naturajl gas
exposure for company size I

unproven properties, particularly our North Texas
Barnett Shale acreage and our ongoing West Texas
exploration projects. We continue to seek acquisi-

tion opportunities as a source of growth as well.

Anticipating potentially vigorous capital spending
in 2007 and desirous of ensuring ample liquicity,
late in 2006 we filed an offering of common
stock. We completed the offering in February of
this year, selling 7.5 million shares, from which
we realized net proceeds of $28 million. The
offering evidenced our ability to attract capital
investment in the public market and resulted in
the initiation of analytical coverage by several
firms involved in the offering, all of which has
been beneficial to our stock price. It also broad-

ened and strengthened our stockholder base

All-in finding cost for the

three-year period ended

2006 was SB,ME(—JEy |

ractive

nergy, Inc. to the merger makes
investment vehicle evidenced by:

Large inventory of growth oppertunities
High degree of operating control
Proven value creation

Substantial management alignment
with shareholders

while contributing substantially to our liguidity.
At March 31, 2007, we had cash on hand of

$29.3 million and borrowing availability under
our senior secured credit facility of $37 million,
for a total of $66.3 million in financial liquidity

as an adjunct to our cash flow from operations.

2007 Capital Spending Budget
We began the current year with a non-acquisition
capital budget of $30.3 million, 28 percent above
the $23.7 millien of non-acquisition capital
spending in 2006; however, the pace of apparent
activity on our North Texas Barnett Shale acreage
has led us to increase our 2007 non-acquisition
capital budget by approximately 20 percent to
$36.3 miltion. Approximately 52 percent of the

tota! budget, or $19.0 million, is allocated to lower-

risk exploitation activities while the remaining
48 percent, or $17.3 milfion, is devoted to
developing unproven properties and exploration.

We intend to maintain the high level of ongoing
exploitation in our Electra/Burkburnett field as
necessary to stabilize production. Capital of
$9.7 million is allocated to Electra/Burkburnett

where 72 wells are planned to be drilled this yea
An additional $5.8 miltion has been allocated to th
Boonsville, Egan, Vinegarone and other fields for
exploitation activity as well. We will focus primarif
on uncanventional gas projects in our unproven
property and exploration program to support

replacement of production and future growth.

In Conclusion

For RAM Energy Resources, Inc., 2006 will be
remembered as a banner year — the year we
transitioned from being a “blank check” company]
to merging with and becoming part of a significar]
company actively involved in the exploration,
development and exploitation of oil and gas
properties. The goal established by our founders
in 2004, and which farmed the basis for our IPO
has been accomplished. We are in business and

business is good.

Qur transition to an operating company with

substantial assets and prospects has produced th
desired benefits, enhancing our financial flexibility
and positioning the company to capitalize on wha
we believe are attractive growth opportunities,
all of which are anticipated to ultimately enhance
value to our stockholders. We acknowledge the

continued dedication and perseverance of our
employees in the achievement of our 2006 goals,
We are excited about the prospects in 2007 and !
beyond, and we thank our shareholders for their
patient support as we forge ahead.

/

- Larry E. Lee
CHAIRMAN OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS,
PRESIDENT AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
APRIL 30, 2007

“Qur transition to an operating company with

substantial assets and prospects has produced the

desired benefits, enhancing our financial flexibility

and positioning the company to capitalize on what

we believe are attractive growth opportunities ...”

RAM Energy Resources, Inc. 4 Aanual Report to Shareholders
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PARTI

Item 1.  Business

Overview

We have included definitions of technical terms important 1o an understanding of our business under

“Glossary of Oil and Natural Gas Terms.”

Unless the context otherwise requires, all references in this report to “RAM Energy Resources,” “our,
us,” and “we” refer to RAM Energy Resources, Inc. (formerly known as Tremisis Energy Acquisition

i

i

Corporation) and its subsidiaries, as a combined entity) All references in this report to “RAM Energy” refer to

RAM Energy, Inc., our wholly owned subsidiary. Unlesg

the context otherwise requires, the informarion

contained in this report to gives effect to the May 8, 2006 consummation of the merger of RAM Energy
Acquisition, Inc., our wholly owned subsidiary, with and into RAM Energy, and the change of our name from
Tremisis Energyv Acquisition Corporation to RAM Energy Resources, Inc., which transactions are collectively
called the “merger.” See "“Business—Recent Events” fqr a discussion of the merger. As used in this report,
EBITDA refers to net income before interest expense, amortization, depreciation, accretion, income taxes, gain
on early extinguishment of debt, gain on sale of oil and patural gas properties, share-based compensation,
extraordinary gains or losses, the cumulative effects of Changes in accounting principles and unrealized gains or

losses on derivatives.

We were incorporated in Delaware on February 5, 2004. Our operations are encompassed in our wholly
owned primary subsidiary, RAM Energy, Inc. and its wholly owned subsidiaries which we refer to collectively as
RAM Energy. Our executive offices are at 5100 East Skelly Drive, Suite 650, Tulsa, Oklahorna 74135 (918)

663-2800. We also have an office in Houston, Texas,

We are an independent oil and natural gas company

engaged in the acquisition, development, exploitation,

exploration and production of oil and natural gas properties, primarily in Texas, Louisiana and Oklahoma. Our
producing properties are located in highly prolific basing with long histories of o1l and natural gas operations. We

have been active in these core areas since our inception

n 1987 and have grown through a balanced strategy of

acquisitions and development and exploratory drilling. We have completed over 20 acquisitions of producing oil

and natural gas properties and related assets for an aggre

gate purchase price approximating $400 million.

Through December 31, 2006, we have drilled or particigated in the drilling of 561 oil and natural gas wells, 93%

of which were successfully completed and produced hyd

rocarbons in commercial quantities. Our management

team has extensive technical and operating expertise in all areas of our geographic focus.

Qur oil and natural gas assets are characterized by 4 combination of conventional and unconventional

reserves and prospects. We have conventional reserves g

nd production in four main onshore locations:

s  Electra/Burkburnett, Wichita and Wilbarger Cbunties, Texas;

* Boonsville, Jack and Wise Counties, Texas;
* Vinegarone, Val Verde County, Texas; and
= Egan, Acadia Parish, Louisiana.

We have unconventional reserves and production in our
Texas, where we own interests in approximately 27,700

In addition, we have positioned ourselves for partic
Texas. We have an exploratory play targeting the Barnet
interests in approximately 84,000 gross (6,600 net) acres
Wolfcamp formation where we are actively acquiring ac
over 15,000 gross and net acres.

Barnett Shale play located in Jack and Wise Counties,
gross (6,800 net) acres.

pation in two emerging resource plays in southwest

t and Woodford Shale formations where we own

. We also have an exploratory play targeting the

reage and have accumulated leases and options covering




At December 31, 2006, our estimated net proved reserves were 18.5 MMBoe, of which approximately 59%
were cride oil, 30% were natural gas, and 11% were natural gas liquids, or NGLs. The PV-10 Value of our
proved reserves was approximately $269.9 million based on prices we were receiving as of December 31, 2006,
which were $58.74 per Bbl of oil, $36.51 per Bbl of NGLs and $5.51 per Mcf of natural gas. At December 31,
2006, our proved developed reserves comprised 71% of our total proved reserves, and the estimated reserve life
for our total proved reserves was approximately 17 years.

At December 31, 2006, we owned interests in approximately 2,900 wells and were the operator of
leases upon which approximately 1,900 of these wells are located. The PV-10 Value attributable to our
interests in the properties we operate represented approximately 94% of our aggregate PV-10 Value as of
December 31, 2006. We also own a drilling rig, various gathering systems, a natural gas processing plant,
service rigs and a supply company that service our properties.

From January 1, 1997 through December 31, 2006, our reserve replacement percentage, through
discoveries, extensions, revisions and acquisitions, but excluding divestitures, was 355%. Since January 1,
1997, our historical average finding cost from all sources, exclusive of divestitures, has been $6.09 per Boe.
During the twelve months ended December 31, 2006, we drilled or participated in the drilling of 92 wells on
our oil and natural gas properties, 80 of which were successfully completed as producing wells, four of which
were dry holes and eight of which were either drilling or waiting to be completed at the end of that period. For
the twelve months ended December 31, 2006 we generated EBITDA of $33.4 million from production
averaging 3,533 Boe per day. For more information regarding our EBITDA, including a reconciliation to our
net income (loss), see Item 6. “Selected Consolidated Financial Dara.”

Our Business Strategy and Strengths

Our primary objective is to enhance stockholder value by increasing our net asset value, net reserves
and cash flow per share through acquisitions, development, exploitation, exploration and divestiture of oil
and natural gas properties. We intend to follow a balanced risk strategy by allocating capital expenditures in
a combination of lower risk development and exploitation activities and higher potential exploration
prospects. We intend to pursue acquisitions during periods of attractive acquisition values and emphasize
development of our reserves during periods of higher acquisition values. Key elements of our business
strategy include the following:

* Concentrate on Qur Existing Core Areas. We intend to focus a significant portion of our growth
efforts in our existing core areas. Our oil and natural gas properties in our core areas are
characterized by long reserve lives and production histories in multiple oil and natural gas horizons.
We believe our focus on and experience in our core areas may expose us to acquisition opportunitics
which may not be available to the entire industry.

* Accelerate Our North Texas Barnett Shale Development. Due to the high degree of commercial
success in the north Texas Barnett Shale by the oil and natural gas industry, we expect to significantly
accelerate drilling in our north Texas Barnett Shale properties. We have over 325 potential horizontal
well locations on our properties. We have drilled nine gross (3.4 net) wells to date with a 100% success
rate on our north Texas Bamett Shale properties and plan on drilling a minimum of four gross (2.1 net)
wells 10 a maximum of seven gross (2.8 net) wells during 2007,

+ Complete Seleciive Acquisitions and Divestitures. We seek to acquire producing oil and natural gas
properties, primarily in our core areas. Our experienced senior management team has developed our
acquisition criteria designed to increase reserves, production and cash flow per share on an accretive
basis. We will seek acquisitions of producing properties that will provide us with opportunities for

2




reserve additions and increased cash flow thrpugh operating improvements, production enhancement
and additional development and exploratory prospect generation opportunities. In addition, from

time to time, we may engage in strategic divg
to higher return projects.

stitures when we believe our capital may be redeployed

Develop and Exploit Existing Oil and Natural Gas Properties. We have historically increased

stockholder value by fully developing or exp

oiting our acquired and discovered properties until we

determine that it is no longer economically attractive to do so. As of December 31, 2006, we have

identified 228 proved development and exten
projects on our existing properties and wells,

Increase Emphasis on Exploration Activity. ¥
exploration activities within the context of oy
review and analyze 3-D seismic data to genef

sion drilling projects and 166 recompletion/workover

Ve are committed to increasing our emphasis on
r balanced risk objectives. We will continue to acquire,
ate exploratory prospects. Our exploration efforts

utilize available geological and geophysical technologies to reduce our exploration and drilling risks
and, therefore, maximize our probability of siccess.

We believe that the following strengths complement our business strategy:

Inventory of Growth Opportunities in the North Texas Barnett Shale. We believe we have a

significant inventory of growth opportunities
potential drilling locations within the north Ti
potential drilling locations should provide us

beyond our proved reserve base. We have over 325
xas Barnett Shale. We belicve that our inventory of
the opportunity to grow organically for the foreseeable

future without having to depend upon acquisi
have approximately $250 million of potential
our north Texas Barnett Shale acreage.

Management Experience and Technical Exp
an average of 26 years of experience in the o
which has been focused on operations in our
and expertise of our staff will continue to su

Balanced Oil and Natural Gas Production.
proved reserves were oil, 30% were natural g
commodity mix, combined with our prudent

diversification of sources of cash flow and w
revenue from localized or short-term commo

Operating Efficiency and Control. We curre
PV-10 Value at December 31, 2006. Our hig

tions of properties. Based on current cost estimates, we
future capital expenditures for the full development of

tise. Our key management and technical staff possess

il and natural gas industry, a substantial portion of

ore areas. We believe that the knowledge, experience
ort our efforts to enhance stockholder value.

t year-end 2006, approximately 59% of our estimated
s and 11% were NGLs. We believe this balanced

se of derivative contracts, will provide sufficient

1l fessen the risk of significant and sudden decreases in
ity price movements.

ly operate wells that represent 91% of our aggregate
degree of operating control allows us to control

capital allocation and expenses and the timing of additional development and exploitation of our

producing properties.

Drilling Expertise and Success. Qur managemgnt and technical staff have a long history of

successfully drilling oil and natural gas wells.
participated in the drilling of 561 oil and natur
continue to grow by utilizing our drilling expe
although our success rate may decline as we d

Ownership and Control of Service and Supply

Through December 31, 2006, we drilled or have

al gas wells with a 93% success rate. We expect to
rtise and developing and finding additional reserves,
i1l more exploratory wells.

Assets. We own and control service and supply assets,

including a drilling rig, service rigs, a supply company, gathering systems and other related assets. We

believe that ownership and use of these assets

for our own account provides us with a significant
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competitive advantage with respect to availability, lead-time and cost of these services. For calendar
year 2007, approximately 75% of our projected capital expenditures will be in areas serviced by these
assets.

* Insider Ownership. At March 27, 2007 our directors, executive officers and our two principal
stockholders beneficially owned approximately 60% of our outstanding shares of common stock,
providing a strong alignment of interest between management, the board of directors and our outside
stockholders.

* Balance Sheet Flexibility. We have significant liquidity for pursuing acquisitions, accelerating our
development and exploratory activities and taking advantage of opportunities as they arise.

Glossary of OQil and Natural Gas Terms

The definitions set forth below apply to the indicated terms as used in this prospectus. All volumes of
natural gas referred to herein are stated at the legal pressure base of the state or area where the reserves exist and
at 60 degrees Fahrenheit and in most instances are rounded to the nearest major multiple.

Bbl. One stock tank barrel, or 42 U.S. gallons liquid velume, used herein in reference to crude oil or other
liquid hydrocarbons.

Bcf. One bhillion cubic feet of natural gas.
Boe. Barrels of oil equivalent in which six Mcf of natural gas equals one Bbl of oil.

Bru. British thermal unit, which is the heat required to raise the temperature of a one-pound mass of water
from 58.5 to 59.5 degrees Fahrenheit.

Completion. The installation of permanent equipment for the production of oil or natural gas or, in the case
of a dry hole, the reporting of abandenment to the appropriate agency.

Development well. A well drilled within the proved areas of an oil or natural gas reservoir to the depth of a
stratigraphic horizon known to be productive.

Dry hole or well. A well found to be incapable of producing hydrocarbons in sufficient quantities such that
proceeds from the sale of such production exceed production expenses and taxes.

Exploratory well. A well drilled to find and produce oil or natural gas reserves not classified as proved, to
find a new reservoir in a field previously found to be productive of oil or natural gas in another reservoir ot to
extend a known reservoir,

Field. An area consisting of a single reservoir or multiple reservoirs all grouped on or related to the same
individual geological structural feature and/or stratigraphic condition.

Gross acres or gross wells. The total acres or wells, as the case may be, in which a working interest is
owned,

MBbls. One thousand barrels of crude oil or other liquid hydrocarbons.

MBoe. One thousand Boe.




MMBoe. One million Boe.

Mcf. One thousand cubic feet of natural gas.

MMBbls. One million barrels of crude oil or other|liquid hydrocarbons.

MMBre. One million Btus.

MMcf. One million cubic feet of natural gas.

Net acres or net wells. The sum of the fractional working interests owned in gross acres or gross wells, as

the case may be.

Operator. The individual or company responsible for the exploration, exploitation and production of an oil

or natural gas well or lease.

PV-10 Value. When used with respect to oil and nd
be generated from the production of proved reserves, ne

tural gas reserves, the estimated future gross revenues to
t of estimated production and future development costs,

using the prices provided in this report and costs in effeill as of the date indicated, without giving effect to

non-property related expenses such as general and admi
expenses or to depreciation, depletion and amortization,

Productive well. A well that is found to be capable
that proceeds from the sale of such production exceed p

Proved developed producing reserves. Proved deve

istrative expenses, debt service and future income tax
discounted using an annual discount rate of 10%.

of producing hydrocarbons in sufficient quantities such
roduction expenses and 1axes.

loped reserves that are expected to be recovered from

completion intervals currently open in existing wells an? capable of production.

Proved developed reserves. Proved reserves that arn
whether or not currently producing, without drilling add
recompletion,

Proved reserves. The estimated quantities of crude
and engineering data demonstrate with reasonable certai
reservoirs under existing economic and operating condit

> expected to be recovered from existing wellbores,
tional wells. Production of such reserves may require a

pil, natural gas and natural gas liquids that geological
nty to be recoverable in future years from known
ons.

Proved undeveloped location. A site on which a deyelopment well can be drilled consistent with spacing
rules for purposes of recovering proved undeveloped reserves.

Proved undeveloped reserves. Proved reserves that

are expected to be recovered from new wells on

undrilled acreage or from existing wells where a relatively major expenditure is required for recompletion.

Recompletion. The completion for production of an
which the well has been previously completed.

Reserve life. A ratio determined by dividing our esti
measurement date by production from such reserves for ¢

Reservoir. A porous and permeable underground fo
oil and/or natural gas that is confined by impermeable rog
other reservoirs.

3-D seismic. The method by which a three dimensio
the interpretation of reflection seismic data collected over
detailed understanding of the subsurface than do conventj
appraisal, exploitation and production.

existing wellbore in another formation from that in

mated existing reserves determined as of the stated
he prior twelve month period.

ation containing a natural accumulation of producible
k or water barriers and is individual and separate from

hal image of the earth’s subsurface is created through
a surface grid. 3-D seismic surveys allow for a more
onal surveys and contribute significantly to field




Undeveloped acreage. Lease acreage on which wells have not been driiled or completed to a point that
would permit the production of commercial quantities of oil and natural gas regardless of whether such acreage
contains proved reserves,

Working interest. The operating interest that gives the owner the right to drill, produce and conduct
operating activities on the property and a share of production.

Workover. Operations on a producing well to restore or increase production.

SAFE HARBOR STATEMENT

This report, including information included in, or incorporated by reference from future filings by us with
the SEC, as well as information contained in written materiai, press relcases and oral statements issued by us or
on our behalf, contain, or may contain, certain statements that are “forward-looking statements™ within the
meaning of federal securities laws that are subject to a number of risks and uncertainties, many of which are
beyond our control. This report modifies and supersedes documents filed by us before this report. In addition,
certain information that we file with the SEC in the future will automaticaily update and supersede information
contain in this report. All statements, other than statements of historical fact, included or incorporated by
reference in this report, regarding our strategy, future operations, financial position, estimated revenues and
losses, projected costs, prospects, plans and objectives of management are forward-looking statements. When
used in this report, the words “could,” “believe,” “anticipate,” “intend,” “estimate,” “expect,” “project” and
similar expressions are intended to identify forward-looking statements, although not all forward-looking
statements contain such identifying words.

LIS M

Forward-looking statements may include statements about our:

* business strategy;

*  reserves;

» technology;

» financial strategy;

= oil and natural gas realized prices;

* timing and amount of future production of oil and natural gas;

* the amount, nature and timing of capitai expenditures;

= drilling of wells;

¢ competition and government regulations;

¢ marketing of oil and natural gas;

e property acquisitions;

* costs of developing our properties and conducting other operations;

+ general economic conditions;

* uncertainty regarding our future operating resuits; and

« plans, objectives, expectations and intentions contained in this report that are not historical.
All forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this report, and, except as required by law, we

do not intend to update any of these forward-looking stalements to reflect changes in events or circumstances that
arise after the date of this report. You should not place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements,
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Although we believe that our plans, intentions and expectations reflected in or suggested by the forward-looking
statements we make in this report are reasonable, we cgn give no assurance that these plans, intentions or
expectations will be achieved. We disclose important factors that could cause our actual results to differ
materially from our expectations under “Risk Factors"|and “Managemeni's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” and elsewhere in this report, These cautionary statements
qualify all forward-looking statements attributable to up or persons acting on our behalf. The market data and
certain other statistical information used throughout this report are based on independent industry publications,
government publications or other published independent sources. Some data are also based on our good faith
estimates. Although we believe these third-party sources are reliable, we have not independently verified the
information and cannot guarantee its accuracy and completeness.

Item 1A. Risk Factors

We face a variety of risks that are inherent in our business and our industry, including operational, legal and
regulatory risks. The following are some of the more significant factors that could affect our business and our
results of operations. We caution the reader that the list of factors may not be exhaustive. Other factors may exist
that we cannot anticipate or that we do not consider to be significant based on information that is currently
available.

Risks Related to Our Business

The volatility of oil and natural gas prices greatly affects our profitability.

Qur revenues, operating results, profitability, future rate of growth and the carrying value of our oil and
natural gas properties depend primarily upon the prevajling prices for oil and natural gas. Historically, cil and
natural gas prices have been volatile and are subject to fluctuations in response to changes in supply and demand,
market uncertainty and a variety of additional factors that are beyond our control. Any substantial decline in the
price of oil and natural gas will likely have a material adverse effect on our operations, financial condition and
level of expenditures for the development of our oil and natural gas reserves, and may result in write-downs of
the carrying values of our oil and natural gas properties as a result of our use of the full cost accounting method.

Wide fluctuations in oil and natural gas prices may result from relatively minor changes in the supply of and
demand for oil and natural gas, market uncertainty and other factors that are beyond our control, including:

»  worldwide and domestic supplies of oil and natural gas;
+ weather conditions;
» the level of consumer demand,
+ the price and availability of alternative fuels;
+ the availability of drilling rigs and completion equipment;
= the availability of pipeline capacity;
* the price and volume of foreign imports;
» domestic and foreign governmentat regulations and taxes;

« the ability of the members of the Organization of Petroleum Exporting Countries to agree to and
maintain oil price and production controls;

« political instability or armed conflict in oil-producing regions; and
» the overall economic environment.
These factors and the volatility of the energy markets make it extremely difficult to predict future oil and

natural gas price movements with any certainty. Declines in oil and natural gas prices would not only reduce
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revenue, but could reduce the amount of oil and natural gas that we can produce economically and, as a result,
could have & material adverse effect on our financial condition, results of operations and reserves.

Our success depends on acquiring or finding additional reserves.

Our future success depends upon our ability to find, develop or acquire addittonal oil and natural gas
reserves that are economically recoverable. Our proved reserves will generally decline as reserves are produced,
except to the extent that we conduct successful exploration or development activities or acquire properties
containing proved reserves, or both. To increase reserves and production, we must commence exploratory
drilling, undertake other replacement activities or utilize third parties to accomplish these activities. There can be
no assurance, however, that we will have sufficient resources to undertake these actions, that our exploratory
projects or other replacement activities will result in significant additional reserves or that we will succeed in
drilling productive wells at low finding and development costs. Furthermore, although our revenues may increase
if prevailing oil and natural gas prices increase significantly, our finding costs for additional reserves could also
increase.

In accordance with customary industry practice, we rely in part on independent third party service providers
to provide most of the services necessary to drill new wells, including drilling rigs and related equipment and
services, horizontal drilling equipment and services, trucking services, tubular goods, fracing and completion
services and production equipment. The o1l and natural gas industry has experienced significant volatility in cost
for these services in recent years and this trend is expected to continue into the future. Any future cost increases
could significantly increase our development costs and decrease the return possible from drilling and
development activities, and possibly render the development of certain proved undeveloped reserves
uneconomical,

Estimates of oil and natural gas reserves are uncertain and may vary substantially from actual production.

There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities of proved reserves and in projecting
future rates of production and timing of expenditures, including many factors beyond our control. Petroleum
engineering is not an exact science. Information relating to our proved oil and natural gas reserves is based upon
engineering estimates. Estimates of economically recoverable oil and natural gas reserves and of future net cash
flows necessarily depend upon a number of variable factors and assumptions, such as historical production from
the area compared with production from other producing areas, future site restoration and abandonment costs, the
assumed effects of regulations by governmental agencies and assumptions concerning future oil and natural gas
prices, future operating costs, severance and excise taxes, capital expenditures and workover and remedial costs,
all of which may in fact vary considerably from actual results. For these reasons, estimates of the economically
recoverable quantities of oil and natural gas attributable 1o any panicular group of properties, classifications of
such reserves based on risk of recovery and estimates of the future net cash flows expected therefrom prepared
by different engineers or by the same engineers at different times may vary substantially. Actual production,
revenues and expenditures with respect to our reserves will likely vary from estimates, and such variances may
be material.

We expect to obtain a substantial portion of our funds for the drilling and development of our oil and
natural gas properties through borrowings. If such funds were not available to us, or if the terms upon
which such funds would be available to us were unfavorable, the further development of our oil and
natural gas reserves, and our financial condition and results of operations, could be adversely affected.

We expect to fund a substantial portion of our future leasehotd acquisitions and our drilling and
development operations with borrowed funds. To the extent such funds are not available to us at all, or if the
terms under which such funds would be available to us would be unfavorable, the further development of our oil
and natural gas reserves could be adversely impacted and we could be limited as to the amount of additional
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leasehold acreage we could acquire. In such events, we
gas which, subsequently, could adversely affect our financial condition and results of operations.

Operating hazards and uninsured risks may result i

Our operations are subject to all of the hazards ang
production of, vil and natural gas, including the risk of
pressured formations and environmental hazards such 3
gases. The occurrence of any of these events could resu

may be unable to replace our reserves of oil and natural

n substantial losses.

j operating risks inherent in drilling for, and the

fire, explosions, blow-outs, pipe failure, abnormally

s oil spills, gas leaks, ruptures or discharges of toxic

It in substantial losses to us due to injury or loss of life,

severe damage to or destruction of property, natural resources and equipment, pollution or other environmental

damage, clean-up responsibilities, regulatory investigat
accordance with customary indusiry practice, we maint

jon and penalties and suspension of operations. In
hin insurance against some, but not all, of these risks.

There can be no assurance that any insurance will be adequate to cover any losses or liabilities. We cannot

predict the continued availability of insurance, or its av
addition, we may be liable for environmental damage ¢

which liabilities would not be covered by our insurance

nilability at premium levels that justify its purchase. In
hused by previous owners of properties purchased by us,

Several of our subsidiaries are defendants in a pending class action suit alleging the underpayment of oil
and natural gas royalties. If our subsidiaries were ultimately determined to be liable, the amount of the
judgment could adversely affect our financial condition.

Several of our subsidiaries are named defendants in a pending class action suit in which the plaintiffs are
seeking monetary damages for our alleged underpayment of oil and natural gas royalties. The plaintiffs seek
unspecified damages for alleged breach of contract, alleged tortious breach of implied covenants and alleged
breach of fiduciary duty, together with punitive damages and other equitable relief. The aggregate dollar amount
of the damages sought by the plaintiffs has not yet been|calculated. If the amount of any damages ultimately
awarded to the plaintiffs were material, it could adversely affect our financial condition. For a further discussion
of this litigation, please see “Item 3. Business—Legal Pfoceedings” appearing elsewhere in this prospectus.

Our operations are subject to various governmental
burdensome and expensive,

Our operations are subject to various federal, state
from time to time in response to economic and political

regulations that require compliance that can be

and local governmental regulations that may be changed
conditions. Matters subject to regulation include

discharge from drilling operations, drilling bonds, repoHLs concerning operations, the spacing of wells, unitization
and pooling of properties and taxation. From time to time, regulatory agencies have imposed price controls and

limitations on production by restricting the rate of flow

of 0il and natural gas wells below actual production

capacity to conserve supplies of oil and natural gas. In afidition, the production, handling, storage, transportation

and disposal of oil and natural gas, by-products thereof
connection with oil and natural gas operations are subjeq

and other substances and materials produced or used in
t to regulation under federal, state and local laws and

regulations primarily relating to protection of human health and the environment. These laws and regulations
have continually imposed increasingly strict requirements for water and air pollution control and solid waste
management, and compliance with these laws may cause delays in the additional drilling and development of our

properties. Significant expenditures may be required to d
applicable to us. We believe the trend of more expansive

omply with governmental laws and regulations
and stricter environmental legislation and regulations

will continue. While historically we have not experienced any material adverse effect from regulatory delays,

there can be no assurance that such delays will not occus

in the future.




Our method of accounting for investments in oil and natural gas properties may result in impairment of
asset value, which could affect our stockholder equity and net profit or loss.

We use the full cost method of accounting for our investment in oil and natural gas properties. Under the
full cast method of accounting, all costs of acquisition, exploration and development of oil and natural gas
reserves are capitalized into a “full cost pool.” Capitalized costs in the pool are amortized and charged to
operations using the units-of-production method based on the ratio of current production to total proved oil and
natural gas reserves. To the extent that such capitalized costs, net of amortization, exceed the present value of our
proved oil and natural gas reserves (using a 10% discount rate) at any reporting date, such excess costs are
charged to operations. Although we have never incurred a write down of the value of oil and natural gas
properties, if a writedown is incurred, it is not reversible at a later date, even if the present value of our proved oil
and natural gas reserves increases as a result of an increase in oil or natural gas prices.

Properties that we acquire may not produce as projected, and we may be unable to identify liabilities
associated with the properties or obtain protection from sellers against them.

As part of our business strategy, we continually seek acquisitions of oil and natural gas properties. The
successful acquisition of oil and naturai gas properties requires assessment of many factors, which are inherently
inexact and may be inaccurate, including the following:

» future oil and natural gas prices;

+ the amount of recoverable reserves;

¢ future operating costs;

» future development costs;

» failure of titles to properties;

¢ costs and timing of plugging and abandoning wells; and
= potential environmental and other liabilities,

Our assessment will not necessarily reveal all existing or potential problems, nor will it permit us to become
familiar enough with the properties to assess fully their capabilities and deficiencies. With respect to properties
on which there is current production, we may not inspect every well location, every potential well location, or
pipeline in the course of our due diligence. Inspections may not reveal structural and environmental problems
such as pipeline corrosion or groundwater contamination. We may not be able to obtain or recover on contractual
indemnities from the seller for liabilities that it created. We may be required to assume the risk of the physical

condition of the properties in addition to the risk that the properties may not perform in accordance with our
expectations.

We face extensive competition in our industry.

We operate in a highly competitive environment. We compete with major and independent oil and natural
gas companies, many of whom have financial and other resources substantially in excess of those available to us.
These competitors may be better positioned to take advantage of industry opportunities and to withstand changes
affecting the industry, such as fluctvations in oil and natural gas prices and production, the availability of
alternative energy sources and the application of government regulation.

Risk Related to Qur Common Stock
We do not currently pay dividends on our common stock and do not anticipate doing so in the future,

Prior to consummation of the merger, RAM Energy regularly paid cash dividends to its stockholders. We
intend to retain any future earnings to fund our operations. Therefore, we do not anticipate paying any cash
dividends on our common stock in the foreseeable future.
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A substantial number of shares of our common sto
increase the volume of common stock available for
market price of our common stock.

%

will be available for sale in the future, which may
le in the open market and may cause a decline in the

Sales of a substantial number of shares of our comymon stock in the public market, or the perception that

these sales may occur, could cause the market price of
shares of our common stock in connection with our acq
under the Securities Act of 1933, and their resale is res
agreement and cannot be sold publicly until the expirag
agreement (a maximum of one year after May 8, 2006)
of 1933. However, the holders of such shares have cert
in the public market prior to such times if registration i

bur common stock to decline. We issued 25,600,000
uisition of RAM Energy. These shares were not registered
ricted. All of such shares are subject to a lock-up

jon of the restricted periods set out in the lock-up

and under Rule 144 promulgated under the Securities Act
hin registration rights and will be able to sell their shares

s effected. The presence of this additional number of

shares of common stock eligible for trading in the publjc market may have an adverse effect on the market price

of our common stock.

On November 10, 2006, we approved the grant of|
Incentive Plan for an aggregate of 646,805 shares of oy
our vice presidents, one of whom received an award of]
69,170 shares. We will incur compensation expense of
ratably through 2011, in connection with our Novembe
December 31, 2006, we recognized $91.000 share-basa

restricted stock awards under our 2006 Long-Term

r common stock to 22 of our employees, including two of
75,100 shares, and the other who received an award of
approximately $3.3 million, which will be recognized

r 10, 2006 restricted stock issuances. For the year ended
d compensation expense with respect 1o these grants.

Voting control by our executive officers, directors apd other affiliates may limit your ability to influence

the outcome of director elections and other matters

Persons who beneficially own approximately 60%
agreement, These persons have agreed to vote for each
director elections in 2008. Accordingly, they wili be ab
policies and direction during the term of the voting agr
effect of delaying or preventing a change in our control
obtain control of us, which in turn could have a materia
or prevent our stockholders from realizing a premium q

You may experience dilution of your ownership int¢
our commeon stock, which could have an adverse effi

We may in the future issue our previously authoriz
ownership interests of our present stockholders and pur
currently authorized to issue one hundred million share
stock with such designations, preferences and rights as
this report, we had outstanding 41,153,530 shares of ¢
our common stock and an agreement to issue 825,000

h
exercisable options to purchase 275,000 units, each un}7

warrants, each warrant to purchase one share of our co
immediately exercisable. In addition, we have reserved
employees as restricted stock or stock option awards pu
potential issuance of such additional shares of common
of our common stock. We may also issue additional shy
convertible into or exercisable for common stock in cor
future issuances of our securities for capital raising pur
substantial amounts of our common stock, or the percej
effect on the price of our common stock.

requiring stockholder approval.

of our cutstanding common stock are parties to a vating
other’s designees to our board of directors through

le to control the election of directors and, therefore, our
rement. This concentration of voting power could have the
or discouraging a potential acquirer from attempting to

| adverse effect on the market price of our common stock
ver the market price for their shares of common stock.

rests due to the future issuance of additional shares of
bet on our stock price.

red and unissued securities, resulting in the dilution of the
chasers of common stock offered hereby. We are

s of common stock and one million shares of preferred
determined by our board of directors. As of the date of
mmon stock, warrants to purchase 12,650,000 shares of
ares of our common stock upon the exercise of currently
consisting of one share of common stock and two

mon stock. These warrants, when issued, will be

an additional 1,209,195 shares for future issuance 1o
rsuant to our 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan. The

stock may create downward pressure on the trading price
tres of our commen stock or other securities that are
nection with the hiring of personnel, future acquisitions,
poses or for other business purposes. Future sales of

ption that sales could occur, could have a material adverse




Certain provisions of Delaware law, our certificate of incorporation and bylaws could hinder, delay or
prevent a change in control of our company, which could adversely affect the price of our common stock.

Certain provisions of Delaware law, our certificate of incorporation and bylaws could have the effect of
discouraging, delaying or preventing transactions that involve an actual or threatened change in control of our
company. Delaware law imposes restrictions on mergers and other business combinations between us and any
holder of 15% or more of our outstanding common stock, In addition, our certificate of incorporation and bylaws
include the following provisions:

» Classified Board of Directors. Our board of directors is divided into three classes with staggered terms
of office of three years each. The classification and staggered terms of office of our directors make it
more difficult for a third party to gain control of our board of directors. At least two annual meetings of
stockholders, instead of one, generally would be required to effect a change in a majority of the board
of directors.

»  Removal of Directors. Under Delaware law, directors that serve on a classified board, such as our
directors, may be removed only for cause by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of
the voting power of the outstanding shares of our capital stock entitled to vote.

*  Number of Directors, Board Vacancies, Term of Office. Our certificate of incorporation and our bylaws
provide that only the board of directors may set the number of directors. We have elected to be subject
to certain provisions of Delaware law which vest in the board of directors the exclusive right, by the
affirmative vote of a majority of the remaining directors, to fill vacancies on the board even if the
remaining directors do not constitute a quorum. When effective, these provisions of Delaware law,
which are applicable even if other provisions of Delaware law or the charter or bylaws provide to the
contrary, also provide that any director elected to fill a vacancy shall hold office for the remainder of
the full term of the class of directors in which the vacancy occurred, rather than the next annual
meeting of stockholders as would otherwise be the case, and until his or her successor is elected and
qualifies.

* Advance Notice Provisions for Stockholder Nominations and Proposals. Qur bylaws require advance
written notice for stockholders to nominate persons for election as directors at, or to bring other |
business before, any meeting of stockholders. This bylaw provision limits the ability of stockholders to |
make nominations of persons for election as directors or to introduce other proposals unless we are
notified in a timely manner prior to the meeting,

¢ Amending the Bylaws. Our certificate of incorporation permits our board of directors to adopt, alter or
repeal any provision of the bylaws or to make new bylaws. QOur centificate of incorporation also
provides that our bylaws may be amended by the affirmative vote of the holders of at least 80% of the
voting power of the cutstanding shares of our capital stock.

» Authorized but Unissued Shares. Under our certificate of incorporation, our board of directors has
authority to cause the issuance of preferred stock from time to time in one or more series and to
establish the terms, preferences and rights of any such series of preferred stock, all without approval of
our stockholders. Nothing in our certificate of incorporation precludes future issuances without
stockholder approvat of the authorized but unissued shares of our common stock.

We could issue additional preferred stock which could be entitled to dividend, liquidation and other
special rights and preferences not shared by holders of our common stock or which could have anti-
takeover effects.

We are authorized to issue up to one million shares of preferred stock, which shares may be issued from
time to time in one or more series as our board of directors, by resolution or resolutions, may from time to time
determine. The voting powers, preferences and relative, participating, optional and other special rights, and the
qualifications, limitations or restrictions thereof, if any, of each such series of our preferred stock may differ
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from those of any and all other series of preferred stock at any time outstanding, and, subject to certain

limitations of the our certificate of incorporation and D)
resolution or resolutions, the designation, number, voti
and other special rights, and qualifications, limitations
preferred stock. The issuance of any such preferred sto
of our common stock and, therefore, could reduce the

In addition, specific rights granted to future holde
merge with, or sell our assets to, a third party. The abil
discourage, delay or prevent a takeover of us, thereby ff

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.

elaware law, our board of directors may fix or alter, by

ng powers, preferences and relative, participating, optional
and restrictions thereof, of each such series of our

ck could materially adversely affect the rights of holders
alue of our common stock.

s of preferred stock could be used to restrict our ability to
ty of our board of directors to issue preferred stock could
reserving our control by the current stockholders.

BUSINESS AND PROPERTIES

Item 2.  Properties

The following is a description of each of our princ

pal properties as of December 31, 2006, together with a

general description of our miscellaneous and non-core properties.

Electra/Burkburnett Area. Our properties in the El
covering 12,190 gross acres. As of December 31, 2006,

sctra/Burkburnett Area of north Texas include 26 leases
we owned interests in approximately 1,600 wells in the

Electra/Burkburnett Area, of which 536 were active praducing wells and 210 were active injection wells.

We drilled more than 152 wells in the Electra/Burkburnett Area from November 1, 2004 through
December 31, 2006, and, as of December 3 1, 2006, 200(drilling locations were booked as proved undeveloped
locations. We estimate the average recoverable proved geserves attribuiable to each infill well remaining to be
drilled in the Electra/Burkburnett Area should be approximately 22,000 Bbls of oil per well.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, we dril

ed 79 net wells in the Electra/Burkburnett Area, of

which 75 were completed as producing wells and four were in various stages of completion at the end of the year.
We own a 100% working interest in and operate all 79 gf the wells. The initial net daily production from wells

drilled and completed during the year ended December
incurred by us to drill, complete and equip a producing

ended December 31, 2006 was $128,000.

The Electra Field has produced millions of barrels o

31, 2006 averaged 26 Bbls of oil. The average cost
well in our Electra/Burkburnett Area during the year

F crude oil over the past 80 years. Our currently active

wells in this field produce through secondary recovery (waterflood) operations. Well spacing has been decreased to
two to three acre spacing in most areas to permit the recoyery of bypassed oil and to improve waterflood operations.

Since January 1, 2002, a significant number of new|infill and injection wells have been drilled on our

Electra/Burkburnett Area leasehold, with a 99% success

rate.

Approximately 30% of our wells in the Electra/Burkburnett Area are not equipped to gather casinghead gas,

and this gas is vented at the wellhead. The remainder of

bur produced casinghead gas is processed at our 100%

owned Electra Gas Plant, which is located approximately three miles northwest of Elecira, Texas on lands leased
by us. The term of the surface lease on which our Electra Gas Plant is located will continue for so long as the

land is used for the Electra Gas Plant. We pay no rental
approximately 760 Mcf per day of casinghead gas produ
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ced from our properties in the area. The gas is processed




in a 1,400 Mcf per day capacity refrigeration unit where approximately 163 Bbls of NGLs per day, net to our
interest, are extracted and sold. Approximately 250 Mcf per day of residue gas is used for compressor fuel at the
plant, approximately the same volume is used to power recently installed field electric generators, and the
remainder is flared due to a lack of pipeline facilities in the area.

The largest single operating cost in the field historically has been electricity. In an effort to substantially
reduce this cost, in November 2005, we installed two natural gas powered field generators to provide electricity
for lease operations. The natural gas used to operate the generators is our natural gas that was previously vented
or flared, so the installation of the generators has not reduced sales volumes or lease revenues or increased
operating costs. We estimate that since the generators have been in full operation, the resulting savings in field
electricity costs has been approximately $38,000 per month.

On April 1, 2005, we purchased a drilling rig specifically for the purpose of facilitating our ongoing drilling
program in the Electra/Burkburnett Area and have been using this rig and our own ¢rew and equipment to drill
from six to eight wells per month in the field. We also use our own personnel and equipment to perform routine
maintenance on our properties and typically do not require third party vendor services. We own our own pulling
units, earthmoving equipment, tank trucks and other field equipment 10 ensure availability and facilitate
operations in the field. We employ approximately 65 field employees dedicated to our Electra/Burkburnett
aperations, all of which work out of our field office in the town of Electra,

We sell the crude oil produced from our Electra/Burkburnett area properties to Shell Trading (US) Company
at the STUSCO WTI posted price, plus a premium which was $1.50 until December 31, 2006 and is now $1.30.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the aggregate net production attributabie to our interest in the
Electra/Burkburnett properties was 641,308 Bbls of oil and 48,834 Bbls of NGLs, or 69(},142 Boe, and the
average daily production for the period was 1,757 Bbls of oil and 134 Bbls of NGLs, or 1,891 Boe per day.

Egan Field. Our Egan Field, located in Acadia Parish, Louisiana, covers an area of approximately 4,400
acres. Over the past 60 years, more than 90 wells have been drilled in the field at depths ranging from 9,000 feet
to 12,400 feet.

The Egan Field is a geologically complex domal feature that produces from a number of different
formations that are dissected by extensive faulting. This type of heavily faulted geology is typical of Acadia
Parish, where a number of similar fields have been productive for several decades.

Over the past five years, we have undertaken a recompletion program in the Egan Field, conducting
successful operations in 12 wells, and have identified more than seven additiona! recompletion opportunities in
existing wellbores.

We own interests in approximately 4,367 gross {2,633 net} leasehold acres and ten producing wells in the
Egan Field, and are the operator of all such wells. Qur average working interest in the Egan Field properties is
approximaitely 83%, with an average net revenue interest of 71%.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the aggregate net production attributable to our interest in the
Egan Field properties was 16,166 Bbls of oil and 387 MMcf of natural gas, or 80,674 Boe, and average daily
production for the period was 44 Bbls of oil and 1,060 Mcf of natural gas, or 221 Boe per day.

Boonsville Area. The Boonsville Area is located in the Fort Worth Basin of north central Texas in Jack and
Wise Counties. Our leasehold in the area covers approximately 9,950 gross acres lying within the much larger
Boonsville Field, which includes several hundred thousand acres.

Our properties in Jack and Wise Counties are comprised of two discrete subsets; the shallow gas zones and
the Barnett Shale acreage. Because a considerable portion of our leasehold in the area is segregated with respect
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to rights above and below the Marble Falls formation,|a prominent geologic marker in the area, and our
substantially undeveloped Barnett Shale acreage (whi¢h lies below the Marble Falls) represents a distinct
property requiring drilling, completion and production techniques quite dissimilar from the shallow gas
producing zones, we treat our Barnett Shale acreage a$ a separate major property. We consider the Boonsville
Area to include only the properties described herein aq the shallow gas zones, Qur Barnett Shale acreage is
discussed separately below,

Our oil and natural gas production from the Boonsville Area is derived principally from sands found at
depths ranging from 3,800 feet to 6,100 feet. We own working interests in 88 wells producing from these shallow
gas zones and operate all but one of such wells.

We own and operate an extensive gas gathering system in the field which gathers gas solely from our wells.
The gas is compressed in the field through compressiop facilities also owned by us, and then is delivered into a
system owned and operated by a third party for delivery to the Chico gas processing plant, where the natural gas
is processed for the extraction of NGLs. We currently feceive 85% of both the residue gas and the NGLs
attributable to our share of delivered volumes.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the aggregate net production attributable to our working interests
in the Boonsville shallow gas properties (above the Marble Falls) was 16,543 Bbls of oil, 420 MMcf of natural
gas and 84,971 Bbls of NGLs, or 171,546 Boe, and avgrage daily production for the period was 45 Bbls of oil,
1,151 Mef of natural gas and 233 Bbls of NGLs, or 47¢ Boe per day.

We have drilled and successfully completed two wells since our acquisition of WG Energy in 2004. We
own a 74% working interest in and operate both wells. Currently, there are 20 dritling locations identified as
proved undeveloped locations. We believe that additional wells, not currently identified as proved undeveloped
locations, will eventually be drilled to test the shallow gas zones underlying our Boonsville properties. We are
also actively pursuing a workover program in our existing wells to maximize production and take advantage of
opportunities in other potentially productive zones in existing well bores that present attractive recompletion
targets.

Barnett Shale Acreage. We own leases covering approximately 27,700 gross (6,800 net) acres of Barnett
Shale rights in the Fort Worth Basin of north central Telxas, all of which are held by production from wells
completed in the shallow gas zones. The Fort Worth Basin Barnett Shale play currently is the largest natural gas
play in Texas and one of the leading natural gas plays i the United States. Our Fort Worth Basin Barneit Shale
acreage lies in the Boonsville Area of Jack and Wise Counties, Texas, below the Marble Falls geologic marker at
depths ranging from 6,500 feet to 8,500 feet and is, for the most part, undeveloped.

The core area of the play is in Denton, Wise and Tarrant Counties, lying just to the east-southeast of our
acreage in Jack and Wise Counties. The most productivg wells in the Barnett Shale play are wells that have been
drilled horizontally. The average cost of drilling and completing a horizontat well to the Barnett Shale is
approximately $2.9 million.

We are a party to two separate agreements covering our Barnett Shale acreage position in the Fort Worth
Basin:

«  Approximately 3,500 gross acres are subject tp a Participation Agreement with Devon Energy
Corporation in which we have the right to participate with a 36% working interest in each well
proposed to be drilled on the contract area. The agreement is on a “drill-to-earn”” basis, which means
that Devon can earn a 50% working interest and a 40% net revenue interest in a particular lease by
drilling and paying its proportionate share of the costs of a well on lands covered by the lease. This
agreement includes a continuous drilling obligation, requiring Deven to commence a new well within
120 days after the filing of a completion report on the preceding well, failing which Devon’s right to
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carn under the agreement will terminate, and Devon’s interests in undrilled acreage will revert to us.
Through December 31, 2006, six horizontal wells have been drilled under the agreement and
completed as commercially productive in the Barnett Shale. In Yanuary 2007, Devon proposed its next
well and we elected to participate in that well.

* Approximately 23,500 gross acres are committed to an agreement with EQG Resources, Inc. In April
2004, we entered into a purchase and sale agreement with EOG, under which EOG purchased from us
an undivided 50% working interest and a 40.6% net revenue interest in certain oil and natural gas
leases comprising a portion of our Barnett Shale acreage. After giving effect to the sale to EOG, we
retained a 23.9% working interest in the subject leases. Currently, our net revenue interest in our
Barnett Shale acreage subject to the EOG Agreement is approximately 18%. Through December 31,
2006, EQG has drilled one well on our Barnett Shale acreage, which was completed as a commercially
productive well. We proposed one well in January, one well in February and one well in March 2007.
EOG timely elected to participate in the first two wells proposed by us, but has not yet given us notice
of whether it will participate in the third well.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the aggregate net production attributable to our interest in the
currently producing Barnett Shale wells was 5,393 Bbls of o0il, 402 MMcf of natural gas, and 6,886 Bbls of
NGLs, or 79,327 Boe. The average daily production for the period was 15 Bbls of oil and 1,102 Mcf of natural
gas, and 19 Bbls of NGLs, or 217 Boe per day.

Although our Fort Worth Basin Bamnett Shale acreage has not yet made a substantial contribution to our
daily production, we believe that there are more than 325 potential drilling locations on our acreage, with more
than 290 of those locations on leasehold subject to the EOG agreement and more than 35 on the Deven acreage
block. We currently have five proved, undeveloped drilling locations that have been established by prior drilling.
In addition, our ongoing review of seismic data supports 11 additional drilling locations in the EOG block and
seven additional drilling locations in the Devon block as of year end 2006.

We continue to acquire and interpret setsmic data covering a portion of our Barnett Shale acreage.
Currently, we own 35 square miles of 3-D seismic data and expect to acquire an additional 60 square miles of
3-D seismic data during 2007. At December 31, 2006, we owned an interest in nine (gross) Barnett Shale
producing wells, two of which are operated by us, six of which are operated by Devon Energy and one of which
is operated by EOG.

Vinegarone Field. The Vinegarone Field is located in Val Verde County, Texas, which is in the Big Bend
region of South Texas. We own working interests in seven producing wells in the field, none of which are
operated by us.

Production from Vinegarone Field is obtained primarily from three distinct horizons at depths ranging from
9,100 feet to 10,100 feet. We own interesis in 6,686 gross (1,830 net) leaschold acres in the Vinegarone Field. In
most instances, our working interest is 25%, with an average 21.9% net revenue interest, although in one section
{Section 49), in which there are two producing wells, our working interest is 43.8% and our net revenue interest
is 38.3%.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, we participated in the drilling of three wells in the Vinegarone
Field, two of which were unproductive and one of which was successfully completed as a commercial well. We
have identified three proved undeveloped locations in the field and expect to continue our development of the
field over the next two years,

During the year ended December 31, 2006, the aggregate net production attributable to our interest in the
Vinegarone Field properties was 312 MMcf of natural gas, and the average daily production for the period was

856 Mcf of natural gas, or 143 Boe per day.
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Other Properties

In addition to the principal fields and core operal
in Texas, Oklahoma, Mississippi, Louisiana, Kansas,

ing areas, we also own interests in other properties located
New Mexico, Wyoming, Arkansas and offshore California.

We own a significant number of properties scatie
and are actively seeking exploration opportunities wit

red throughout the principal producing basins in Oklahoma
hin these areas.

In Texas, in addition to the Electra/Burkburnett 3
operated and non-operated interests in 576 producing
the Permian Basin to South Texas, and eastward to Lqg
84,000 gross (6,600 net) acres in an exploratory proje
Bamett and Woodford Shales and approximately 15,0
southwest Texas exploration project targeting the Wo

nd Boonsville Area properties, we own miscellaneous
wells across the state, from the Panhandle down through
uisiana. We also own leasehold interests in approximately
ot located in southwest Texas principally targeting the

00 gross and net acres (including options) in another
fcamp formation.

Nearly 43,000 gross (5,700 net} acres of our leas
area are subject to a farmout agreement with J. Cleo T
acquired ten square miles of 3-D seismic data and dril
completed in the Woodford Shale. This well is curren
natural gas sales averaging between 30 and 40 Mcf pe
re-injected for gas lift purposes. We will have the righ
drilling of the next earning well. Our remaining acreaj
agreement which allows us the right to participate for
proposals located on this acreage.

chold in the southwest Texas Barnett/Woodford project
lhompson, et. al. Under this agreement, Thompson has
led the Fasken Ranch 34-2H, a horizontal well recently
ly producing approximately 400 Mcf per day with net

r day. The remaining natural gas production is being

t 1o participate for one-half of our interest following the
e in this play is subject to a third-party joint operating
an approximate 2% working interest in all future drilling

On our southwest Texas Wolfcamp project, we d
2006. We are in the completion process for these well
completion operations will result in commercially pro

rilted two 100%-owned wells during the fourth quarter of
5 but we are unable to predict at this time whether such
ductive wells.

We also participated in two gross (0.2 net) explotatory wells in the Arkoma Basin during 2006, both of
which were successfully completed with initial produdtion rates in excess of 1,500 Mcf per day.

Ownership and Control of Service and Other Supply Assets

We own and control service and supply assets, including a drilling rig, service rigs, a supply company,
gathering systems and other related assets. We believq that ownership and use of these assets for our own account
provides us with a significant competitive advantage With respect to availability, lead-time and cost of these
services. For the 2007 calendar year, approximately 75% of our projected capital expenditures will be in areas
serviced by these assets.

Development, Exploitation and Exploration Programs

Development and Exploitation Program. Qur futyre production and performance depends to a large extent
on the successful development of our existing reserves of oil and natural gas. We have identified multiple

development projects on our existing properties (subs
these projects involve both the drilling of developmen
We are lease operator of leases covering approximatel
we are able to control expenses, capital allocation and
We also own interests, and operate, 455 injection well
participated in the drilling of 84 gross (81.2 net) devel

were either successfully completed as producing wells

ntially all of which are located in our core areas), and
wells (including 455 injection wells) and extension wells.
¥ 1,966 of the wells in which we own interests, and as such
the timing of development activities of these properties.

5. During the year ended December 31, 2006, we drilled or
bpment wells on our oil and gas properties, 82 of which

| were still drilling, or were awaiting completion at the end
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of that period. Capital expenditures in connection with these activities during this period aggregated
approximately $18.3 million.

Another determinant of future performance is the exploitation of existing wells that can be re-completed or
otherwise reworked to extract additional hydrocarbons. We have identified 178 projects involving re-completions
of existing wells, all of which involve reserves included in our proved reserves at December 31, 2005. During the
year ended December 31, 2006, we conducted or participated in recompletion/workover operations on eight of
our existing wells, resulting in the reestablishment or enhancement of production from seven of these wells. Qur
capital expenditures in connection with these recompletion operations aggregated approximately $1.7 million.

Exploration Program. A principal component of our strategy to expand our reserves and production
includes an exploration program focused on adding long-lived oil and natural gas reserves from our core areas
and other resource plays. Since 1987, we have conducied a successful development and exploitation program
resulting in the accumulation of significant long-lived oil and natural gas reserves at relatively moderate depths,
located principally in our core areas. In 1998, utilizing the knowledge and expertise gained from this effort, we
initiated an exploration program by adding exploration professionals to our technical staff, We intend to maintain
an exploration focus in our core areas, while remaining opportunistic with respect to other exploration concepts.
These additional exploration concepts include pursuing opportunities in tight gas and other unconventional
natural gas plays. In our core areas, we own in excess of 131,000 gross (31,900 net) undeveloped leasehold acres
(including options), which enhances our competitive exploration position and provides the foundation for future
reserve additions. Included in this number are 99,000 gross (21,600 net) undeveloped leasehold acres (including
options) in our Wolfcamp, Barnett, and Woodford Shale resource plays located in southwest Texas. We intend to
proceed with exploration in these areas.

We have an experienced technical staff, including geologists, landmen, engineers and other technical
personnel devoted to prospect generation and identification of potential drilling locations. We seek to reduce
exploration risk by exploring at moderate depths that are deep enough to discover sizeable oil and natural gas
accumulations (generally less than 13,000 feet). Our established presence in our core areas has provided our staff
with substantial expertise. Many of our exploration plays are based upon seismic data comparisons to our
existing producing fields. While we will maintain this focus, we plan to broaden our exposure and be
opportunistic in pursuing growth-oriented exploration plays in other basins, primarily on an operated basis. For
exploration prospects we generate, we typically will own a greater interest in these projects than our drilling
partners, if any, and will operate the wells. As a result, we will be able to influence the areas of exploration and
the acquisition of leases, as well as the timing and drilling of each well.

During the year ended December 31, 2006, we drilled or participated in the drilling of eight gross (4.3 net)
exploratory wells at a cost of approximately $3.9 million and incurred total capital expenditures of approximately
$4.5 million for all exploration activities. At December 31, 2006, three gross (2.1 net) exploratory wells were
awaiting completion. Of these, one gross (0.1 net) well was subsequently completed as a commercially
productive well, and the others remain subject to completion.

0Oil and Natural Gas Reserves

Al December 31, 2006, our estimated net proved reserves were 18.5 million Boe, of which 59% was crude
oil, 30% was natural gas, and 11% was NGLs, with a PV-10 Value of approximately $269.9 million before
income taxes. Qur estimated proved developed reserves comprised 71% of our total proved reserves, and our
reserve life for total proved reserves was approximately 17 years.

The following table summarizes the estimates of our historical net proved reserves and the related present
values of such reserves at the dates shown. The reserve and present value data for our oil and natural gas
properties as of December 31, 2006 was prepared by the independent petroleum engineering firms of Williamson
Petroleurn Consuoltants, Inc. and Forrest A. Garb & Associates.
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Estimated quantities of proved reserves and future net revenues therefrom are affected by oil and natural gas
prices, which have fluctuated widely in recent years. There are numerous uncertainties inherent in estimating oit
and natural gas reserves and their values, including many factors beyond the control of the producer. The reserve

data set forth in this report represent only estimates. Res

ervoir engineering is a subjective process of estimating

underground accumulations of oil and natural gas that|cannot be measured in an exact manner. The accuracy of
any reserve estimate is a function of the quality of available data and of engineering and geological interpretation
and judgment. As a result, estimates of different engi ers, including those used by us, may vary. In addition,
estimates of reserves are subject to revisions based upon actual production, results of future development and
exploration activities, prevailing oi! and natural gas prjces, operating costs and other factors, which revisions may
be material. The PV-10 Value of our proved oil and nitural gas reserves does not necessarily represent the
current or fair market value of such proved reserves, apd the 10% discount factor may not reflect current interest

rates, our cost of capital or any risks associated with the

development and production of our proved oil and

natural gas reserves. Proved reserves include proved developed and proved undeveloped reserves.

Reserve Data:

Proved developed reserves: .................]
Qil{MBbls) .........................L
Natural gas (MMecf) ...................
Natural gas liquids (MBbls)(1) ..........L

Total MBoe) ....................
PV-10 Value (in thousands) .............

Provedreserves: .. ... ... . ... ... . ... ...
Oil(MBbls) ............ .. ...........0
Natural gas (MMcf) ... .. .. .. ...
Natural gas liquids (MBbls)(1) ...........

Total (MBoe) .....................
PV-10 Value (in thousands) ..............

Prices used in calculating PV-10 Value:
$/BbI(OI) ...
$Mef
SMBBI(NGL)Y ...

(1) Approximately 20% of our estimated proved reserv
equity ownership in the Electra Gas Plant.

The following is a summary of the standardized me

As of December 31,
2004 2005 2006
.............. 6,198 7,337 6,954
.............. 31,048 26,752 26,888
.............. 1,611 1,396 1,671
.............. 12,984 13,192 13,106

$164,007 $245,107 $192.045

As of December 31,

2004 20058 2006
10667 11,199 10,796
.............. 38,195 34234 33,199
.............. 2087 1891 2,123
.............. 19120 18796  18.452
.............. $236.201 $345.501 $269.892
.............. 4025 5863 5874
.............. 6.02 9.14 5.51
.............. 2756 3589  36.51

es of NGLs at December 31, 2006, result from our

asure of discounted net cash flows using methodology

provided for in Statement of Financial Accounting Standard No. 69, related to our estimated proved oil and

natural gas reserves, For these calculations, estimated fu

ure cash flows from estimated future production of

proved reserves were computed using oil and natural gas| prices as of the end of the period presented. Future

development and production costs attributable to the pro

ed reserves were estimated assuming that existing

conditions would continue over the economic lives of the individual leases and costs were not escalated for the

future. Estimated future income tax expenses were calcu

lated by applying future statutory tax rates (based on the

current tax law adjusted for permanent differences and tax credits) to the estimated future pretax net cash flows
related 1o proved oil and natural gas reserves, less the tax|basis of the properties involved. For further information
regarding the standardized measure of discounted net cash flows related to our estimated proved oil and natural
gas reserves for the years ended December 31, 2004, ZOOF and 2006, please review note Q in the notes to our

year-end 2006 financial statements appearing elsewhere

in this report.
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The standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows relating to our estimated proved oil and
natural gas reserves at December 31 is summarized as follows:

Year ended December 31,
2004 2005 2006
(in thousands)
Future cashinflows . ... ...... ... ... . i uiininnnn $ 711,781  $1,037,337  $ 894,626
Future production costs .. ....... ..., (247,314) (336,007) (356,961}
Future development costs . ...........oiiieiiiaa... (36,495) (45,272) (48,605)
Future income taX eXpenses ...........ooveinieaennn. (136,669) (219,640)  (158,602)
Future netcashflows ............ .o iuirinrnunann. 291,303 436,418 330,458
10% annual discount for estimated timing of cash flows . . .. (129,983) (209,758}  (150,717)

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows .. $ 161,320 $ 226,660 § 179,741

In general, the volume of production from oil and natural gas properties declines as reserves are depleted.
Except to the extent we acquire properties containing proved reserves or conduct successful exploration and
development activities, our proved reserves will decline as reserves are produced. Our future oil and natural gas
production is, therefore, highly dependent upon our level of success in finding or acquiring additional reserves.
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Net Production, Unit Prices and Costs

The following table presents certain information Wwith respect to our cil and natural gas production and
prices and costs attributable to all oil and natural gas groperties owned by us for the periods shown. Average
realized prices reflect the actual realized prices received by us, before and after giving effect to the results of our
derivative contracts. Qur derivative contracts are financial, and our production of oil, natural gas and NGLs, and
the average realized prices we receive from our produgtion, are not affected by our derivative contracts.

Year ended December 31,
2004 2005 2006
Production volumes:
OI(MBbIs) . ... 178 787 752
Natural gas lignids (MBbls) .................. 1o .o iiiii i e, 12 170 143
Naturalgas(MMcf) ... . ... ... .. ... ... 1,928 2,681 2,365
Total (MBoe) ... 511 1,405 1,250
Average realized prices (before effects of derivative cgntracts):
Qit(perBbl) ...... ... .. ..o $37.63 $53.75 36382
Natural gas liquids (perBbl) ....... .. ... ... .. oo s 2641 3633 40.33
Natural gas (per Mcf) ........ ... .. . .. i ] 5.69 6.61 6.02
Totalper Boe . ...... ... .. .. 35.14 47.16 52.74
Effect of settlement of derivative contracts:
Oil(per BBy .. ... $(4.48) $(1.40) $(5.78)
Natural gas liquids (per Bbl) ................ [ .. ..o i it — — —
Natural gas (per Mcf) ... .. . oo i e e 05 (1.04) (.13)
TotalperBoe ...... .. ... ... i (.37 (238  (3.61)
Average realized prices (after effects of derivative contyacts):
Oill(per Bbl} . ... $33.15 $52.35 $58.04
Natural gas liquids (per Bbl) .. ... ... ... ... L . 2641 36.33 40.33
Natural gas (PerMcf) ....... ..o oo oo 5.74 5.57 5.89
TotalperBoe ...... ... ... 33.77 4438 49.13
Expenses (per Boe):
Oil and natural gas production taxes ............0..ooiiieeeiiiiienn . $247 $236 § 258
Oil and natural gas production expenses ......... . ... it 7.04 11.46 14.16
Amortization of fullcostpool ........ .. ... .. i 5.89 8.93 9.77
General and administrative .. ... ... ... oL i 12.90 6.13 7.21

Acquisition, Development and Exploration Capital Expenditures

The following table presents information regarding our net costs incurred in our acquisitions of proved and
unproved properties, and our development and exploration activities (in thousands):

Year ended December 31,

2004 2005 2006
Proved property acquisitioncosts . ........... ... oo $82577 § 155 § 4476
Unproved property acquisition costs ............... ..o i, — — 705
Development costs .. ... ... .o 5,173 11,864 18475
Exploration costs ... .. ... .. . . 727 1,507 4,489
Total costs incurred . . .. ... ... $88.477 $13,526 $28,145
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Finding Costs

The following table sets forth the estimated proved reserves we acquired or discovered, including revisions
of previous estimates, during each stated periad. In calculating finding costs, we include acquisition costs related
to proved property acquisitions, development costs, and exploration costs with respect to exploratory wells
drilled and completed.

Year ended December 31,

2004 2005 2006
Proved reserves acquired/discovered (MBog) ..........ccciviiiiiiiin.t. 13,704 1,323 946
Total cost per Boe of reserves acquired/discovered ......................... $6.46 $1023 $27.18

Producing Wells

The following table sets fonth the number of productive wells in which we owned an interest as of
December 31, 2006. Productive wells consist of producing weils and wells capable of production, including wells
awaiting pipeline connections or connection to production facilities. Wells that we complete in more than one
producing horizon are counted as one well.

Gross Net
Ol e e 1,874 1,362
Natural gas . . ... ... e e 267 122

1 1 2,141 1,484

Acreage

The following table sets forth our developed and undeveloped gross and net leasehold acreage, including
options to acquire ieasehold acreage, as of December 31, 2006:

Gross Net
Developed . ... ... s 104,199 38,248
Undeveloped ...... ... s 131,883 32,228
Total . e e e 236,082 70,476

Approximatety 90% of our net acreage was located in our core areas as of December 31, 2006. Qur
undeveloped acreage includes leased acres on which wells have not been drilled or completed to a point that
would permit the production of commercial quantities of oil and natural gas, regardiess of whether or not such
acreage is held by production or contains proved reserves. A gross acre is an acre in which we own an interest.
A net acre is deemed to exist when the sum of fractional ownership interests in gross acres equals one. The
number of net acres is the sum of the fractional interests owned in gross acres.
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Drilling Activities

During the periods indicated, we drilled or participated in drilling the following wells:

Development wells:
Productive . . ..... .. . ... . il
Non-productive

Exploratory wells:
Productive ............ ... ... i,

Year Ended December 31,
2004 2005 2006 (1)
Gross Net Gross Net  Gross  Net

03 — — 2 05
............. 1 03 1 03 3 07
------------- 48 = = 213
............ 29 174 67 584 84 T8

{1} Does not include three gross (2.1 net) wells that were in the process of being completed at December 31,
2006. One gross (0.1 net) well was subsequently gompleted as a commercially productive well.

Oil and Natural Gas Marketing and Derivative Activities

During the year ended December 31, 2006, two purchasers accounted for approximately 75% of our oil and

natural gas revenue. Shell Trading-US accounted for $4

2.0 million, or 62%, and Targa Midstream Services, or

Targa (formerly, Dynegy) accounted for $8.8 million, or 13%, of our oil and natural gas revenue for that period.
No other purchaser accounted for 10% or more of our gil and natural gas revenue during 2006. Qur agreement

with Shell Trading-US, or STUSCO, which covers all of our north Texas oil production, through June 30, 2006
provided for payment, on a per barrel basis, of a price equal to Koch's posted price for West Texas Intermediate

Crude, plus Platt’s Trade-month P+ (a fluctuating prem

um based on refinery demand), minus $1.15. Effective

July 1, 2006, we negotiated a new price of STUSCO WITT plus $1.50 until December 31, 2006 and $1.30

thereafter. The agreement is on a month-to-month basis

and is cancelable by either party upon 30 days’ prior

written notice. Our gas purchase contract with Targa, which expires February 1, 2013, covers our predominately

natural gas producing properties located in Jack and Wi

e Counties, Texas. Under the terms of the contract,

Targa takes delivery of our gas in the field and transporis the gas to the nearby Chico Plant where it is processed
for the extraction of liquefiable hydrocarbons. Targa pays us 85% of the weighted average price received by

Targa for the sale of natural gas and natural gas liquids

purchasers in the fields where our production sold to the
other purchasers would be available to purchase our pro
operations. We have no reason to believe that any such ¢

ttributable 1o the gas delivered by us. There are other

se two purchasers is produced and marketed, and such
duction should any of these two purchasers discontinue
“essation is likely to occur. However, if the Chico Plant

were (o cease operations, whether for mechanical, finan¢ial or other reasons, such cessation could materially and

adversely affect our cash flow from operations on a tem
necessary facilities to take delivery of our natural gas pr
any such cessation is likely to occur.

porary basis, until a new purchaser could install the
bduction in the area. We have no reason to believe that

To reduce exposure to fluctuations in oil and natural gas prices and to achieve more predictable cash flow,

we periodically utilize various derivative strategies to m
and natural gas production. The noticnal volumes under

nage the price received for a portion of our future oil
pur derivative contracts do not exceed our expected

production. Qur derivative strategies customarily involve the purchase of put options to provide a price floor for
our production, put/call collars that establish both a floor and a ceiling price to provide price certainty within a

fixed range, call options that establish a secondary floor
establish an index-related price above which we pay the

hbove a put/call collar ceiling, or swap arrangements that
Herivative counterparty and below which we are paid by

the derivative counterparty. These contracts allow us to predict with greater certainty the effective oil and natural
gas prices to be received for our production and benefit us when market prices are less than the base floor prices

or swap prices under our derivative contracts. However,
than the ceiling or swap prices in these contracts for our
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Our derivative positions at December 31, 2006 are shown in the following table:

Crude Oil (Bhls) Natural Gas (MMBtu)
Floors Ceilings Floors Ceilings
Per Day Price Per Day Price Per Day Price Per Day Price
Collars
2007 ... 1,500 $52.67 1,500 $73.24 4177 3 748 4,177 $11.58
2008 ... ... .. 950 53.69 950 86.08 4,000 6.87 4,000 13.53
Secondary Floors
2007 ... 4,000 $12.00

Crude oil contracts cover each month of 2007 and natural gas contracts are for February through December
2007. Natural gas secondary floors for 2007 are for April through October. Crude oil contracts and natural gas
contracts for 2008 are for January through December. For the year ended December 31, 2006 our average daily
production was 2,061 Bbls of oil, 6,479 Mcf of natural gas, and 392 Bbls of NGLs.

Competition

The oil and natural gas industry is highly competitive. We compete for the acquisition of oil and natural gas
properties, primarily on the basis of the price to be paid for such properties, with nurnerous entities including
major oit companies, other independent oil and natural gas concems and individual producers and operators.
Many of these competitors are large, well-established companies and have financial and other resources
substantially greater than ours. Qur ability to acquire additional oil and natural gas properties and to discover
reserves in the future will depend upon our ability to evaluate and select suitable properties and to consummate
transactions in a highly competitive environment.

Title to Properties

We believe that we have satisfactory title to our properties in accordance with standards generally accepted
in the oil and natural gas industry. As is customary in the oil and natural gas industry, we make only a cursory
review of title to farmout acreage and to undeveloped oil and natural gas leases upon execution of any contracts.
Prior to the commencement of drilling operations, a title examination is conducted and curative work is
performed with respect to significant defects. To the extent title opinions or other investigations reflect title
defects, we, rather than the setler of the undeveloped property, typically are responsible to cure any such title
defects at our expense. If we were unable to remedy or cure any title defect of a nature such that it would not be
prudent for us to commence drilling operations on the property, we could suffer a loss of our entire investment in
the property. We have obtained title opinions or reports on substantially all of our producing properties. Prior to
completing an acquisition of producing oil and natural gas leases, we perform a title review on a material portion
of the leases. Our oil and natural gas properties are subject to customary royalty interests, liens for current taxes
and other burdens that we believe do not materially interfere with the use of or affect the value of such
properties.

Facilities

QOur executive and operating offices are located at Suite 650, Meridian Tower, 5100 E. Skelly Drive, Tulsa,
Oklahoma 74135 which we occupy under a lease with a remaining term ending in June 2008, at an annual rental
of $288,728, subject to escalations for taxes and utilities. We also lease a small office in Houston. We believe
that our facilities are adequate for our current needs.

Regulation

General. Various aspects of our oil and gas operations are subject to extensive and continually changing
regulation, as legislation affecting the oil and gas industry is under constant review for amendment or expansion.
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Numerous departments and agencies, both federal and
rules and regulations binding upon the oil and gas indh

Regulation of Sales and Transportation of Naturd

state, are authorized by statute to issue, and have issued,
stry and our individual members.

! Gas. The Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, or the

FERC, regulates the transportation and sale for resale of natural gas in intersiate commerce pursuant to the
Natural Gas Act of 1938 and the Natural Gas Policy Alct of 1978. In the past, the federal government has
regulated the prices at which natural gas can be sold. While sales by producers of natural gas can currently be
made at uncontrolled market prices, Congress could reenact price controls in the future. Our sales of natural gas
are affected by the availability, terms and cost of transportation. The price and terms for access to pipeline

transportation are subject to extensive regulation and p
within the natural gas industry, to remove vartous barr]
natural gas sellers, including producers, from effective
distribution companies and large industrial and commg
pipelines may charge for their services. Similarly, the
Railroad Commission have been reviewing changes to

roposed regulation designed to increase competition

ers and practices that historically limited non-pipeline
ly competing with interstate pipelines for sales to local
rcial customers and to establish the rates interstate
Dklahoma Corporation Commission and the Texas

their regulations governing transportation and gathering

services provided by intrastate pipelines and gatherers.
state regulators would affect us only indirectly, they ar
markets. We cannot predict what further action the FE}
we do not believe that any actions taken will have an e
gas producers with which we compete.

While the changes being considered by these federal and
e intended to further enhance competition in natural gas
RC or state regulators will take on these matters; however,
[fect materially different than the effect on other natural

Additional proposals and proceedings that might dffect the natural gas industry are pending before
Congress, the FERC, state commissions and the courts| The natural gas industry historically has been very
heavily regulated; therefore, there is no assurance that the less stringent regulatory approach recently pursued by
the FERC and Congress will continue.

Qil Price Controls and Transportation Rates. Our
not currently regulated and are made at market prices.
be affected by the cost of transporting the products to

sales of crude oil, condensate and natural gas liquids are
(he price we receive from the sale of these products may
arket.

Environmental. Our oil and natural gas operations are subject to pervasive federal, state, and local laws and
regulations concerning the protection and preservation of the environment (e.g., ambient air, and surface and
subsurface soils and waters), human health, worker safety, natural resources and wildlife. These laws and
regulations affect virtually every aspect of our oil and nptural gas operations, including our exploration for, and
production, storage, treatment, and transportation of, hytrocarbons and the disposal of wastes generated in
connection with those activities. These laws and regulations increase our costs of planning, designing, drilling,
installing, operating, and abandoning oil and natural gas wells and appurtenant properties, such as gathering
systems, pipelines, and storage, treatment and salt waten disposal facilities.

We have expended and will continue to expend sigpificant financial and managerial resources to comply
with applicable environmental laws and regulations, including permitting requirements. Our failure to comply
with these laws and regulations can subject us to substantial civil and criminal penalties, claims for injury to
persons and damage to properties and natural resources,|and clean-up and other remedial obligations. Although
we believe that the operation of our properties generally|complies with applicable environmental laws and
regulations, the risks of incurring substantial costs and ljabilities are inherent in the operation of oil and natural
gas wells and appurtenant properties. We could also be gubject to liabilities related to the past operations
conducted by others at properties now owned by us, without regard to any wrongful or negligent conduct by us,

We cannot predict what effect future environmental legislation and regulation will have upon our oil and
natural gas operations. The possible legislative reclassification of certain wastes generated in connection with oil
and natural gas operations as “hazardous wastes” would have a significant impact on our operating costs, as well
as the oil and natural gas industry in general. The cost off compliance with more stringent environmental laws and
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regulations, or the more vigorous administration and enforcement of those laws and regulations, could result in
material expenditures by us to remove, acquire, modify, and install equipment, store and dispose of wastes,
remediate facilities, employ additional personnel, and implement systems to ensure compliance with those laws
and regulations. These accumulative expenditures could have a material adverse effect upon our profitability and
future capital expenditures.

Regulation of Oil and Gas Exploration and Production. Our exploration and production operations are
subject to various types of regulation at the federal, state and local levels. Such regulations include requiring
permits and drilling bonds for the drilling of wells, regulating the location of wells, the method of drilling and
casing wells, and the surface use and restoration of properties upon which weils are drilled. Many states also
have statutes or regulations addressing conservation matters, including provisions for the unitization or pooling
of oil and natural gas properties, the establishment of maximum rates of production from oil and natural gas
wells and the regulation of spacing, plugging and abandonment of such wells. Some state statutes limit the rate at
which oil and natural gas can be produced from our properties.

Employees

At December 31, 2006, we had 100 employees, 11 of whom were administrative, accounting or financial
personnel and 89 of whom were technical and operations personnel. Our exploration staff includes two
exploration geologists and two exploration landmen. Qur future success will depend partially on our ability to
attract, retain and motivate qualified personnel. We are not a party to any collective bargaining agreement and we
have not experienced any strikes or work stoppages. We consider our relations with our employees to be
satisfactory.

Financial Information About Geographical Areas

We have no revenue or segment profit or loss attributable to international activities.

Available Information

Copies of our Annual Report on Form 10-K, Quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K,
and amendments to those reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934, as amended, are available free of charge through our website (www.ramenergy.com) as soon as
reasonably practicable after we electronically file the material with, or furnish it to, the SEC. Our SEC filings are
also available from the SEC’s website at: http://www.sec.gov. The references to our website address do not
constitute incorporation by reference of the information contained on the website and should not be considered
part of this report.

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

From time to time, we are a party to litigation or other legal proceedings that we consider to be a part of the
ordinary course of our business. Other than the pending lawsuit described below, we are not involved in any legal
proceedings, nor are we a party to any pending or threatened claims, that could reasonably be expected to have a
material adverse effect on our financial condition or results of operations.

In the pending lawsuit, RAM Energy, together with certain of its subsidiaries and affiliates, are defendants
in the litigation entitled Sacket v. Great Plains Pipeline Company, et al., in the District Court of Woods County,
Oklahoma (Case No. CJ-2002-70). This is a putative class action case filed by a landowner alleging that the
royalty payments to landowners for oil and natural gas produced from wells connected to a RAM Energy
subsidiary’s natural gas, oil and saltwater pipeline system in Woods, Alfalfa and Major Counties, Oklahoma,
were calculated on a price that was lower than the price at which the production from the related wells was resold
by the subsidiary. RAM Energy and its subsidiaries sold their interests in the affected leases effective
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December 1, 2001. The plaintiff filed the lawsuit as a

class action on behalf of himself and all other royalty

owners under leases held by any of the defendants upgn which wells were connected to the system. Plaintiff
seeks unspecified damages for breach of contract, tortjous breach of implied covenants and breach of fiduciary
duty, together with an accounting, imposition of a contructive trust, a permanent injunction, punitive damages
and recovery of litigation costs and fees. We believe that a fair and proper accounting was made to the royalty
owners for production from the affected leases. We have filed a response denying the allegations made by the
plaintiff. On January 11, 2007, the Court entered an orfler certifying the plaintiff’s proposed class. We and the

other defendants have appealed that order. Irrespective of whether the order certifying a class is affirmed on

appeal, we intend to strenuously defend against any substantive claims made in the litigation. In conjunction with

our May &, 2006 acquisiticn of RAM Energy, the former stockholders of RAM Energy deposited in escrow

3,200,000 shares of our common stock to secure their potential indemnity obligations to us, including any loss
we might sustain in the Sacket litigation. These escrowed shares, less any shares withdrawn from the escrow to
satisfy other indemnity obligations, will remain in escrow until the Sacket litigation is resolved. Ta date, no other

claims have been made against the shares in escrow.

Item 4.

None.

Subrmission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

PART II

Item 5. Market for Registrant’s Common Equity, IFelaIed Stockholder Matters and Issuer Purchases of

Equity Securities

Market for Common Stock

Our units, common stock and warrants are traded ¢n the Nasdaq Capital Market under the symbols
RAMEU, RAME and RAMEW, respectively. The follawing table sets forth the range of high and low closing

bid prices for the units, common stock and warrants for]

the periods indicated since the units commenced public

trading on May 13, 2004 and since the common stock and warrants commenced public trading on May 24, 2004.
The over-the-counter market quotations reflect inter-degler prices, without retail mark-up, mark-down or
commission and may not necessarily reflect actual trandactions.

2007:
First Quarter (through March 26)

2006:
FirstQuarter . ....... ... ... it
Second Quarter
ThirdQuarter ........ ... .. ... . . iiiiiuiiian..
FourthQuarter . ................................

2005:
FirstQuarter ............ ... i
Second Quarter
ThirdQuarter ........ ... ... ... ... ... ... ..,
FourthQuarter....... ... ... .. .. oo,

2004;
Second Quarter (commencing May 24)
Third Quarter ........ .. ... .. i
FouthQuarter . ....... ... ... ... i,

Common
Units Stock Warranls
High Low High Low High Low
$ 7.36 $5.01 $5.52 $4.00 $0.87 %041
$ 825 3700 $589 $546 $1.18 §$0.78
11.00 .20 6.79 5.19 2.00 1.05
8.74 6.45 579 468 1.75 0.77
7.15 6.00 564 465 1.0 0.67
$ 735 8670 $550 $5.01 $0.94 $0.74
7.05 6.36 556  5.12 0.82 0.57
7.30 6.20 5.55 5,13 0.98 0.50
7.35 6.65 5.56 531 0.95 0.65
$ 640 $6.10 $500 $4.70 $0.82 3$0.69
6.35 3.97 500 4381 0.72 0.52
6.65 570 514 480 030 048




Holders

As of March 28, 2007, there were 52 holders of record of our units, 1,081 holders of record of our common
stock and 421 holders of record of our warrants. We believe that the beneficial holders of the units, common
stock and warrants are in excess of 400 persons each.

Dividends
It is the present intention of our board of directors to retain all earnings, if any, for use in our business

operations and, accordingly, our board does not anticipate declaring any dividends in the foreseeable future.

The following table provides information for all equity compensation plans as of the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006, under which our equity securities were authorized for issuance:

Number of Securities Remaining
Number of Securities to Weighted Average Available for Future Issuance

be Issued Upon Exercise Exercise Price of Under Equity Compensation
of Qutstanding Options, Qutstanding Options, Plans (Excluding Securities
Warrants and Rights Warrants and Rights Reflected in Column (a))
Plan Category (a) (b} {©)

Equity compensation plans approved
by security holder (1) ............ 976,805(2) $5.62(3) 1,423,195(4)
Equity compensation plans not
approved by security holders ... ... —

Total ... .o 976,805

1,423,195

(1) Shares awarded under all above plans may be newly issued, from our treasury or acquired in the open
market.

(2) This number represents shares of restricted stock awards issued and outstanding under our 2006 Long Term
Incentive Plan Stock Bonus Plan.

(3) This represents the weighted average market price on the date of grant of shares of restricted stock issued
under our 2006 Long Term Incentive Plan.

(4) This number reflects 1,423,195 shares available for issuance under our 2006 Long Term Incentive Plan. In
addition, shares related to grants that are forfeited, terminated, cancelled, expire unexercised, or settled in
such manner that all or some of the shares are not issued to a participant or are surrendered unvested shall
immediately become available for issuance.
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Stockholder Return Performance Presentation

The following graph compares the cumutative 3 1-month total return provided to our steckholders on our
common stock beginning May 24, 2004 (the date of consummation of our initial public offering) through
December 31, 2006, relative to the cumulative total refurns of the NASDAQ Composite index and the Dow Jones
Wilshire MicroCap Exploration & Production index. The comparison assumes an investment of $100 (with
reinvestment of all dividends) was made in our common stock on May 24, 2004 and in each of the *indexes and
its relative performance is tracked through December B1, 2006. The identity of the 50+ companies included in the
Dow Jones Wilshire MicroCap Exploration and production Index will be provided upon request.

Among RAM Energy Resource

. Inc., The NASDAQ Composite Index

COMPARISON OF 31 MON':F CUMULATIVE TOTAL RETURN*

And The Dow Jones Wilshire

$250 -

$200 -

$150 -

$50

$0

croCap Exploration & Production Index

FEIIFIFTETEL LS E

— - — - NASDAQ Composite

FELLLELE IS L SIS

RAM Energy Resources, Inc

------ Dow Jones Wilshire NicroCap Exploration & Production

* $100 invested on 5/24/04 in stock or on 4/30/04 in in

RAM Energy Resources, Inc. ....................
NasdaqComposite ....................ccon....
Dow Jones Wilshire MicroCap Exploration & Productio

Assumes $100 invested on May 24, 2004 in our col

dex-including reinvestment of dividends.

Fiscal year ending

December 31,
12731/04 12731005 1231006
....................... $108 $117 5117
....................... 113 117 129
miIndex ................ 136 169 194

nmon stock, and on April 30, 2004 in the Nasdag

Composite Index and the Dow Jones Wilshire MicroCap Exploration & Production Index.
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Item 6. Selected Consolidated Financial Data

We acquired RAM Energy cffective May 8, 2006, by the merger of our wholly owned subsidiary with and
into RAM Energy. For accounting and financial reporting purposes, the merger was accounted for under the
purchase method of accounting as a reverse acquisition and, in substance, as a capital transaction, because we
had no active business operations prior to consummation of the merger. Accordingly, for accounting and
financial reporting purposes, the merger was treated as the equivalent of RAM Energy issuing stock for our net
monetary assets accompanied by a recapitalization. Our net monetary assets have been stated at their fair value,
essentially equivalent to historical costs, with no goodwill or other intangible assets recorded. The accumulated
deficit of RAM Energy has been carried forward. Operations prior to the merger are those of RAM Energy.

The selected consolidated financial information presented below should be read in conjunction with our
consolidated financial statements and the related notes, and “Management’s Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations” contained elsewhere in this report. Our financial position and
results of operations for 2004 and 2005 may not be comparative to other periods as a result of certain divestitures
and acquisitions, as more fully described in our consolidated financial statements included elsewhere in this
report.
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Selected Consoli

(in thousands,

Revenues and Other Operating Income;
Oil and natural gassales .............. ...,
Pipelinesystem ................ ... ... ... ... ...
Gainonsaleof subsidiary ........... .. ... .o L
Other ... .. i e
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) from derivatives .

Total revenues and other operating income .........
Operating Expenses:

Oil and natural gas productiontaxes .................
Oil and natural gas production expenses .. ............
Pipeline purchases . ........ ... .. il
Pipelineoperations . .............. ... ... o
Depreciation and amortization .....................
ACCTEetion EXPeNSe . ... vviiit it
Contract termination and severance payments . ........
Share-based compensatien ........................

General and administrative, net of operator’s overhead feeg .........

Total operating expenses . .......................

Operating income (loss) ........................
Other Income (Expense):
Gain on early extinguishmentof debt .. ..............
Gain on sale of oil and natural gas properties .. ........
Interest eXpense . ..... ..ot s
Interestincome . ....... ... ... ...

dated Financial Data

except share data)

Year Ended December 31,

2002

2003

2004

2005 (1)

2006

$ 10,166 $20,053 $17.975 $ 66,243 § 68,015

Income {Loss) from Continuing Operations Before Income Taxes and

Extraordinary Item .. ... ... ... ... o
Income Tax Provision (Benefity ... ...................

Income {Loss) from Continuing Operations Before Extraordidary Item . .

Extraordinary loss on acquisition of debt, net of income tax benefit of

674 . e e

Income {Loss) from Continuing Operations . ............

Discontinued operations:
Loss from discontinued operations ..................
Incometaxbenefit. ... ... ... ... ... oLl

Loss from discontinued operations ....................

Income (loss) before cumulative effect of change in accouminrg

principle

Cumulative effect of change in accounting principle (net of tax benefit of

27 e

Net income (loss)

.......... — — 12,139 —
.......... 163 170 338 851 640
.......... (146)  (203) (793) (11,695) 1,589
.......... 10,183 20,020 29,659 55399 70,244
.......... 1,044 1,408 1,263 3,320 3,329
.......... 3,023 3527 3,600 16099 18,266
.......... 2947 4098 3273 12972 13,252
.......... — 48 78 510 535
.......... - — — — 2,308
5,858 6,331 6,601 8,610 9,300
........... 12,872 15412 14815 41,511 46,990
........... {2,689) 4,608 14844 13,888 23,254
........... 32,883 — — — —
........... (9,240) (4,912) (5.070) (12,614) (17.050)
........... 277 41 35 75 309
........... 21,231 (263) 9,809 1,349 6,513
........... 7975 228 3733 806 1,465
13,256 {491y 6,076 543 5,048
........... 13,256 (491} 6,076 543 5,048
........... (18,016) (1,723) — — —
........... {6.846) (655) — — —
........... (11,170) (1,068} — — —
.......... 2,086 (1,559 6,076 543 5,048
.......... — (448) — — —
.......... $ 2,086 $(2,007) $ 6,076 543 $ 5,048
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Selected Consolidated Financial Data (continued)

(in thousands, except share data)

. Year Ended December 31,
2002 2003 2004 2005(1) 2006
Net income (loss) per share attributable to common
stockholders—basic
Income (loss) from continuing operations before
extraordinary item . ... ... ... i $ 4,861.01 $(180.05) $2,383.67 $ 23894 § .21
Extraordinary loss . ......... .. ..o i — — — — —
Loss from discontinued operations . ................... (4,096.08) (391.64) _ —_ —_
Cumutative effect of change in accounting principle ... ... —  {164.28) — — —_
Netincome (loss) pershare . ... .. ... ... ............. $ 76493 $(735.97) $2,383.67 § 23894 § 0.21
Cash dividends pershare .. ... .. ... ... ..o, 5 — §$29483 § 47077 $ 61593 % 0.02
Earnings (loss) per share:
Basic ............. e $ 76493 $(735.97) $2,383.67 $ 23894 % 0.21
Diluted . ... i e s 76493 (73597 229977  230.72 020
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic .. . e e 2,727 2,727 2,549 2,273 24,347,607
Diluted . ... ... ... 2,727 2,727 2.642 2,354 25,015,531
Statement of Cash Flow Data
Cash provided by (used in):
Operating activities .. ...... ... .. .. ... .. i $ (14842) % 5714 $ 1,793 518,359 § 30,537
Investing activities . ... ....oov vt i (46) 7422  (64,852) (12,554) (25,317
Financing activities .................... ... . ... RN (3,731) (12,333) 62,116 (6,910) 1,431
Other Data
Capital expenditures (2) ... il $ 6700 $ 57258 $102,719 $ 13528 § 28,145
EBITDA . i e e 473 8,670 18,153 33,747 33419
As of December 31,
2002 2003 2004 2005 (1) 2006
Balance Sheet Data
Total aSSE15 .o vvv et ir e e e $ 62,192 $45908 5140324 $i43,276 $ 161,725
Long-term debt, including current portion .................. 56,267 46,057 117,344 112,846 132,237
Stockholders’ deficit ... .. ... ... e (16,842) (19,653) (19,912) (20.769) (27,895)

(1) We acquired WG Energy Holdings, Inc. in December 2004.
(2) Includes costs of acquisitions.

Our EBITDA is determined by adding the following to net income (loss): interest expense, amortization,
depreciation, accretion, income taxes, gain on early extinguishment of debt, gain on sale of oil and natural gas
properties, share-based compensation, extraordinary gains (losses), the cumulative effect of changes in
accounting principles and unrealized gains (losses) on derivatives. The table below reconciles EBITDA to net
income (loss).

We present EBITDA because we believe that it provides useful information regarding our continuing
operating resuits. We rely on EBITDA as a primary measure to review and assess our operating performance
with corresponding periods, and as an assessment of our overall liquidity and our ability to meet our debt service
obligations.
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We believe that EBITDA is useful to investors to

provide disclosure of our operating results on the same

basis as that used by our management. We also believe that this measure can assist investors in comparing our
performance to that of other companies on a consiste:i basis without regard to certain items that do not directly

affect our ongoing operating performance or cash flo
generally accepted accounting principles, or GAAP, h
consider it in isolation, or as a substitute for net incom

s. EBITDA, which is not a financial measure under
s limitations as an analytical tool, and you should not
e, cash flows from operating activities and other

consolidated income or cash flows statement data prepared in accordance with GAAP. Because of these
limitations, EBITDA should neither be considered as 4 measure of discretionary cash available to us to invest in
the growth of our business, nor as a replacement for net income. We compensate for these limitations by relying

primarily on our GAAP results and using EBITDA as

Reconciliation of EBITDA to net income (loss):
Netincome (loss) . ............ovvininnn..
Plus: Interest expense .....................
Plus: Amortization and depreciation expense . ..
Plus: Accretionexpense ... ............c.....
Plus: Income tax expense ..................
Less: Gain on early extinguishment of debt . ...

supplemental information.

Year ended December 31,
2002 2003 2004 2005 2006
(in thousands)

........ $ 2,086 $(2,007) % 6,076 § 543 § 5,048

Less: Gain on sale of oil and natural gas properties ...... — —— — — —

Plus: Share-based compensation .............
Plus: Extraordinary (gainyloss ..............

Plus: Loss from discontinued operations, net of tax ......

Less: Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle ........ .. ...
Plus: Unrealized (gain) loss on derivatives ... ..

EBITDA ... o

Item 7.

General

........ 9,240 4912 5070 12,614 17,050
........ 2947 4,098 3,273 12972 13,252
........ — 48 78 510 535
........ 7,975 228 3,733 806 1465
........ (32,883) — —_ — —
........ — — — — 2,308
11,170 1,068 — — —
....... — 448 — — —
........ (62) (123) (77) 6302 (6,239)

473 $ 8,670 $18,153 $33,747 $33.419

Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

We are an independent oil and natural gas company engaged in the acquisition, development, exploitation,
exploration and production of oil and natural gas propgrties, primarily in Texas, Louisiana and Oklahoma,
Through our RAM Energy subsidiary, we have been agtive in these core areas since 1987, Our management team
has extensive technical and operating expertise in all areas of our geographic focus,

Prior to May 8, 2006, our corporate name was Trgmisis Energy Acquisition Corporation. On May 8, 2006,
we acquired RAM Energy through the merger of our wholly owned subsidiary into RAM Energy. The merger
was accomplished pursuant to the terms of an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated October 20, 2005, as
amended, which we refer to as the merger agreement, among us, our acquisition subsidiary, RAM Energy and the

stockholders of RAM Energy. Upon completion of the

merger, RAM Energy became our wholly owned

subsidiary and we changed our name from Tremisis Energy Acquisition Corporation to RAM Energy Resources,

Inc.

Upon consummation of the merger, the stockholders of RAM Energy received an aggregate of 25,600,000

shares of our common stock and $30.0 million of cash

{ Prior to consummation of the merger, and as permitted by
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the merger agreement, on April 6, 2006, RAM Energy redeemed a portion of its outstanding stock for an
aggregate consideration of $10.0 million.

The merger is accounted for as a reverse acquisition. RAM Energy has been treated as the acquiring
company and the continuing reporting entity for accounting purposes. Upon completion of the merger, our assets
and liabilities were recorded at their fair value, which is considered to approximate historical cost, and added to
those of RAM Energy. Because we had no active business operations prior to consummation of the merger, the
merger was accounted for as a recapitalization of RAM Energy.

In December 2004, RAM Energy acquired WG Energy Holdings, Inc. for $82.6 million, which we refer to
as the WG Energy Acquisition. Upon consummation of the WG Energy Acquisition, we changed WG Energy
Holdings, Inc.’s name to RWG Energy, Inc.

On February 13, 2007, we consummated a public offering of 7,500,000 shares of our common stock and
received net proceeds of $28.1 million. The net proceeds are currently invested in short-term investments
pending our determination of the most appropriate uses for such proceeds.

Critical Accounting Policies

The preparation of our financial statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles
requires our management to make estimates and assumptions that affect our reported assets, liabilities and
contingencies as of the date of the financial statements and our reported revenues and expenses during the related
reporting period. Our actual results could differ from those estimates.

We use the full cost method of accounting for cur investment in oil and natural gas properties. Under the
full cost method of accounting, all costs of acquisition, expleoration and development of oil and natural gas
reserves are capitalized into a “full cost pool” as incurred, and costs included in the pool are amortized and
charged to operations using the future recoverable units of production method based on the ratio of current
production to total proved reserves, computed based on current prices and costs. Significant downward revisions
of quantity estimates or declines in oil and natural gas prices that are not offset by other factors could result in a
write-down for impairment of the carrying value of our oil and natural gas properties. Once incurred, a write-
down of the value of oil and gas properties is not reversible at a later date, even if quantity estimates or oil or
natural gas prices subsequently increase.

Under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 109 (“SFAS No. 109”), “Accounting for Income
Taxes,” deferred income taxes are recognized at each year end for the future tax consequences of differences
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their financial reporting amounts based on tax laws and
statutory tax rates applicable to the periods in which the differences are expected to affect taxable income. We
routinely assess the realizability of our deferred tax assets. We consider future taxable income in making such
assessments. If we conclude that it is more likely than not that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will
not be realized under accounting standards, it is reduced by a valuation allowance. However, despite our attempt
to make an accurate estimate, the ultimate utilization of our deferred tax assets is highly dependent upon our
actual production and the realization of taxable income in future periods,
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Results of Operations

Year Ended December 31, 2006 Compared to Year Bnded December 31, 2005

Revenues and Other Operating Income. Our revenues and other operating income increased by $14.8

million, or 27%, for the year ended December 31, 2006,

compared 10 the year ended December 31, 2005. The

increase was primarily a result of unrealized gains on dgrivatives, discussed below. The following table
summarizes our oil and natural gas production volumes, average sales prices and period to period comparisons,

including the effect on our oil and natural gas sales, for

the periods indicated:

Year ended
December 31, Increase
2005 2006 (Decrease)
Oil and natural gas sales {(in thousands) ........[............. $66,243  $68,015 2.7%
Production volumes:
Oi(MBbIs) . ... e e e 787 752 (4.5)%
NGL(MBbIs) ........... b 170 143 (16.1)%
Natural gas (MMcf) ....... ... . ... .0 .. oo ... 2,681 2,365 (11.8)%
Total MBoe ......... .. iieeen e b 1,403 1,290 (8.2)%

Average sale prices:
Oil(perBbl) ............ ... ...t
NGL(perBbl) ............... ...,
Natural gas (perMcf) ..................
PerBoe ... ... ... .. o il

Oil and Natural Gas Sales. Our oil and natural gas
ended December 31, 2006, as compared to the year end
prices, offset by an 8% decrease in production.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, our averag
average daily production during calendar year 2005 of ]
interest burdening our properties in our Boonsville shal

............. $5375 §$ 6382 18.7%
............. $ 3633 § 4033 11.0%
............. $ 661 § 6.02 9.00%
............. $ 4716 § 52.74 11.8%

revenues increased by $1.8 million, or 3%, for the year
ed December 31, 2005, due to a 12% increase in product

e daily production was 3,533 Boe, compared with
,848 Boe. After giving pro forma effect to a reversionary
ow gas area that vested in September 2005, which

reduced our interest in the related properties, our average daily production in 2006 decreased by four percent

{4%) compared to 2005.

For the year ended December 31, 2006, our oil pro
by 16%, and natural gas production decreased by 12%,
average realized sales price for oil was $63.82 per barre

duction decreased by 5%, our NGL production decreased
L:ompared to the year ended December 31, 2005. Our
for the year ended December 31, 2006, an increase of

19% compared to $53.75 per barrel for the year ended December 31, 2005. Our average realized NGL price for
the year ended December 31, 2006 was $40.33 per barrgl, an | 1% increase compared to $36.33 per barrel for the
year ended December 31, 2005, Our average realized natural gas price was $6.02 per Mcf for the year ended
December 31, 2006, a decrease of 9% compared to $6.6|l per Mcf for the year ended December 31, 2003.

Orher Revenues. Other revenues for the year ended December 31, 2006 decreased $211,000, or 25%,

compared 10 the year ended December 31, 2005.




Realized and Unrealized Gain (Loss) from Derivatives. For the year ended December 31, 2006, our gain
from derivatives was $1.6 million, compared to a loss of $11.7 million for the year ended December 31, 2005.
Our gains and losses during these periods were tLhe net result of recording actual contract settlements, the
premium costs paid for various derivative contracts, and unrealized mark-to-market values of RAM Energy’s
derivative contracts.

Year ended
December 31,
2005 2006
Contract settlements and premium costs:
10 $ (2,594) %$(4,349)
Natural gas . ... e e (2,799 (301)
Realized (Josses) . ... oot e (5,393) (4.650)
Mark-to-market gains (losses):
L (2,075) 1,686
Nalural gas ..o e e e {4,227) 4,553
Unrealized gains (losses) ............... ... .. .o iiia.... (6,302) 6,239
Realized and unrealized gains (JOSSes) ..ot e $(11,695) § 1,589

Oil and Natural Gas Production Taxes. Our oil and natural gas production taxes for the year ended
December 31, 2006, remained steady at $3.3 million, increasing by $9,000, or 0.3%, from the year ended
December 31, 2005. Production taxes are based on realized prices at the wellhead. As revenues from oil and
natural gas sales increase or decrease, production taxes on these sales also increase or decrease. As a percentage
of oil and natural gas sales, oil and natural gas production taxes were 4.9% for the year ended December 31,
2006, compared to 5.0% for the previous year.

Oil and Natural Gas Production Expense. Our oil and natural gas production expense was $18.3 million for
the year ended December 31, 2006, an increase of $2.2 million, or 13%, from the $16.1 million for the year
ended December 31, 2005. The increase was primarily due to increased utility costs and higher maintenance
costs due to additional producing wells. For the year ended December 31, 2006, our oil and naturai gas
production expense was $14.16 per Boe compared to $11.46 per Boe for the year ended December 31, 2005, an
increase of 24%. As a percentage of oil and natural gas sales, oil and natural gas production expense was 27% for
the year ended December 31, 2006, a 3% increase compared to the previous year.

Amortization and Depreciation Expense. Our amortization and depreciation expense increased $280,000, or
2%, for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared 10 the year ended December 31, 2005. The increase was a
result of higher capitalized costs due to increased drilling. On an equivalent basis, our amortization of the full-
cost pool of $12.6 million was $9.77 per Boe for the year ended December 31, 2006, an increase per Boe of 9%
compared to $12.5 million, or $8.93 per Boe for the year ended December 31, 2005.

Accretion Expense. SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, includes, among other
things, the reporting of the “fair value” of asset retirement obligations. Accretion expense is a function of
changes in fair value from period-to-period. We recorded $535,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006,
compared to $510,000 for the previous year.

Share-Based Compensation. Concurrent with our acquisition of RAM Energy on May 8, 2006, our Board of
Directors awarded grants of an aggregate 330,000 shares of our common stock to certain of our senior officers
and directors under our 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan. For the year ended December 31, 2006, our share-based
compensation on these grants was $2.2 million, calculated using a closing price on May 8, 2006, the day the
shares were granted, of $6.72 per share.
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On November 11, 2006, our Board of Directors ayarded grants in accordance with our 2006 Long-Term
Incentive Plan totaling 646,805 shares of our common stock to certain key employees. The $3.3 million share-
based compensation on these grants was calculated using the closing price on November 10, 2006, the grant date,
of $5.06 per share. The total share-based compensatior] will be recognized over a five year vesting period. For the
year ended December 31, 2006, we recognized a total of $91,000 share-based compensation on these grants,
bringing our total share-based compensation to $2.3 mjllion for 2006.

General and Administrative Expense. For the year ended December 31, 2006, our general and administrative
expense was $9.3 million, compared to $8.6 million fof the year ended December 31, 2003, an increase of
$690,000, or 8%.

Interest Expense. Qur interest expense increased by $4.4 million, to $17.1 million for the year ended
December 31, 2006, compared to $12.6 million incurred for the year ended December 31, 2005. During the
second quarter we charged off $1.1 million of unamortjzed costs associated with our previous credit facility and
paid prepayment premiums of $1.0 million. The remaining interest expense of $15.0 million represents an
increase of $2.4 million, or 19%, over the $12.6 mi]lioIm reported for the previcus year. This increase was due to
higher interest rates and higher outstanding indebtedness during the 2006 period.

Income Tuxes. For the year ended December 31, 2006, we recorded an income tax expense of $1.5 million,
on a pre-tax income of $6.5 million. For the year ended December 31, 2005, our income tax expense was
$806,000, on a pre-tax income of $1.3 million. The effective tax rate was 22% for 2006 and 60% for 2005. The
decrease in the effective tax rate is due to an adjustment to deferred taxes for a reduction in tax rates in Texas.

Net Income. Qur net income was $5.0 million for the year ended December 31, 2006, compared to net
income of $543,000 for the previous vear. The increasq in our net income for the year 2006 resulted from higher
product prices and gains from derivatives, partially off3et by increased production expense, share-based
compensation, and interest expense,

Year Ended December 31, 2005 Compared to Year Ended December 31, 2004

Revenues and Other Operating Income. Our revenues and other operating income increased by $25.7
million, or 87%, for the year ended December 31, 2003, compared to the year ended December 31, 2004, The
following table summarizes our oil and natural gas sales, production volumes, average sales prices and period-to-
period comparisons for the periods indicated:

Year Ended
December 31, Increase
2004 2005 (Decrease)
Oil and natural gas sales (inthousands) ............|.... ... ... o $17.975 $66,243 . 268.5%
Production volumes:
Oil (MBbls) . ... .. e 178 787 342.0%
NGL (MBDBIS) .ot e i e e et e et et 12 170 1,316.7%
Natural gas (MMcf) ... ... i e 1,928 2,681 39.0%
Total MBOE ... e 511 1,405 174.7%
Average sale prices:
Oil (perBbY) ... ... $ 3763 3% 5375 43.0%
NGLperBbl) .. ..o e 26.41 36.33 37.6%
Natural gas (perMcf) ... ... .. e 5.69 6.61 16.3%
Per Boe ... .. e 35.15 47.16 34.2%

Oil and Natural Gas Sales. Our oil and natural gas revenues were higher for the year ended December 31,
2005, as compared to the year ended December 31, 2004, with a 175% increase in production due, primarily, to
the properties included in the WG Energy Acquisition gnd a 34% increase in realized prices, both on a Boe basis.
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Our average daily production was 3.8 MBoe in the year ended December 31, 2005, compared to 1.4 MBoe
for the year ended December 31, 2004, an increase of 175%. For the year ended December 31, 2005, our oil
production increased 342%, our NGL production increased 1,317% and our natural gas production increased
39% compared to the year ended December 31, 2004. Our average realized sales price for oil was $53.75 per Bbl
for the year ended December 31, 2005, an increase of 43% compared to $37.63 per Bbl for the year ended
December 31, 2004, Our average realized NGL price for the year ended December 31, 2005, was $36.33 per Bbi
a 38% increase compared to $26.41 per Bbl for the year ended December 31, 2004, Qur average realized natural
gas price was $6.61 per Mcf for the year ended December 31, 2005, an increase of 16% compared to $5.69 per
Mcf for the year ended December 31, 2004.

]

Decreases in production shown above, excluding effects of our WG Energy Acquisition, are due primarily
to the following volumes and values of our former wholly owned subsidiary, RB Operating Company, or RBOC,
included through the end of April 2004:

Year Ended
December 31, 2004

Qil and natural gas sales (in thousands) ........................... $2,302
Production volumes:

Ol (MbIS) .. e 47

Natwralgas(MMcf) .. ..., 410
Average sale prices:

Oil (perBbl) .. ... $33.49

Nawral gas(perMcf) ......... .. ... .. i $ 568

Gain On Sale of Subsidiary. On April 29, 2004, we completed the sale of all of the outstanding capital stock
of our subsidiary, RBOC. for gross proceeds of $22.5 million. After adjustments for closing costs, we reported a
gain of $12.1 million. The assets of RBOC at the time of the sale consisted entirely of oil and natural gas
properties located in New Mexico, together with cash, accounts receivable and certain liabilities,

Other Revenues and Operating Income. Our other revenues and operating income for the year ended
December 31, 2005 increased $513,000, or 152%, over the year ended December 31, 2004 due, primarily, to an
increase in consulting service fees of approximately $200,000, sales of cilfield supplies of approximately
$100,000, and numerous other non-material items.

Realized and Unrealized Loss from Derivatives. For the year ended December 31, 2003, our loss from
derivatives was $11.7 million, compared 10 a loss of $793,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004, Our losses
during these periods were the net result of recording unrealized mark-to-market values of our contracts, the
premium costs paid for various derivative contracts, and actual contract settlements.

Year Ended
December 31,
2004 2005

Contract Settlements ... ...ttt $(690) $ (3,502)
Premium costs . ... ... i i s (180) (1,491)
Realized losses . ... ... ..ot . (870) (5,393)
Mark-to-market gains (Iosses) ............c0iiiirrnnennnn.. 77 (6,302)
Realized and unrealized losses ........ ..o iivininnnnn .. $(793)  $(11,695)

Oil and Natural Gas Production Taxes, Our oil and natural gas production taxes for the year ended
December 31, 2005, were $3.3 million, an increase of $2.0 million, or 163%, from the $1.3 million incurred for
the year ended December 31, 2004. Of the increase in production taxes for the year ended December 31, 2005,
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$2.3 million was attributable to our WG Energy Acqui
Production taxes are based on realized prices at the we
or decrease, production taxes on these sales increase or
sales, oil and natural gas production taxes were 5.0% f¢
for the year ended December 31, 2004. The reason for
Energy Acquisition, our greatest revenue source is oil §

Oil and Natural Gas Production Expense. Our oil
the year ended December 31, 2005, an increase of $12.

sition, while our production taxes decreased $300,000.
lhead. As revenues from oil and natural gas sales increase
decrease also. As a percentage of oil and natural gas

r the year ended December 31, 2005, compared to 7.0%
his decrease in percentage is because, after our WG

ales in Texas, which are taxed at a 4.6% rate.

and natural gas production expense was $16.1 million for
5 million, or 347%, from $3.6 million for the year ended

December 31, 2004. The increase of $12.8 million for
Energy Acquisition, while our oil and natural gas prod
December 31, 2005, our oil and natural gas production
for the year ended December 31, 2004, an increase of

natural gas production expense increased from 20% fo
ended December 31, 2005. The reason for the increase
that one of the major fields included in our WG Energ
Fixed costs of the shallow water-flood unit, such as pa
regulatory compliance, and maintenance account for a
account for the balance. Our management expects that
future.

he year ended December 31, 2005 was due to our WG
ction expense decreased $300,000. For the year ended
expense was $11.46 per Boe compared to $7.04 per Boe
3%. As a percentage of oil and natural gas sales, oil and
the year ended December 31, 2004, to 24% for the year
n costs, both in absolute amount and on a per Bbl basis is
Acquisition is a cost intensive, shallow water-flood unit.
roll, utilities, insurance, property and ad valorem taxes,
proximately 85% of the total operating costs. Repairs
perating costs will remain at this level for the foreseeable

Amortization and Depreciation Expense. Our amojtization and depreciation expense increased $9.7 million,

or 298%, for the year ended December 31, 2005, comp

Energy Acquisition accounted for $9.7 million of the ir

red to the year ended December 31, 2004, Our WG
crease, offset by a $200,000 decrease for RAM. On an

equivalent basis, our amortization of the full cost poo! &f $12.5 million was $8.93 per Boe for the year ended
December 31, 2005, an increase per Boe of 52% compared to $3.0 million, or $5.89 per Boe for the year ended

December 31, 2004,

Accretion Expense. SFAS No. 143, Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations, includes, among other
things, the reporting of the “fair value” of asset retiremgnt obligations. Accretion expense is a function of changes
in fair value from period-to-period, and we recorded $5/10,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005, compared

to $78,000 for the year ended December 31, 2004. The

increase of $432,000 for the year ended December 31,

2005 was due to the higher amount of the asset retiremgnt obligation attributable to our WG Energy Acquisition.

General & Administrative Expense. For the year e

rded December 31, 2005, our general and administrative

expense was $8.6 million and increased $2.0 million, of 30%, as compared with the $6.6 million reported for the
year ended December 31, 2004. This increase was due primarily to the increased costs of accounting services,
higher benefits, salaries, trave} and legal fees during the 2005 period.

Interest Expense. Our interest expense increased by $7.5 million to $12.6 million for the year ended

December 31, 2005, compared to $5.1 million for the y

bar ended December 31, 2004. This increase was

attributable to higher outstanding balances, primarily to fund the WG Energy Acquisition, and higher interest

rates during the 2005 period.

Income Taxes. For the year ended December 31, 2
effective tax rate of 60%, on pre-tax income of $1.3 mi

003, we recorded income tax expense of $806,000 an
lion. The provision for income taxes differs from the

amount computed by applying the statutory federal incgme tax rate to income before provision for income taxes.
The significant differences between pre-tax book income and taxable book income relate to non-deductible

expenses, such as unrealized losses from derivatives.

For the year ended December 31, 2004, we recorded an income tax provision of $3.7 miilion, based on an

effective tax rate of 38%, on pre-tax income of $9.8 mi

llion.
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Net Income (Loss). Qur net income was $543,000 for the year ended December 31, 2005, compared to net
income of $6.0 million for the vear ended December 31, 2004. The decrease in our net income for 2005
compared to 2004 was primarily attributable to realized losses from derivatives, increases in oil and natural gas
production expenses and taxes, amortization and depreciation expenses, interest expense and general and
administrative expenses.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

As of December 31, 2006, we had cash and cash equivalents of $6.7 million and $37.0 million was available
under our revolving credit facility. At that date, we had $132.2 million of indebtedness outstanding, including
$103.0 million under our credit facility, $28.4 million principal amount of indebtedness evidenced by RAM
Energy’'s 1 1%4% senior notes due 2008, and $0.9 million in other indebtedness. RAM Energy does not guarantee
any of our debt and we do not guarantee any debt of RAM Energy.

On February 13, 2007, we consummated a public offering of 7,500,000 shares of our common stock and
received net proceeds of $28.1 million. The net proceeds are currently invested in short-term investments
pending our determination of the most appropriate uses for such proceeds.

Credit Facility. On April 5, 2006, RAM Energy entered into a Third Amended and Restated Loan
Agreement with Guggenheim Corporate Funding, LLC, for itself and as Agent for a group of lenders. This new
facility, which we refer to as the Guggenheim facility, amended, restated and replaced a prior credit facility
known as the Foothill facility. Currently, we are not a party to, or a guarantor of obligations under, the
Guggenheim facility. As part of the transaction creating the Guggenheim facility, Foothill assigned the notes and
liens under the Foothill facility to the Agent for the lenders under the Guggenheim facility. The Guggenheim
facility includes a $150.0 million revolving credit facility of which $50.0 million was immediately available, and
a $150.0 million term loan facility of which $90.0 million was advanced at closing. The remainder of the term
loan facility may become available, subject to approval of each lender desiring to fund its proportionate share of
the additional term loan advance, for certain of the future needs of RAM Energy, including acquisitions. The
Guggenheim revolving credit facility is scheduled to mature in four years, during which time amounts may be
borrowed, repaid and re-borrowed, subject to a borrowing base limitation to be determined by the lenders. The
term loan facility is scheduled to mature in five years, with permitted prepayments after the first year, subject to a
prepayment premium in the second and third years of the term. Advances under the revolving credit facility bear
interest at LIBOR plus 2% per annum, while amounts outstanding under the term loan bear interest at LIBOR
plus 5.5% to 6.0% per annum. Obligations under the Guggenheim facility are secured by liens on substantially all
of the assets of RAM Energy and its subsidiaries. The initial advance under the Guggenheim facility was used to
refinance the Foothill facility, to pay expenses associated with establishing the Guggenheim facility, and to fund
a $10.0 million redemption payment, Subsequent advances may be used to:

* repurchase all of RAM Energy’s outstanding 11%2% senior notes due 2008 ($28.4 million principal
amount); and

* fund general working capital purposes.

The Guggenheim facility contains financial covenants requiring RAM Energy to maintain certain ratios,
including a current ratio, a ratio of earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA, to
interest expense, a ratio of total indebtedness to EBITDA, and a ratio of asset value to total indebtedness. In
addition, the Guggenheim facility contains other affirmative and negative covenants customary in lending
transactions of this nature, including the maintenance by RAM Energy of hedging contracts on not less than 50%
nor more than 85% of RAM Energy's projected oil and natural gas production from its properties on a rolling
24-month period; provided that the hedging requirements will be waived for any quarter in which RAM Energy’s
leverage ratio is less than 2.0 to 1.0.

Senior Notes. On February 24, 1998, RAM Energy issued $115.0 million principal amount of its 11%%
senior notes which mature February 15, 2008. Currently, we are not a party to, or a guarantor of, the senior notes
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or of any obligations under the indenture covering RAM Energy’s senior notes. At December 31, 2006, RAM
Energy had outstanding $28.4 million aggregate principal amount of its senior notes. The notes bear interest at an
annual rate of 11¥2%, payable semi-annually on each Febguary 15 and August 15. Pursuant to a Second
Supplemental Indenture executed in November 2002, subjstantially ali of the restrictive covenants and certain
events of default contained in the original indenture were|eliminated.

Cash Flow From Operating Activities. Our cash flow from operating activities 1s comprised of three main
items: net income (loss), adjustments to reconcile net incpme to cash provided (used) before changes in working
capital, and changes in working capital. For the year ended December 31, 2006, our net income was $5.0 million,
as compared with net income of $543,000 million for 2005. Adjustments (primarily non-cash items such as
depreciation and amortization, unrealized (gain) loss on erivatives, share-based compensation and deferred
income taxes) were $10.6 million for 2006 compared to $20.5 million for 2005, a decrease of $9.9 million.
Unrealized gain on derivatives, partially offset by share-based compensation, changes in deferred income taxes,
was the primary reason for the decrease. Working capital changes for 2006 were a positive $11.5 million
compared with negative changes of $4.6 million for 2003. For 2006, in total, net cash provided by operating
activities was $29.7 million compared to $18.4 million of net cash provided by operations for the previous year.

Cash Flow From Investing Activities. For the year ended December 31, 2006, net cash used in our investing
activities was $25.3 million, consisting of $28.1 million {n payments for oil and natural gas properties and
equipment and $812,000 in payments for other property pnd equipment, offset by $3.6 million of proceeds from
the sale of undeveloped acreage, $500,000 in proceeds fiom the sale of other property and equipment, and
$400,000 of net merger costs. The year ended December 31, 2006 reflected a 102% increase in cash used in
investing activities compared to the previous year. For 2005, net cash used in our investing activities was
$12.6 million, consisting of $13.5 million in payments fgr oil and natural gas properties and $1.5 million for
other propesty and equipment additions, offset by $2.5 njillion in proceeds from the sale of oil and natural gas

properties.

Cash Flow From Financing Activities. For 2006, net cash provided by our financing activities was $2.3
million, compared to net cash used of $6.9 million for 2005. The cash provided in 2006 included an approximate
$16.4 million net debt increase, partially offset by a stock redemption of $9.8 million, a stock repurchase of
$3.8 million and $500,000 in dividends.

Capital Commitments
We have budgeted $30.3 million for capital expenditures in 2007 related to:

» geological, geophysical and seismic costs ($2,
+ developmental drilling and re-completions ($1

+ exploratory drilling, including leasehold acqu

properties, $7.4 million to our Wolfcamp properties, $5

O million);
7.7 million); and

sitions ($9.7 million).

0,000 to our Woodford properties, $9.7 million to our

In our 2007 drilling and development budget, we have Y)locmed $4.0 million to our north Texas Barnett Shale

Electra/Burkburnett properties, $1.6 million to our Boo
properties. Our budgeted allocations may change, depey
gas, general economic conditions and other factors beyqd

During 2006, we had capital expenditures of $28.1
which $18.5 million was allocated 1o drilling new devel
$5.2 million was for acquisition costs. Our non-acquisit
approximately $23.7 million. The amount and timing of
at which we expand and develop our oil and natural gas
future acquisitions and to refinance our debt before or a

sville properties, and $4.2 million to our other
ding on our drilling success, prices for oil and natural
nd our control.

million relating to our oil and natural gas operations, of
opment wells, $4.5 million was for exploration costs, and
on capitat expenditures for the year 2006 aggregated

our capital expenditures may vary depending on the rate
properties. We may require additional financing for

t its final maturities.
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Although we cannot provide any assurance, assuming successful implementation of our strategy, including
the future development of our proved reserves and realization of our cash flows as anticipated, we believe that
borrowings available under our credit facility, the balance of our unrestricted cash and cash flows from
operations will be sufficient to satisfy our budgeted capital expenditures, working capital and debt service
obligations for the foreseeable future. The actual amount and timing of our future capital requirements may differ
materially from our estimates as a result of, among other things, changes in product pricing and regulatory,
technological and competitive developments. Sources of additional financing available to us may include
commercial bank borrowings, vendor financing and the sale of equity or debt securities. We cannot provide any
assurance that any such financing will be available on acceptable terms or at all.

The table below sets forth our contractual cash obligations as of Décember 31, 2006, which are obligations
during the following years:

Total 2007 2008-2009 2010-11 and after
(in thousands)

Contractual Cash Obligations

Long-termdebt ..................... $132,282 % 756  $28,526  $103,000 $—
Operating leases ..................... 627 359 231 37 —
Total contractual cash obligations .. ... .. $132,909 $1,115  $28,757  $103,037 $—

Item 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

The carrying amounts reported in our consolidated balance sheets for cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables and payables, installment notes and variable rate long-term debt approximate their fair vatues.

Interest Rate Risk

We are exposed to changes in interest rates. Changes in interest rates affect the interest earned on our cash
and cash equivalents and the interest rate paid on our borrowings, other than our 11Y%2% senior notes. We have
not used interest rate derivative instruments to manage our exposure to interest rate changes.

Commodity Price Risk

Our revenue, profitability and future growth depend substantially on prevailing prices for oil and natural
gas. Prices also affect the amount of cash flow available for capital expenditures and our ability to borrow and
raise additional capital. Lower prices may also reduce the amount of ¢il and natural gas that we can economically
produce. We currently sell most of our oil and natural gas production under market price coniracts.

To reduce exposure to fluctuations in oil and natural gas prices and to achieve more predictable cash flow,
we periodically utilize various derivative strategies to manage the price received for a portion of our future oil

and natural gas production. We have not established derivatives in excess of our expected production.

Our derivative positions at December 31, 2006 are shown in the following table:

Crude Oil (Bbls} Natural Gas (MMBtu)
Floors Ceilings Floors Ceilings
Per day Price Per day Price Per day Price Per day Price

Collars

2007 .......... 1,500  $52.67 1,500 $73.24 4,177 $ 748 4,177 $11.58

2008.......... 950 53.69 950 86.08 4,000 6.87 4,000 13,53
Secondary Floors

200.......... 4,000 12.00
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Crude oil contracts cover each month of 2007 and natural gas contracts are for February through December
2007. Natural gas secondary floors for 2007 are for April through October. Crude oil contracts and natural gas
contracts for 2008 are for January through December. Far 2006, we had a realized loss from our derivative
activities of approximately $4.7 million.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

Board of Directors
RAM Energy Resources, Inc.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated bal

ce sheets of RAM Energy Resources, Inc. (a

Delaware corporation) and subsidiaries (the “Company”) ds of December 31, 2006 and 2005, and the related
consolidated statements of operations, stockholders’ deficit, and cash flows for each of the three years in the
period ended December 31, 2006. These consolidated finapcial statements are the responsibility of the
Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements

based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight

Board (United States). Those standards require that we pl

and perform the audits to obtain reasonable

assurance about whether the consolidated financial stateménts are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated

financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the
made by management, as well as evaluating the overall fin
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements
the consolidated financial position of RAM Energy Resou
2003, and the consolidated results of their operations and t
ended December 31, 2006, in conformity with accounting
America.

As discussed in Note O to the consolidated financial
accounting for share-based compensation effective Januar]

fs/ UHY LLP

Houston, Texas
April 2, 2007

ccounting principles used and significant estimates
ancial statement presentation. We believe that our

referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
rces, Inc. and subsidiaries as of December 31, 2006 and
heir cash flows for each of the three years in the period
principles generally accepted in the United States of

statements, the Company changed its method of
v 1, 2006.




RAM Energy Resources, Inc.
Consolidated balance sheets

(in thousands, except share and per share amounts)

As of December 31,
2006 2005
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS:
Cash and cash equivalents . ... .. ... ... . ..ot e e $ 6721 3 70
Accounts receivable:

Oil and natural gas sales . ... ... ... i e e 6,194 7,422

Joint interest operations, net of allowance of $187 ($31 at December 31,2005) .............. 750 566

Related party .. ... e — 142

(i alaT (oL i T O A 121 —

Other, net of allowance of $33 ($13 at December 31, 2005) .. ... . oot 236 175
DB VALIVE BSSBES . o\ v v vt vt tae s e et e e e et s et e e e 677 —
e DI X PENISES . . ot 1,013 756
LT 0 =3 LR - £ — 484

Total CUITENT ASSELS . . .. .\ttt ettt e et et ettt e e e e et e et ee e e b 15,712 9,615
PROPERTIES AND EQUIPMENT, AT COST:
Oil and natural gas properties and equipment, using full costaccounting ................cuuu.. 185,284 160,704
Other property and 8qQUIPIMENTL . . .. ..ottt e e e e e e 6,098 1,276
191,382 167,980
Less accumulated amortization and depreciation . ... ... . i i e e (48,577  (36,848)
Total properties and eqUIPMENL ... ... .. e 142,805 131,132
OTHER ASSETS:
Deferred loan costs, net of accumulated amortization of $4,840 ($4,905 at December 31, 2005) ... 2.593 1,613
1 T=1 615 916
TOUAl BSSCES . . v o ot ettt e e e e e e e $161,725 $143.276
LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT
CURRENT LIABILITIES:
Accounts payabile:

1T AU DU $ 7810 § 4343

0il and natural gas proceeds due Others .. ... ...ttt i e 3,886 3,201

Related party . .. ... o e e 14 41

L1 15 31 —_
Accrued liabilities;

LT 1oL 7T L) o T 1,611 749

T 21 U 3,849 1,745

E YTy IR P - R 223 146

Derivative Habilities ... . .. e e e — 3,510

Long-term debt due withinone year ... ... o 756 560
Total current Babilities .. .. . . i i i e e it e 18,180 14,295
OIL & NATURAL GASPROCEEDS DUEOTHERS . ... ... . i 2,481 1,972
LONG-TERM DEBT ... i e ettt e et e ettt et aa s taea e 131,481 112,286
DEFERRED AND OTHER NON-CURRENT INCOMETAXES . ... .. i iie e 26,677 25,300
ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATION ... .. i et it i 10,801 10,192
COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES .. ... e e e e — —
STOCKHOLDERS’ DEFICIT:
Common stock, $0.0001 par value, 100,000,000 and 30,000,000 shares authorized, 33,630,000 and

7,700,000 shares issued, 33,439,530 and 7,700,000 cutstanding at December 31, 2006 and 2003,

e oL ) 3 1
Additional paid-incapital ... ... .. . e e 2,308 95
Treasury stock—=837,275 Shares At COSL . ... ..ttt ittt e a e (3,768) —
Accumulated deflCit . ... . . e e e e (26,438) (20,865)
Stockholders” defIeit . ... vt i e e e e e e (27,895)  (20,769)

Total liabilities and stockholders” deficit ..., ... v ii i i e i et i $161,725 $143,276

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RAM Energy Re¢
Consolidated statems

(in thousands, except share

'sources, Inc.

ents of operations

and per share amounts)

Years ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
REVENUES AND OTHER OPERATING INCOME:
Oiland natural gas safes ........ ..ol $ 68015 $ 66243 $ 17975
Gainonsaleof subsidiary .............. .. o oot — — 12,139
Oher ..t e e 640 851 338
Realized and unrealized gains (losses) from derivatives | .......... 1,589 (11,695) (793)
Total revenues and other operating income ....... 0. ......... 70,244 55,399 29,659
OPERATING EXPENSES:
Oil and natural gas productiontaxes ...............1 ... .onts 3,329 3,320 1,263
Oil and natural gas production expenses . ........... b 18,266 16,099 3,600
Depreciation and amortization .......... ... oot 13,252 12,972 3,213
ACCTEHION EXPETISE . ... ..ottt et ona oo 535 510 78
Share-based compensation ............... ... il 2,308 — —
General and administrative, overhead and other expenses, net of
operator’s overhead fees .. ... ... .o i 9,300 8,610 6,601
Total Operating eXpPenses ... ...verr e fon s 46,990 41,511 14,815
Operating iNCOME . ... ... it amaaa s 23,254 13,888 14,844
OTHER INCOME (EXPENSE):
INLETESL EXPENSE L oo cvie ittt et in et (17,050) (12,614) (5,070)
INterestinCOmE . ... i it e e 309 75 35
INCOME BEFORE INCOMETAXES ..............[. ...t 6,513 1,349 9,809
INCOME TAX PROVISION ... ... b, 1,465 806 3,733
NELINCOIME . ..ot et ottt e et e it ieeaeaera b $ 5048 % 543 § 6,076
BASIC EARNINGSPERSHARE ........ ... ... .. .looiiit, $ 021 § 007 % 1.06
BASIC WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES QUTSTANDING ....... 24,347,607 7,700,000 5,739,057
DILUTED EARNINGS PERSHARE ...............fcovvnoen $ 020 § 007 % 1.06
DILUTED WEIGHTED AVERAGE SHARES QUTSTANDING .... 25,658,711 7,700,000 5,739,057

The accompanying notes are an integral part|of these consolidated financial statements.
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RAM Energy Resources, Inc.

Consolidated statements of stockholders’ deficit
Years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004

{In thousands, except share amounts)

Common Stock Ag:il(til-t}?ial Treasury Accumulated
Shares Amount Capital Stock Deficit Total
BALANCE, January 1,2004 ,.......,,. -— $— $ 114 § — 3(19,768)  (19,654)
Netificome .. ..ot e -— —_ — —_ 6,076 6,706
Dividends declared .. ............... —_ — — _— (1,2000 (1,200
Issuance of Common Stock to Initial
Shareholders .................... 1,375,000 — _ —_ —_ —
Sale of 6,325,000 Units and
Underwriters Option, net of
underwriters discount and offering
EXPENSES .. ...\t 6,325,000 ! —_ —_ — 1
Purchase and cancellation of common
shares and outstanding options ........ — — 19 — (5,116) (5,135)
BALANCE, December 31,2004 ........ 7,700,000 1 95 — (20,008) (19,912)
Netincome ...............cc...... — —— — —_ 543 543
Dividendsdeclared ................. —_ — — — {1,400} (1,400)
BALANCE, December 31,2005 ........ 7,700,000 1 95 —_ (20,865) (20,769}
Netincome ........ ... ... - — — — 5,048 5,048
Dividendsdeclared ................. — — — —_ {500) {500)
Stock redemption & cancellation ... ... .. — — 95) — (9,697) (9,792)
Issuance of shares and restatement of
equity relating to merger with Ram
Energy, Inc., net of merger costs ... ... 25,600,000 2 — — (424) {422)
Repurchase of stock .................. —_ — — (3,768) — (3,768)
Share-based compensation ............. 330,000 — 2,308 — —_ 2,308
BALANCE, December 31,2006 ........ 33,630,000 § 3 $2,308  $(3,768) $(26,438) $(27.89%)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RAM Energy R
Consolidated statem!

(in thou

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
NetinCome .. .. oot e it es
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided
operating activities—
Depreciation and amortization .. ..................
Amortization of deferred loan costs and Senior Notes di
Write off of loan fees due to debt refinancing ........
ACCTENION EXPENSE - . ..ottt in e enaeen
Gain on sale of subsidiary ................ ... 0.
Provisions for doubtful accounts ..................
Unrealized (gain) loss on derivatives .. .............
Derivative premiums net of amortization ......... ..
Deferred income taxes ............. o iiiinanay
Share-based compensation .. .......... ... ...
Gain on disposal of other property and equipment . ...
Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of acquis
Accounts receivable . ........... .. ... .
Prepaid expenses and other assets ..............
Accountspayable .. ........ . ... .. . Ll
Accrued liabilities .......... .. ... .o ool
Income taxes payable ................. ... . ...
Gas balancing liability .......................

Total adjustments .........................

Net cash provided by operating activities .. ..

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:

Payments for il and natural gas properties and equipmen
Proceeds from sales of oil and natural gas properties ...
Payments for other property and equipment ..........
Proceeds from sales of other property and equipment . . .
Payments of mergercosts .........................
Cashacquiredinmerger................vaon..
RWG acquisition, net of cash acquired ..............
Proceeds from the sale of subsidiary ................
Proceeds from short-term investments .. .............

Net cash used in investing activities ........

Esources, Inc.
ents of cash flows

ands)

Years ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
$ 5048 § 543 % 6,076
13,252 12,972 3,273
988 839 492
1,055 — —
335 510 78
— — (12,139
— — 385
(6,239) 6,302 (1,569)
— 634 45
1,311 1,199 (3,159)
2,308 — —
(142) — (1)
1,012 (2,608) (18)
229 (143) 342
4,173 (165) (67)
6,025 (1,331) 1,556
105 (393) 6,892
— — (393)
24,612 17.816 (4.283)
29,660 18,359 1,793
(28,145) (13,528) (5,900}
3,565 2,471 320
812) (1,497 (205)
461 — 38
{4,187} — —
3,801 — —
— — (82,577
— — 21,791
— — 1,681
(25,317) 12,554y (64,852)




RAM Energy Resources, Inc.
Consolidated statements of cash flows

(in thousands)

Years ended December 31,

2008 2004

(15,615) (18,234)
10,670 88,585
(565)  (1,500)
— (5,135)
(1,400)  (1,600)

{6,910) 62,116

(1,105) 943
1,175 2,118

$ 70 % 1,175

$ 20 $ 300

$ 3,297 § 4,285

2006
FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Payments on long-termdebt ... ... ... ... .. ..., (88,094)
Proceeds from borrowings on long-termdebt . ... ................ ... ... 107,443
Payments fordeferred loan costs . . ... ... vt c e e e (2,981
Stock redemplion .. ... . .ot (9,792)
Stockrepurchased . ..... ... oo e e {3,768)
Dividends paid . ... ... (500)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities .............. 2,308

INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ... ..... 6,651
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, beginningof year ................. 70
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS,endofyear. . ..................... $ 6,721
SUPPLEMENTAL CASH FLOW INFORMATION:

Cash pajd forincome taxes ....... ... oiriiir i, $ 124

Cashpaid forinterest . ......... ... ... . i, $ 10,080
DISCL.OSURE OF NON CASH INVESTING AND FINANCING

ACTIVITIES:

Accrued interest added to principal balance of credit facility . ............ $ 2,848

$ 8093 § 554

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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RAM Ene

rgy Resources, Inc.

Notes to consolidated financial statements

December 31, 2006 and 2005

A—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNT
PRESENTATION

1. Nature of Operations and Organization

On May 8, 2006, Tremisis Energy Acquisition
through the merger of a subsidiary of Tremisis into

ING POLICIES, ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF

Corporation, or Tremisis, acquired RAM Energy, Inc.
RAM Energy, Inc. The merger was accomplished pursuant to

the terms of an Agreement and Plan of Merger dated October 20, 2005, as amended, among Tremisis, its

subsidiary, RAM Energy, Inc. and the stockholders

of RAM Energy, Inc. Upon completion of the merger, RAM

Energy, Inc. became a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tremisis and Tremisis changed its name to RAM Energy

Resources, Inc.

Tremisis was formed in February 2004 to effect a merger, capital stock exchange, asset acquisition or other

similar business combination with an unidentified o

perating business in either the energy or the environmental

industry. Prior to the consummation of the merger, Tremisis did not engage in an active trade or business.

Prior to the merger, RAM Energy, Inc. was a ptivately held, independent oil and natural gas company

engaged in the acquisition, exploration, exploitation
production of oil and natural gas.

Upon consummation of the merger, the stockhd
25,600,000 shares of Tremisis common stock and $]

and development of oil and natural gas properties and the

Iders of RAM Energy, Inc. received an aggregate of
0.0 million of cash. The merger agreement provided, among

other things, that, prior to the consummation of the merger, RAM Energy, Inc. was entitled to either pay its
stockholders a one-time extraordinary dividend or effect one or more redemptions of a portion of its outstanding
stock, although the aggregate amount of such cash payments to the RAM Energy, Inc. stockholders could not

exceed the difference between $40.0 million and the
in the merger. On April 6, 2006, RAM Energy, Inc.
consideration of $10.0 million.

aggregate amount of cash they would receive from Tremisis
redeemed a portion of its outstanding stock for an aggregate

The merger has been accounted for as a reverse acquisition. Because Tremisis had no active business

operations prior to consummation of the merger, the

merger has been accounted for as a recapitalization of RAM

Energy, Inc. and RAM Energy, Inc. has been treated| as the acquirer and continuing reporting entity for

accounting purposes. The assets and liabilities of Tr
value, which is considered to approximate historical

The Company operates exclusively in the upstr

:misis were recorded, as of completion of the merger. at fair
cost, and added 1o those of RAM Energy, Inc.

tamn segment of the oil and gas industry with activities

including the drilling, completion, and operation of ¢il and gas wells. The Company conducts the majority of its
operations in the states of Texas, Louisiana, Oklahoma and New Mexico.

2. Principles of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany balances gnd transactions have been eliminated.

3. Properties and Equipment

The Company follows the full cost method of agcounting for oil and natural gas operations. Under this
method all productive and nonproductive costs incurred in connection with the acquisition, exploration, and
development of oil and natural gas reserves are capitalized. No gains or losses are recognized upon the sale or
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other disposition of oil and natural gas properties except in transactions that would significantly alter the
relationship between capitalized costs and proved reserves.

Under the full cost method the net book value of oil and natural gas properties, less related deferred income
taxes, may not exceed the estimated after-tax future net revenues from proved oil and natural gas properties,
discounted at 10% (the ceiling limitation). In arriving at estimated future net revenues, estimated lease operating
expenses, development costs, and certain production-related and ad valorem taxes are deducted. In calculating
future net revenues, prices and costs in effect at the time of the calculation are held constant indefinitely, except
for changes that are fixed and determinable by existing contracts. The net book value is compared to the ceiling
limitation on a quarterly and yearly basis. The excess, if any, of the net book value above the ceiling limitation is
charged to expense in the period in which it occurs and is not subsequently reinstated. Reserve estimates used in
determining estimated future net revenues have been prepared by an independent petroleum engineer.

The Company has capitalized internal costs of approximately $2,303,000, $1,778,000, and $596,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively. Such capitalized costs include salaries and related
benefits of individuals directly involved in the Company’s acquisition, exploration and development activities
based on the percentage of their time devoted to such activities. . '

Other property and equipment consists principally of furniture and equipment and leasehold improvements.
Other property and equipment and related accumulated amortization and depreciation are relieved upon
retirement or sale and the gain or loss is included in operations. Renewals and replacements that extend the
useful life of property and equipment are treated as capital additions. Accumulated depreciation of other property
and equipment at December 31, 2006 and 2005 is approximately $3,375,000 and $4,246,000, respectively.

In accordance with the impairment provisions of Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS)
No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets, the Company assesses the
recoverability of the carrying value of its non-oit and gas long-lived assets when events occur that indicate an
impairment in value may exist. An impairment loss is indicated if the sum of the expected undiscounted future
net cash flows is less than the carrying amount of the assets. If this occurs, an impairment loss is recognized for
the amount by which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the estimated fair value of the asset. No
impairments were recorded in 2006, 2005, or 2004,

4. Depreciation and Amortization

All capitatized costs of oil and natural gas properties and equipment, including the estimated future costs to
develop proved reserves, are amortized using the unit-of-production method based on total proved reserves.
Depreciation of other equipment is computed on the straight line method over the estimated useful lives of the
assets, which range from three to ten years. Amortization of leasehold improvements is computed based on the
straight-line method over the term of the associated lease or estimated useful life, whichever is shorter.

5. Naturgl Gas Sales and Gas Imbalances

Natural gas imbalances are generated on properties for which two or more owners have the right to take
production *“in-kind” and, in doing so, take more or less than their respective entitled percentage.

The Company follows the entitlement method of accounting for natural gas sales, recognizing as revenues
only its net interest share of all production sold. Any amount attributable to the sale of production in excess of or
less than the Company’s net interest is recorded as a gas balancing assel or liability. At December 31, 2006, the
Company’s net underproduced position was approximately 175,000 Mcf with an associated asset of
approximately $262,000, which is recorded in other assets on the consolidated balance sheet. At December 31,
2005, the Company’s net underproduced position was approximately 162,000 Mcf with an associated asset of
approximately $237.000.
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6. Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid unrestricted investments with a maturity of three months or less when purchased are

considered to be cash equivalents.

7. Credit and Market Risk

The Company sells oil and natural gas to v'f:lous customers and participates with other parties in the

drilling, completion and operation of oil and na

ral gas wells. Joint interest and oil and natural gas sales

receivables related to these operations are generplly unsecured. In 2006, approximately 75% of total revenues

were to two customers (73% to two customers i
comprising 62% and 13% (55% and 18% in 200

In 2006 and 2005 the Company had cash dg

insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corpo
banks and has experienced no losses on these ac

8. Deferred Loan Costs

2005 and 52% to four customers in 2004), with sales to each
5 and 23%, 11%, 10% and 8% in 2004) of total revenues.

eposits in certain banks that at times exceeded the maximum
tation. The Company monitors the financial condition of the
counts.

Deferred loan costs are stated at cost net oflamortization computed using the straight-line method over the

term of the related loan agreement, which appro

The estimated future amortization expense

kimates the interest method.

Is as follows (in thousands):

2007 L e e e $784
2008 .. b e 3677
2009 L e 3668
2000 .. e $390

9. General and Administrative Expense

The Company receives fees for the operatian of jointly owned oil and natural gas properties and records
such reimbursements as reductions of general and administrative expense. Such fees totaled approximately

$271,000, $228,000, and $212,000 for the years

10. Use of Estimates

ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively.

The preparation of financial statements in cpnformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the

United States of America requires management
amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure

o make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial

statements and the reported amounts of revenueq and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could
differ from those estimates. Estimates and assunptions that, in the opinion of management of the Company are
significant include oil and natural gas reserves, amortization relating to oil and natural gas properties, asset

retirement obligations, and income taxes.

11. Fair Value of Financial Instruments

Cash and cash equivalents, trade receivable
reported on the consolidated balance sheets appry
instruments.

Credit Facility: The carrying amount report
because this debt instrument carries a variable in

s and pavables, and installment notes: The carrying amounts
pximate fair value due to the short-term nature of these

ed on the consolidated balance sheets approximates fair value
terest rate based on market interest rates.
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Senior Notes: The carrying amount reported on the consolidated balance sheets is approximately $710,000
below fair value at December 31, 2006 based upon management’s estimates. Management bases its estimate on

information from the bond underwriters on current bids for the Company’s senior notes.

Derivative contracts: The carrying amount reported on the consolidated balance sheets is the fair value of

the contracts based upon commedity futures prices for similar contracts.

12, Reclassifications

Certain reclassifications of previously reported amounts for 2005 and 2004 have been made to conform to

the 2006 presentation. These reclassifications had no effect on net income or loss.

13, Derivatives

The Company applies the provisions of SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging
Activities, as amended. SFAS No. 133 requires companies to recognize all derivative instruments as either assets

or liabilities in the statement of financial position at fair value.

The Company entered into numerous derivative contracts to reduce the impact of oil and natural gas price
fluctuations and as required by the terms of its credit facility (see Note K). The Company did not designate these
transactions as hedges as required by SFAS No. 133 in order to receive hedge accounting treatment. Accordingly,
all gains and losses on the derivative instruments during 2006, 2005 and 2004 have been recorded in the

statements of operations,

14. Earnings per Common Share

Basic earnings per share ar¢ computed by dividing net income by the weighted average number of common
shares outstanding for the period. Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if
dilutive stock options were exercised, calculated using the treasury stock method. A reconciliation of net income
and weighted average shares used in computing basic and diluted net income per share is as follows for the years

ended December 31 (in thousands, except share and per share amounts):

2005 2004

$ 543 § 6,076

7,700,000 5,739,057

$ 007 § 1.06

$ 543 % 6,076

7,700,000 5,739,057

7,700,000 5,739,057

2006
BASIC INCOME PER SHARE:
NetinCOME ..ttt it e e e e e e e e . $ 5,048
Weighted averageshares ............ ..o iiiiniinn.. 24,347,607
Basic netincome pershare ............... ... .. ... . ..., $ 0.21
DILUTED INCOME PER SHARE:
N IMCOMIE .. ottt it e e et ettt et 3 5,048
Weighted average shares—basic . ........ ... ... .. .. ... 24,347,607
Dilutive effect of unvested stock grants ....................... 92,148
Dilutive effect of warrants . ... ...t i 1,218,956
Weighted average shares assuming dilutive effect of stock
OPLIONS ...t tie  eeeeeee 25,658,711
Diluted netincome pershare . .. ..., ... ... iiiirreriininns $ 0.20

$ 007 % 1.06

Diluted earnings per share does not include 825,000 shares of our common stock issuable upon the exercise
of currently exercisable options to purchase 275,000 units at an exercise price of $9.90 per unit, each unit
consisting of one share of our common stock and two warrants, each warrant to purchase one share of our
common stock at an exercise price of $6.26 per share. These shares are anti-dilutive for all periods presented.
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15. Asset Retirement Obligations

The Company accounts for asset retirement obligations in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) No. 143 Accounting for Asset Retirement Obligations. SFAS No. 143 addresses financial
accounting and reporting for obligations associated with the retirement of tangible long-lived assets and the
associated asset retirement costs. SFAS No. 143 requirges that the fair value of a liability for an asset retirement
obligation be recognized in the period in which it is indurred if a reasonable estimate of fair value can be made,
and that the associated asset retirement costs be capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the long-lived asset.

The Company recorded accretion expense of approximately $535,000, $510,000, and $78,000 in 2006, 2005, and
2004, respectively.

The Company recorded the following activity related to the asset retirement obligation for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands):

2006 2005
Liability for asset retirement obligations, beginning of year .. .............. $10,192  § 6,656
Accretionexpense . ... ... oo e 535 510
Obligations for new wells drilled or new estimates) . ...................... 283 3,177
Obligations for wells soldorretired .......... .| ... ... ... .. ... ....... (209) asmn
Liability for asset retirement obligations, endofyear . .................... $10,801  $10,192

16, Income Taxes

The Company accounts for income taxes under the
tax liabilities and assets are determined based on the dif]
assets and liabilities using enacted rates expected to be i
reverse.

17. Revenue Recognition

liability method as prescribed by SFAS 109. Deferred
ference between the financial statement and tax bases of
n effect during the year in which the bases differences

Revenues associated with sales of 0il and natural g¢ts are recorded when title passes to the customer, net of

royalties, discounts and allowances, as applicable. Revew

which we have an interest with other producers are gene
working interest (entitlement method).

18. Share-Based Compensation

ues from natural gas production from properties in
rally recognized on the basis of the Company’s met

Effective January 1, 2006, the Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment,
for its share-based compensation plan. Refer 10 Note O for a discussion of the Company’s share-based

compensation expense.

19. New Accounting Pronouncements

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB™) issued FASB Interpretation No. 48,
“Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes—an interpretation of FASB Statement No. 109" (“FIN 48),
which clarifies the accounting for uncertainty in income tax positions. FIN 48 requires that the Company

recognize in the consolidated financial statements the impact of a tax position that is more likely than not to be
sustained upon examination based on the technical meritg of the position. The provisions of FIN 48 will be
effective for the Company as of the beginning of the year;2007, with the cumulative effect of the change in
accounting principle recorded as an adjustment to opening retained earnings. The Company is currently
evaluating the impact, if any, from the adoption of FIN 48.

In September 2006, the Securities and Exchange Commission (“SEC”) issued SAB No. 108 which provides

guidance on quantifying and evaluating the materiality o

flunrecorded misstatements, SAB 108 is effective for

annual financial statements covering the fiscal years ending on or after November 15, 2006. SAB 108 requires
that a company use both the “iron curtain” and “rollover” approaches when quantifying misstatement amounts.
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The determination that an error is material in a current year that includes prior-year effects may result in the need
to correct prior-year financial statements, even if the misstatement in the prior year or years is considered
immaterial. When companies correct prior-year financial statements for immaterial errors, SAB 108 does not
require previously filed reports to be amended. Such correction may be made the next time the company files the
prior year financial statements. The Company does not currently believe there are any errors which would
materially impact prior-year financial statements.

In September 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board issued SFAS No. 157 “Fair Value
Measurements” (“SFAS No. 157"}, which defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and expands disclosures about fair value measurements. SFAS
No. 157 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning on or after November 15, 2007,
SFAS No. 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value measurements,
however, it does not require any new fair value measurements. In some instances, the application of SFAS
No. 157 will change current accounting practices. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of adopting
SFAS No. 157.

B—WG ENERGY ACQUISITION

The Company completed the WG Energy Acquisition on December 17, 2004, The final adjusted purchase
price was $82.6 million, including the assumption and payment of WG’s long-term debt of $24.5 million, the
settlement of all outstanding derivative instruments of $14.4 million, and the balance (excluding the escrow) of
$32.7 million was paid in cash. $11.0 million of the purchase price was deposited in two separate escrow
accounts to provide funds against which the Company may have made claims for any subsequently determined
breach by WG of representations and warranties in the merger agreement and for potential losses that may have
arisen in connection with certain litigation against WG that existed at that time. Subsequently, the Company
collected claims of $250,000 and the balance of the escrow accounts were released. The acquisition was financed
with an existing credit facility. WG’s principal assets are producing oil properties located in north Texas, a gas
plant and a significant block of undeveloped deep rights in held-by-production leases.

The WG Energy Acquisition was accounted for using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with
SFAS No. 141, Business Combinations, and the purchase price has been allocated based on the estimated fair
value of the individual assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the date of acquisition.

The assets acquired and purchase price allocation of the WG Energy Acquisition is as follows (in
thousands):

O 1]y A0 L = (OO $ 5437
QOil and natural gas properties .. ... ... . ... . it i e 97,243
Current liabilites .. ... i e e et (4,233)
7Y 1 N (340)
Asset retirement obligations . .......... . . i i e (4,661}
Defermed taXes .« ..o it e e e (10,869)
$ 82,577

The results of operations for the WG Energy Acquisition have been included in the consolidated statements
of operations from the date of acquisition. The following unaudited pro forma information is presented as if the
acquisition had occurred at the beginning of the periods presented (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Year ended
December 31,
2004
Revenues and other operating income . .......... ... .. .. oo $ 49,792
N LO8S o ettt e et e e et e e e $  (5,040)
Basic and diluted loss pershare .......... ... . i, $(1,977.25)




C—SALE OF SUBSIDIARY

On April 23, 2004 the Company entered into a sto¢

k sale agreement with Range Energy I, Inc. to sell all of

the issued and outstanding shares of common capital stock of RB Operating Company (RBOC), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. The transaction closed on April 29, 2004 for a purchase price of $22.5 million,
subject to customary post-closing adjustments. The Company received proceeds of $21.8 million, net of
transaction costs of $363,000 and cash paid of $814,00 l) from the sale, of which $17.9 million was used to pay

the remaining balance on an existing credit facility.

With this sale the Company sold approximately 27
significantly altered the relationship between the Comp.
recognized a gain on the sale of $12.1 million.

Although the Company sold a wholly-owned subsi
transaction and the assets included in the subsidiary con
Mexico that were carved out of another RAM entity. Th
other oil and gas properties, including oil and gas prope
hydrocarbons and similar economic characteristics as th
part of a larger cash-flow-generating product group and

% of its proved oil and natural gas reserves. As this
any's capitalized costs and proved reserves, the Company

diary, the subsidiary was formed solely to effect this
sisted solely of oil and gas properties located in New

at RAM entity continues to hold and operate significant
ties located in New Mexico, which have similar quality
pse properties sold. Because the net assets of RBOC were
in the aggregate, did not represent a group that on their

own would be a component of the Company, the conditions in Statement of Financial Accounting Standard

No. 144, Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of |
the sale of RBOC in discontinued operations were not m

D—LONG-TERM DEBT

Long-term debt at December 31 consists of the foll

11.5% Senior Notes due 2008, net of discount . . . |
Creditfacility .. ............. ... .. .. ...,
Installment loan agreements ..................

Less amount due within one year

Long-Lived Assets for reporting the gain associated with
et.

pwing (in thousands):

2006 2005
..................... 3 28351 § 28309
..................... 103,000 83,897
..................... 886 640
132,237 112,846
..................... 756 560
5131,481  $112,286

The amount of required principal payments for the next five years and thereafter, as of December 31, 2006,

is as follows (in thousands): 2007—$756; 2008—3$28 45
thereafter—none.

1. Senior Notes

In February 1998 the Company completed the sale
public offering of which $28.4 million remained outstand
are senior unsecured obligations of the Company and are
part, at any time on or after February 15, 2005, at prices {
scheduled maturity in 2008.

The indenture under which the Senior Notes were is
that limited (i) incurrence of additional indebtedness and
payments, (iii) dividends and other payments affecting sy

9; 2009—3$22; 2010—%13,000; 201 1— $90,000 and

f $115.0 million of 11.5% Senior Notes due 2008 in a
ing at December 31, 2006 and 2005. The Senior Notes
redeemable at the option of the Company in whole or in
anging from 111.5% to 103.8% of face amount to their

sued contained certain covenants, including covenants
issvances of disqualified capital stock, (ii) restricted
bsidiaries, (iv) transactions with affiliates and outside

directors’ fees, (v) asset sales, (vi) liens, (vii) lines of business, (viii) merger, sale or consolidation and

(ix) non-refundable acquisition deposits.




In November 2002 the Company recognized a gain (net of unamortized deferred offering and original issue
discount costs and transaction fees) of $32.9 million as a result of the purchase of $63.475 million face amount of
the Senior Notes. The Senior Notes, plus accrued interest of $1.988 million, were purchased at 46% of face
amount and were canceled by the Company. The Company utilized borrowings under its revolving credit
agreement and available cash to purchase the Senior Notes.

In connection with the Company’s November 2002 purchase of the Senior Notes, the indenture was
amended to eliminate the covenant limitations described above.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005 the unamortized original issue discount associated with the Notes totaled
approximately $45,000 and $87,000, respectively.

2. Revolving Credit Facility

On April 5, 2006, RAM Energy, Inc. obtained a $300.0 million senior secured credit facility, consisting of a
$150.0 million, five-year term loan facility and a $150.0 million four-year revolving credit facility. RAM Energy
Resources, Inc. is not a party to or a guarantor of obligations under this credit facility.

At closing, $50.0 million of the revolving credit facility was immediately available, and $90.0 mitlion of the
term loan was advanced. The remainder of the term loan facility will be available, subject to approval of the
lenders, for certain future needs, including acquisitions. The revolving credit facility will mature in April, 2010,
during which time amounts may be borrowed and repaid as often as needed, subject to a borrowing base
limitation that is re-determined semi-annually, based on oil and gas reserves. The term loan facility will mature
in April, 2011, with permitted prepayments after the first year, subject to a prepayment premium in the second
and third years of the term. Advances under the revolving credit facility will bear interest at LIBOR plus 2% per
annum, while amounts outstanding under the term loan will bear interest at LIBOR plus 5.5% to 6.0% per
annum. Obligations under the credit facility are secured by a first lien on substantially all of the assets of RAM
Energy, Inc. and its subsidiaries. The initial advance under the credit facility was used to refinance the previous
credit facility, and to fund the pre-merger redemption payment permitied by the merger agreement. Subsequent
advances may be used to:

+ repurchase all of RAM Energy, Inc.’s outstanding 11.5% senior notes ($28.4 million principal amount);
and

« for general working capital purposes.

The credit facility contains financial covenants requiring RAM Energy, Inc. to maintain certain ratios,
including a current ratio, a ratio of earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortization, or EBITDA, to
interest expense, a ratio of total indebtedness to EBITDA, and a ratio of asset value to total indebtedness. In
addition, the credit facility contains other affirmative and negative covenants customary in lending transactions
of this nature, including the maintenance by RAM Energy, Inc. of hedging contracts for a minimum and
maximum amount of projected oil and natural gas production from its properties. The Company was in
compliance with all covenants as of December 31, 2006.

E—SUBSIDIARY GUARANTORS

RAM Energy Resources, Inc. is not a party to, or a guarantor of obligations under, RAM Energy, Inc.’s
outstanding 11.5% senior notes due 2008. RAM Energy Inc.’s senior notes are fully and unconditionally
guaranteed, jointly and severally, on a senior unsecured basis, by all current and future subsidiaries of RAM
Energy, Inc. which are referred to as the “Subsidiary Guarantors”. The following table sets forth condensed
consolidating financial information of the Subsidiary Guarantors. Currently there are no restrictions on the ability
of the Subsidiary Guarantors to transfer funds to RAM Energy Inc. in the form of cash dividends, loans or
advances.
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The following represents the condensed consolidat|

(“Parent”), RAM Energy Inc. and its subsidiaries at December 31, 2006 and 2005 (in thousands):

December 31, 2006

Current assets ..............eiriuniennns
Property and equipment,net . ..............
Investment in subsidiaries . ................
Other assets

Total assets

Current liabilities
Long-termdebt .........................
Other non-current Habilities ...............
Deferred income taxes and other non-current
income taxes

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
(deficit)

December 31, 2005

Current assets ............ccceveneeen,,.
Property and equipment,net ...............
Investment in subsidiares ... ..............
Other assets

Total assets

Current liabilities
Long-termdebt .........................
Other non-current Habilities ...............
Deferred income taxes and other non-current
income taxes

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity
(deficit)

ng balance sheets for RAM Energy Resources, Inc.

Total
RAM Energy, Subsidiary Consolidating Consr?lidaled
Parent Inc. Guarantors  Adjustments Amounts
$ 1464 3 3,044 3 34113 $(22909) § 15,712
4 13,780 129,021 — 142,805
(30,723) 42,684 —_— (11,961) —
| 3,069 138 — 3,208
$(29,2 b4) $62,577  $163,272 $(34,870) $161,725
$ 1,19 $ 30,379 $ 9519 $(22909) % 18,180
— 48,945 82,536 — 131,481
— 3,339 9,943 — 13,282
(2,550) 10,637 18,590 — 26,677
(1,359) 93,300 120,588 (22,909) 189,620
(27,895) (30,723) 42,684 (11,961) (27,895)
$(29,2Sj4_) 362,577 $163,272 $(34,870) $161,725
Total
RAM Energy, Subsidiary Consolidating Consolidated
Parent Inc. Guarantors  Adjustments Amounts
£ $ 3,355 $ 26527 $(20267) $ 9615
—_ 14,167 116,965 —_ 131,132
-_ 27,324 — (27.324) —_
— 2,395 134 — 2,529
5 — $ 47,241 $143,626  $(47,591) $143,276
5 — $ 28,713 $ 5,849 520,267y  § 14,295
— 29,767 82,519 — 112,286
— 3,038 9,126 — 12,164
— 6,492 18,808 — 25,300
— 68,010 116,302 (20,267) 164,045
_ (20,769 27,324 (27,324) (20,769)
5 — $ 47,241 $143.626  $(47,591) $143,276
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The following represents the condensed consolidating statements of operations and statements of cash flows
for RAM Energy Resources, Inc. (“Parent”), RAM Energy Inc. and its subsidiaries for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004 (in thousands):

Total
RAM Energy, Subsidiary Consolidating Cons:lidated
Parent Inc. Guarantors  Adjustments Amounts
Year ended December 31, 2006
Operaling revenues . .........c.c.ovueervaenns $ (M §$9327 $60924 § — $ 70,244
Operating eXpenses .. ........oeeeeennenn. 4,448 6,010 36,532 — 46,990
Operating income (loss) ................... (4,453) 3,317 24,392 — 23,254
Otherexpense ... ... ... .. ....iiiivunnn 6,919 3,599 (8,702) (18,557) (16,741)
Income (loss) before income taxes ........... 2,464 6,916 15,690 (18,557) 6,513
Incometaxes ........cineiin e (2,584) 61 3,988 — 1,465
Net income (-Ioss) ........................ $ 5,048 $ 6,855 $ 11,702 $(18,557) § 5,048
Cash flows (used in) provided by operating
AcVItiES .. ... e $ (268) $ 23815 $27990 $ — $ 30,537
Cash flows (used in) investing activities ...... (389) (2,116) (22,812) — (25,317
Cash flows provided by (used in) financing
actvIlES .. ... i 2,004 (567) (6} — 1,431
Increase in cash and cash equivalents ......... 1,347 132 5,172 — 6,651
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year .. — 617 (547) — 70
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ....... $1,347  § 749 $ 4025 § — 3 6721
Total
RAM Energy, Subsidiary Consolidating Consolidated
Parent Inc. Guarantors  Adjustments Amounts
Year ended December 31, 2005
Operating reVenues . ..........c..vvuveenn. $ — $(2,064) $57463 § — $ 55,399
Operating eXpenses . .........oovivnreren-. — 6,948 34,563 — 41,511
Operating income (loss) ................... —_ (9,012) 22,900 — 13,888
Other EXpense . ........ovvvrunninnreneenns — 2,477 (7.171) (7,845) (12,539
Income (loss) before income taxes .. ......... — (6,535) 15,729 (7,845) 1,349
[INCOME LAXES .« o ot v et i em e eeen e —_ (7,078) 7.884 806
Netincome (108S) ...t 5 — $ 543 $ 7,845 $ (7,845 $ 543
Cash flows provided by operating activities .... § — $ 9,592 $ 8767 § — $ 18,359
Cash flows (used in) investing activities ...... —_ (3,108) (9,446) — (12,554)
Cash flows (used in) financing activities ...... — (6,910} — — (6,910)
(Decrease) in cash and cash equivalents . . . .. .. — (426) (679) — (1,1058)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year .. — 1,043 132 — 1,175
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ....... F — $ 617 $ 4 3 — $ 70
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RAM Energy, Subsidiary

Total

Consolidating Consolidated

Par¢nt Inc. Guarantars  Adjustments Amounts

Year ended December 31, 2004
Operating revenues ..............ccccccun.. - $ 20,370 $ 9,369 $ (80) $ 29,659
Operating expenses . ........... .. c.ccueen.. —_ 11,553 3,342 (80) 14,815
Operatingincome . ............. ... .. ....... — 8,817 6,027 _— 14,844
Otherexpense . ...............ccivieineaii., — 359 25 (5.419) (5,035)
Income (loss) before income taxes . ........... — 9,176 6,052 (5,419) 9,809
Incometaxes .......... ... 0 iiinniinn. — 3,100 633 3,733
Netincome (10S5) ... ..... ... .. 5 5 6076 3 5419 $(5.419) 5 6,076
Cash flows provided by (used in) operating

ACHVILIES . ..ottt e 5 $ 85,784 $(83,991y $ — $ 1,793
Cash flows (used in) provided by investing

activities . ... ..., ... . . e — (66,556) 1,704 — (64,852)
Cash flows (used in) provided by financing

activities ......... ... ... ., — (20,109) 82,225 — 62,116
(Decrease} in cash and cash equivalents ........ — (881) (62) —_ (943)
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year .... — 1,924 194 — 2,118
Cash and cash equivalents, end of year ......... $— $ 1,043 5 132 $ — $ L1735

Due to intercompany allocations among the parent aLd its subsidiaries, the above condensed consolidating
information is not intended to present the Company’s subsidiaries on a stand-alone basis.

F—LEASES

The Company leases office space and certain equipment under non-cancelable operating lease agreements
that expire on various dates through 2011, Approximate fjiture minimum lease payments for operating leases at

December 31, 2006 are as follows (in thousands):

Year Ending December 31,

Rent expense of approximatety $389,000, $519,000, and $288,000 was incurred under operating leases in

the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, resp

G—DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

The Company sponsors a 401(k) defined contribution plan for the benefit of substantially all of its

ectively.

employees. The plan allows eligible employees to contribyte up to 100% of their annual compensation, not to

exceed the maximum amount permitted by IRS regulation
The Company provided matching contributions to the plan
$190,000, respectively.
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H—STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY (DEFICIT)

RAM Energy, Inc. paid cash dividends of $500,000 for the year ended December 31, 2006 prior to being
acquired by the Company. RAM Energy, Inc. also declared cash dividends of $1,400,000 and $1,200,000 for the
years ended December, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

On April 6, 2006, RAM Energy, Inc. redeemed a portion of the outstanding shares of its common stock for
an aggregate redemption price of approximately $10.0 million.

On May 8, 2006, the Company acquired RAM Energy, Inc. by merger in exchange for an issuance of
25,600,000 shares of common stock and $30.0 million in cash. RAM Energy, Inc. is now a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company. As a result of the merger, RAM Energy, Inc. was recapitalized so that the historical
basis of its assets and Habilities remain intact. The only operations of the parent company included in the results
of operations for 2006 are those that occurred subsequent to the date of the merger.

The Company has outstanding warrants to purchase 12,650,000 shares of common stocks issuable upon the
exercise of outstanding warrants at an exercise price of $5.00 per share and 825,000 shares of our common stock
are issuable upon the exercise of currently exercisable options to purchase 275,000 units at an exercise price of
$9.90 per unit, each unit consisting of one share of our common stock and two warrants, each warrant to
purchase one share of our common stock at an exercise price of $6.25 per share. Such warrants, when issued, will
be immediately exercisable.

Also, on May 8, 2006, the shareholders of the Company approved the Company’s 2006 Long-Term
Incentive Plan (“the Plan™), effective upon the consummation of the Company’s acquisition by merger of RAM
Energy, Inc. The Company reserved a maximum of 2,400,000 shares of its common stock for issuance under the
Plan. Certain officers and directors of the Company were awarded 330,000 shares of common stock under the
Plan. The value of the shares was recorded at $6.72 per share, the closing market price of the Company’s
common stock as of that date (see note O). At the request of the grantees, on June 8, 2006, the Company
repurchased 98,100 of these shares at $6.04 per share, the closing market price of the Company’s common stock
as of that date, 10 satisfy the grantees’ federal and state income tax withholding requirements, as permitted by the
Plan. The repurchased shares are held by the Company as treasury stock at December 31, 2006.

On September 22, 2006, the Company purchased 739,175 shares of its common stock in a privately
negotiated transaction. The purchase price was $4.295 per share, and the shares are included in treasury stock at
December 31, 2006.

On November 10, 2006 the Company granted 646,805 shares of its common stock to certain employees.
These shares will vest to the grantees over a five-year period with 20% of the shares granted being issued on each
subsequent anniversary date.

I—INCOME TAXES

The (provision) benefit for income taxes is comprised of (in thousands).

Year Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004
CUITENL & o v e et et ettt e et et et b r e e $ (154) § 393  $(6,892)
Deferred . ..o e e (1,311 (1,199) 3,159
Provision for income tax exXpense . .........c..voeiniiiroaenn.. $(1,465) $ (806) 5(3,733)

The provision for income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory federal income
tax rate to income before provision for income taxes. The significant differences between pre-tax book income
and taxable book income relate to non-deductible personal expenses, meals and entertainment expenses and state
income taxes.
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The sources and tax effects of the differences are as

follows (in thousands);

Year Ended December 31,

2006 2005 2004
Income tax provision at the federal statutory rate (34%) ............ $(2,214)  $(459) $(3,088)
State income (tax) benefit, net of federal benefit . .| _............ .. 781 12 (361)
Meals and entertainment expense . .............L.... oo 21) (34) —
Non-deductibledues .......... ... .o b amn {15) —
Non-deductible related party expenses ..........L............... — (302) (284)
Other ... . e e e 6 (8) —

Income tax provision . ........ ... viieiennn

$(3,733)

$(1,465) $(806)

The Company’s income tax provision was computed based on the federal statutory rate and the average state

statutory rates, net of the related federal benefit.

Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of t
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and

emporary differences between the carrying amounts of
Ihe amounts used for income tax purposes.

Sigaificant components of the Company’s deferred fax assets and liabilities are as follows (in thousands):

Deferred tax assets:
Current:
Accrued expenses andother .................... ...

Valuation allowance .......... ...,

Net current deferred tax assets .. ...................

Noncurrent deferred tax assets:
Net operating loss carryforward . ...................
Accrued liabilitiesandother . ... ...................

Valuationallowance ........... ...t .

Net noncurrent deferred tax assets . .................

Deferred tax liabilities:
Current:
Prepaid expensesand other . ... ......... ... ........

Noncurrent:
Depreciable/depletable property, plant and equipment . .
Other ...

Total noncurrent deferred tax liabilities .. ............
Net noncurrent deferred tax liability ................

Net deferred tax liability . .. ... ... .. .. ... ........

December 31,
2006 2008

490 § 163
$ 490 % 163

........................... $ 490 § 163

3373 %
........................... 263 3,059

$ 3,636 $ 4,569

$ 3,636 § 4,569

1,510

$ 2,172)
(2,172)

(230)
(230)

$(18,998) $(20,236)

$(18,998) $(20,236)
$(21,170) ${20,466)
$(17,044) $(15,734)




As of December 31, 2006, the Company has federal net operating loss carryforwards of approximately
$9.11 million for tax purposes, $4.02 million of which were an inherited attribute from the WG Energy Holdings,
Inc. acquisition during 2004. These net operating loss carryforwards are subject to the ownership change
limitation provisions of Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code. However, based upon the value of WG
Energy Holdings, Inc. at the time of the acquisition, the amount of these net operating losses that may be used
annually should be sufficient 10 allow the losses to be utilized prior to their expiration. Accordingly, the
Company believes that it will more likely than not be able to utilize these losses and that no valuation allowance
for the deferred tax asset associated therewith is required. If not used, these carryforwards will generally expire
between 2021 and 2023. [n addition, the Company has generated net operating loss carryforwards for state
income tax purposes, which the Company believes will more likely than not be realized during the relevant
carryforward periods; however, such amounts have not been separately disclosed in the financial staternents as
the Company does not believe that these net operating losses are material to the amounts presented herein.

The Company has reported the recovery of tax basis amounts in certain assets in prior years that generated
net operating losses for tax return filing purposes; however, the Company has not recorded a tax benefit for such
amounts due to certain factual and technical issues related thereto. The Company will record the benefit for such
tax basis amounts in future pertods when it can appropriately conclude that the realization of such benefit is more
likely than not assured.

J—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

In April 2002, a lawsuit was filed in the District Court for Woods County, Oklahoma against RAM Energy,
Inc., certain of its subsidiaries and various other individuals and unrelated companies, by a lessor of certain oil
and gas leases from which production was sold to a gathering system owned and operated by Magic Circle
Energy Corporation (Magic Circle) or its wholly-owned subsidiary, Carmen Field Limited Partnership (CFLP).
The lawsuit covers the period from 1977 to a current date. In 1998, both Magic Circle and CFLP became wholly-
owned subsidiaries of RAM Energy, Inc. The lawsuit was filed as a class action on behalf of all royalty owners
under leases owned by any of the defendants during the period Magic Circle or CFLP owned and operated the
gathering system. The petition claims that additional royalties are due because Magic Circle and CFLP resold oil
and gas purchased at the wellhead for an amount in excess of the price upon which royalty payments were based
and paid no royalties on natural gas liquids extracted from the gas at plants downstream of the system. Other
allegations include under-measurement of oil and gas at the wetlhead by Magic Circle and CFLP, failure to pay
royalties on take or pay settlement proceeds and failure to properly report deductions for post-production costs in
accordance with Oklahoma's check stub law,

RAM Energy. Inc. and other defendants have filed answers in the lawsuit denying all material allegations
set out in the petition. The Company believes that fair and proper accounting was made to the royalty owners for
production from the subject leases and intends to vigorously defend the lawsuit. Plaintiffs have not specified an
amount of claim, nor the time period covered. Management is unable to estimate a range of potential loss, if any,
related to this lawsuit, and accordingly no amounts have been recorded in the consolidated financial statements.
In the event the court should find RAM Energy, Inc. and its related defendants liable for damages in the lawsuit,
a former joint venture partner is contractually obligated to pay a portion of any damages assessed against the
defendant lessees up to a maximum contribution of approximately $2.8 million.

The Company is also involved in legal proceedings and litigation in the ordinary course of business. In the
opinion of management, the outcome of such matters will not have a material adverse effect on the Company’s
financial position or results of operations.




K—DERIVATIVE CONTRACTS

During 2006. 2005, and 2004 the Company entered [into numerous derivative contracts. The Company did
not formally designate these transactions as hedges as required by SFAS No. 133 in order to receive hedge

accounting treatment. Accordingly, all gains and losses on

the derivative financial instruments during 2006,

2005, and 2004 have been recorded in the statements of gperations.

At December 31, 2006 the Company had collars in pl

ace on 45,625 barrels of oil per month through 2007

and 28,967 barrels of oil per meonth through 2008, The 43,625 barrels per month in 2007 had a weighted average
floor and ceiling of $52.67 and $73.24, respectively. The[28,967 barrels per month had a weighted average floor

and ceiling of $53.69 and $86.08, respectively. For natural

gas, the Company had collars in place on 116,250

Mmbtu per month through 2007 and 122,000 Mmbtu permonth through 2008. The | 16,250 Mmbtu per month in
2007 had a weighted average floor and ceiling of $7.48 and $11.58, respectively. The 122,000 Mmbtu per month
in 2008 had a weighted average floor and ceiling of $6.87 and $13.53, respectively. The Company purchased call

options on 122,000 Mmbtu per month of natural gas for se
of $12.00.

ven months in 2007 at a weighted average floor price

At December 31, 2005, the Company had collars in place on 45,625 barrels of oil per month through 2006
and 30,417 barrels of oil per month through 2007. The 45625 barrels per month in 2006 had a weighted average
floor and ceiling of $42.51 and $60.56, respectively. The B0,417 barrels per month in 2007 had a weighted
average floor and ceiling of $35.00 and $69.74, respectively. For natural gas, the Company had collars in place
on 159,583 Mmbtu per month through 2006 and 150,000 Mmbto per month for the three months ending March

2007. The 159,583 Mmbtu per month in 2006 had a weig

ted average floor and ceiling of $6.23 and $8.86,

respectively. The 150,000 Mmbtu per month for the three|months ending March 2007 had a weighted average

floor and ceiling of $7.00 and $11.95. The Company also
of crude oil through 2006 at a weighted average floor pric
157,000 Mmbtu per month of natural gas for eight month

At December 31, 2004 the Company had purchased
through December 2005 with a floor price of $40.00 per b
collars on 152,000 Mmbtu per month through October 20
Mmbtu, and the weighted average ceiling price was $7.84

ad purchased put options on 7,604 barrels per month
of $40.00. The Company purchased call options on
in 2006 at a weighted average floor price of $9.94.

ut options on 37,958 barrels per month of crude oil
el. For natural gas the Company had purchased
5; the weighted average floor price was $3.65 per
per Mmbtu.

The Company measured the fair value of its derivatives at December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, based on
quoted market prices. Accordingly, an asset of $677,000, a liability of $3,510,000, and an asset of $1,627,000

were recorded in the consolidated balance sheets at Decen

L—LIQUIDITY

As of December 31, 2006, the Company has an accun
deficit of $2,468,000. Management believes that borrowing

ber 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004, respectively.

nulated deficit of $26,438,000 and a working capital
rs currently available to the Company under the

Company’s credit facilities (337 million available at December 31, 2006), the balance of unrestricted cash, and
anticipated cash flows from operations will be sufficient to satisfy its currently expected capital expenditures,
working capital, and debt service obligations for the foresepable future. The actual amount and timing of future
capital requirements may differ materially from estimates as a result of, among other things, changes in product
pricing and regulatory, technologicat and competitive developments. Sources of additional financing may include

commercial bank borrowings, vendor financing and the sal
securities. Management cannot assure that any such financ
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ng will be available on acceptable terms or at all.




M—RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Prior to being acquired by the Company, RAM Energy Inc. paid rent expense of approximately $0, $29,000,
and $66,000 relating to a condominium for one of the shareholders of the Company for the years ended
December 31, 2006, 2003, and 2004, respectively.

Also, prior to being acquired by the Company, for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004
approximately $104,000, $499,000, and $792,000, respectively, of expenses (excluding the rent payments
discussed above) for the shareholders of RAM Energy, Inc. are included in general and administrative expenses
in the consolidated statements of operations, some of which may be personal in nature,

In June 2005 the Company sold overriding royalty interests in certain properties located in Jack and Wise
Counties, Texas for $2.3 million to Bridgeport Royalties, LLC. Bridgeport Royalties, LLC is a related party of
the Company, owned and operated by the owners and several officers and employees of the Company, in
addition to outside counsel. No gain on the sale was recognized and the proceeds were applied to reduce the
outstanding balance under the Company’s revolving credit facility.

N—DEFERRED COMPENSATION

On April 21, 2004 the Company adopted a Deferred Bonus Compensation Plan (the Plan) for senior
management employees of the Company. The Plan is to provide additional compensation for significant business
transactions with a portion of each bonus to be deferred to encourage retention of key employees. Determination
of significant business transactions and terms of awards is made by a committee comprised of the shareholders of
the Company.,

During 2004 and 2005 three members of senior management were granted awards, Each award provides for
a total cash compensation of $75,000 and vests on each anniversary date for three years beginning on July 1,
2004 and July 1, 2005, respectively. Receipt of the award is contingent on the members being employed on the
anniversary date, Should there be a change of contrel or involuntary termination, as defined in the award
contract, each member will become fully vested in his award. Compensation expense is recorded on a straight-
line basis. For the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005, $150,000 has been recorded each year as
compensation expense in the consolidated statements of operations.

O—SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

In December 2004, the FASB issued SFAS No. 123R, Share-Based Payment. SFAS No. 123R requires all
share-based payments to employees, including grants of employee stock options, to be recognized in the financial
statements based on their fair values. The Company adopted the provisions of SFAS No. 123R, as required,
effective January 1, 2006.

On May 8, 2006, certain officers and directors of the Company were awarded an aggregate 330,000 shares
of common stock under the Company’s long-term incentive plan, which shares became fully vested at June §,
2006. Accordingly, share-based compensation expense in the amount of $2,218,000 attributable to this stock
grant was recognized in 2006, representing the fair market value of the shares awarded as of May 8, 2006.

On November 10, 2006, certain employees were awarded an aggregate 646,805 shares of common stock,
which shares become vested 20% per year on each successive anniversary date. Accordingly, share-based
compensation is being recognized based upon the fair value of the stock on November 10, 2006 (35.06) over the
five-year vesting period. Approximately $91,000 of share-based compensation was recognized in 2006
attributable to this stock grant. The estimated future share-based compensation that is expected to be recognized
from this stock grant is as follows: 2007—$655,000; 2008—$655,000; 2009—3$655,000; 2010—3%655,000 and
2011—8$564,000.
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P—SUBSEQUENT EVENT
On February 13, 2007, the Company completed a p

ublic offering of 7,500,000 shares of its common stock,

priced at $4.00 per share. Net proceeds of the offering were $28.05 million and will be used to provide additional
working capital for general corporate purposes, including acquisition, development, exploitation and exploration
of oil and natural gas properties, and reduction of indebtgdness.

Q—SUPPLEMENTARY OIL AND NATURAL GAS|RESERVE INFORMATION (UNAUDITED)

The Company has interests in oil and natural gas properties that are principally located in Texas, Louisiana,
Oklahoma, and New Mexico. The Company does not own or lease any oil and natural gas properties outside the

United States of America.

The Company retains independent engineering firms to provide year-end estimates of the Company’s future
net recoverable oil, natural gas and natural gas liquids reserves. Estimated proved net recoverable reserves as
shown below include only those quantities that can be expected to be commercially recoverable at prices and
costs in effect at the balance sheet dates under existing rqgulatory practices and with conventional equipment and

operating methods.

Proved developed reserves represent only those reserves expected to be recovered through existing wells.
Proved undeveloped reserves include those reserves expected to be recovered from new wells on undrilled
acreage or from existing wells on which a relatively majTr expenditure is required for re-completion.

Capitalized costs relating to oil and natural gas producing activities and related accumulated depreciation
and amortization at December 31 are summarized as follows (in thousands):

Proved oil and natural gas properties ...........
Accumulated depreciation and amortization .. ...

2006 2005 2004
........... $185,284  $160,704  $146,598
........... 45,203y (32,602  (20,074)
$140,081  $128,102  $126,524

Costs incurred in oil and natural gas producing activities for the years ended December 31 are as follows (in

thousands, except per equivalent oil barrel):

Acquisition of proved properties ..............
Acquisition of unproved properties ............
Proceeds from sale of unproved properties . . . . . ..
Development costs ...........covienannon.n.
Exploralion costs . .........oiiinnnns
Exploration in progress .................. ..
Sale of producing properties .. ................
Additional asset retirement obligation ..........

Amortization rate per equivalent oil barrel ... ....

2006 2005 2004
............ $ 4476 $ 155 $97.243
............ 705 — —
............ (3,565) — —
............ 18475 11,864 5.173
............ 2,766 1,507 727
............ 1,723 — —
............ — 2.471)  (16,881)
............ — 3,051 —
$24.580 $14,106 S 86,262
............ $ 978 $ 893 S 564




Net quantities of proved and proved developed reserves of oil and natural gas, including condensate and
natural gas liquids, are summarized as follows:

Natural Gas

Crude il Natural Gas Liguids

(Thousand (Million Cubic {Thousand

Barrels) Feet) Barrels)
December 31,2003 ... ... ... .. .. ... ... 2,322 34,567 —
Extensions and discoveries ............... ... ... ... 17 3,015 —
Salesof reservesinplace . ........ ... .. .. .. ..., (1,319) (4,890} —
Purchases of reservesinplace ................... ..., 9,482 10,013 2,092
Revisions of previous estimates . . . .................... 343 (2,582) 7
Production .......... ... .. .0t (178) (1,928) (12)
December 31,2004 ... ... ... .. ... . .. .. .. ... ... 10,667 38,195 2,087
Extensions and discoveries ............. .. ovunn.n.. 5 1,297 —
Salesofreservesinplace .......... ... ... ... .o, (25) {1,305) —
Purchases of reservesinplace ........................ _ — —
Revisions of previous estimates . . ..................... 1,339 (1,272) (26)
Production .......... ... .. .. . .. (78D (2,681) (170)
December 31,2005 .. ... ... .. ... . 11,199 34,234 1,891
Extensions and discoveries ............... .. ........ 2,087 2,622 2
Sales of reserves inplace . .......... ... ... ... — — .
Purchases of reservesinplace ........................ 126 1,928 —
Revisions of previous estimates . .. ...........cvvns. (1,864) (3,220) 373
Production . ........ ... ... ... .. . . .. ... (752} (2,365) (143)
December 31,2006 .. ... . . i i i 10,796 33,199 2,123
Proved developed reserves:
December 31,2004 ... ... ... ... ... ... ... ..., SN 6,198 31,048 1,611
December 31,2005 .. ... ... .. ... .. .. ... ... ... 7,337 26,752 1,396
December 31,2006 . ... ... ... . . . ... 6,954 26,888 1,671

The following is a summary of a standardized measure of discounted net cash flows related to the
Company’s proved oil and natural gas reserves. For these calculations, estimated future cash flows from
estimated future production of proved reserves were computed using oil and natural gas prices as of the end of
the period presented. Future development and production costs attributable to the proved reserves were estimated
assuming that existing conditions would continue over the economic lives of the individual leases and costs were
not escalated for the future. Estimated future income tax expenses were calculated by applying future statutory
tax rates (based on the current tax law adjusted for permanent differences and tax credits) to the estimated future
pretax net cash flows related to proved oil and natural gas reserves, less the tax basis of the properties involved.

The Company cautions against using this data to determine the fair value of its oil and natural gas
properties. To obtain the best estimate of fair value of the oil and natural gas properties, forecasts of future
economic conditions, varying discount rates, and consideration of other than proved reserves would have to be
incorporated into the calculation. [n addition, there are significant uncertainties inherent in estimating quantities
of proved reserves and in projecting rates of production that impair the usefulness of the data.
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The standardized measure of discounted future net gash flows relating to proved oil and natural gas reserves
at December 31 are summarized as follows (in thousands)):

2006 2005 2004
Future cashinflows . ........ ... .. ... . ... ] .. cun $ 894,626 $1,037337 $711,781
Future productioncosts ..................... .. ..., (356,961) (336,008) (247.314)
Future developmentcosts ....................|....... (48,605) (45,271} (36,495)
Future income tax expenses .........c.c.oovvvvdiennn.. (158,602) (219,640  (136,669)
Futurenetcashflows .......... ... ... .. ... )ovoenn. 330,458 436418 291,303
10% annual discount for estimated timing of cash flows . . .. (150,717 (209,758)  (129,983)
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows ..  $179.741 § 226,660 § 161,320

The following are the principal sources of change in{the standardized measure of discounted future net cash
flows of the Company for each of the three years in the period ended December 31 (in thousands):

2006 2005 2004

Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows at

beginning of year .......... ... oot $226,660 $161,320 $ 67,715
Changes during the year:
Sales and transfers of oil and natural gas produced, et of

production COStS .. ..ot (46,272) (46,823) (13,112)
Net changes in prices and productioncosts .......L......... (97,697) 133,301 (5,758)
Extensions and discovenes, less relatedcosts .....L......... 30,560 2,311 9,337
Development costs incurred and revisions .. ......[......... (3,333) (8,777 4,691
Salesof reservesinplace ............. ... .. . b — (2,551) {21,507
Purchases of reservesinplace .................}......... 4476 — 152,083
Revistons of previous quantity estimates . ........[......... 2,107 8,219 (4,560)
Net change in INCOME AXES . ... ...t uieinnnenn b iinnunns 28.690 (43,960) (38,026)
Accretionof discount ............ ... ... oo oo 34,550 23,620 10,457
Netchange ...... ... ... (46,919) 65,340 93,605
Standardized measure of discounted future net cash flows at end

of year .. ... $179,741  $226,660  $161,320

Prices used in computing these calculations of future|cash flows from estimated future production of proved
reserves were $58.74, $58.63, and $40.25 per barrel of oillat December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004, respectively,
$5.51, $9.14, and $6.02 per thousand cubic feet of natural|gas at December 31, 2006, 2003, and 2004,
respectively and $36.51, $35.89 and $27.56 per barrel of natural gas liquids at December 31, 2006, 2005, and
2004, respectively.
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R—Supplementary Data
Selected Quarterly Financial Data (unaudited)

RAM Energy Resources, Inc.

2006 - Quarter Ended
December 31, September 30, June 30, March 31,
($ In thousands except per share data)

I = o (2= 111 - $15,620 $22.187 $13,975 § 18462
Net operating eXpenses . ..........c.vuverueeernrinnnnn 12,255 11,084 13,230 10,421
Operating income (10S8) . ... ... i iiiennn.. 3,365 11,103 745 8,041
Interest eXpense . ...... ..ottt i (3,837) (3,906) (5,778) (3,529)
INterest iNCOME & . oo vttt et e i et e 71 129 82 27
Income before incometaxes ........... .. .cciiiiin... 401} 7,326 (4,951) 4,539
Income tax provision (benefit} . ........................ (1,459) 3,081 (1,882) 1,725
CNELINCOME (JOSSY « v v vttt ettt et e et e $ 1,058 $ 4245 $(3,069) § 2,814

Basic net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders

percommonshare .................oiiiiiieiiiiin.. $ 0.03 $ 0.13 $ (0.13) $1,238.01
Diluted net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders

percommon Share ................ivuniaenaaanaan. $ 0.03 $ 013 $ (0.13) $1,i195.41

2005 - Quarter Ended
December 31, September 30, June3), March3l,
($ In thousands except per share data)

(L (oR = 1111 $22,889 $ 5975 $11,768 $ 14,767
Net operating expenses . ........ceeeureuannererannnns 11,883 10,671 9,400 9,557
Operating income {1088) ... ... ootiit i 11,006 (4,696) 2,368 5,210
Interestexpense ...........coiviiiiiieinininanannn (3,845) (3,145) (2,851) 2,773)
INterest INCOME . ..o vt e e e ettt nsrennennns 34 19 13 9
Income before incometaxes ................. 00eninnn. 7,195 (7,822) 470) 2,446
Income tax provision (benefit) .. ....................... 3,028 (2,972) (179 929
Net income (JOSS) .« oo vve ettt e e $ 4,167 54,8500 % (291) § 1,517
Basic net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders

percommonshare ............. . ... ... .. .. ..., $ 054 $ (063) $ (0.04) $ 667.40
Diluted net income (loss) applicable to common stockholders

percommonshare ................. .. i ieaiaa., $ 054 $ (063) 5 (0.04) § 644.44
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Item 9.

Changes in and Disagreements with Accoy

No items to report.

Item 9A. Controls and Procedures
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure

Under the supervision and with the participation of
and Chief Financial Officer, we evaluated the design and
defined in Rules 13A-15(e) and 15d-15(e) of the Secunti
December 31, 2006. On the basis of this review, our mar
Chief Financial Officer, concluded that our disclosure ¢q
give reasonable assurance that the information required t
Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and rg
forms of the SEC and to ensure that information required
the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to g
and Chief Financial officer, in a manner that allows time

ntants on Accounting and Financial Disclosure

Controls and Procedures

our management, including our Chief Executive Officer

operation of our disclosure controls and procedures (as
es Exchange Act of 1934, or the “Exchange Act”) as of
agement, including our Chief Executive Officer and
ntrols and procedures are designed, and are effective, to
o be disclosed by us in reports that we file under the
ported within the time periods specified in the rules and
to be disclosed in the reports filed or submitted under
ur management, including our Chief Executive Officer
y decisions regarding required disclosure.,

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting during the fourth quarter of 2006 that

materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially]

Item 9B. Other Information

No items to report.
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PART Il

Item 10.  Directors, Executive Officers and Corporate Governance

We have adopted a code of ethics that applies to all directors, officers and employees, including our
principal executive officer and principal accounting officer. A copy of our code of ethics is available on our
website at www.ramenergy.com. We intend to disclose any amendments to or waivers of our code of ethics by
posting the required information on our website, www.ramenergy.com, or by filing a Form 8-K within the
required time periods.

The information required by this item is or will be set forth in the definitive proxy statement relating to the
2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of RAM Energy Resources, Inc., which is to be filed with the Securities
and Exchange Commission pursuant to Regulation 14A under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended
(the “Proxy Statement™). This definitive proxy statement relates to a meeting of stockholders involving the
election of directors and the portions therefrom required to be set forth in this Form 10-K by this item are
incorporated herein by reference pursuant to General Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K,

Item 11. Executive Compensation

The information required by this item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement. This definitive proxy
statement relates to a meeting of stockholders involving the election of directors and the portions therefrom
required to be set forth in this Form 10-K by this item are incorporated herein by reference pursuant to General
Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K,

Item 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management and Related Stockholder
Matters

The information required by this item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement. This definitive proxy
statement relates {0 a meeting of stockholders involving the election of directors and the portions therefrom
required to be set forth in this Form 10-K by this item are incorporated herein by reference pursuant to Generat
Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K.

Item 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions and Director Independence

The information required by this item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement, This definitive proxy
statement relates to a meeting of stockholders involving the election of directors and the portions therefrom
required to be set forth in this Form 10-K by this item are incorporated herein by reference pursuant to General
Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Services

The information required by this item will be set forth in the Proxy Statement. This definitive proxy
statement relates to a meeting of stockholders involving the election of directors and the portions therefrom
required to be set forth in this Form 10-K by this item are incorporated herein by reference pursuant to General
Instruction G(3) to Form 10-K.
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Item 15.  Exhibits and Financial Statemnent Schedul,

LT IV

A)

(a) (1) The following consolidated financial statements of RAM Energy Resources, Inc. are included in

Item 8:

RAM Energy Resources, Inc.
Report of Independent Registered Public Accountin

Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2006 and 2005

Consolidated Statements of Operations for the year:
Consolidated Statements of Stockholders’ Deficit fi
2004

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements . . .. ..

All other schedules have been omitted since the req
amounts sufficient to require submission of the schedule
consolidated financial statements or notes thereto.

g Firm

s ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004
r the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and

rired information is not present, or not preseat in
or because the information required is included in the




(a) (3) Exhibits

The following exhibits are filed as a part of this report:

Exhibit Description Method of Filing
31 Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of the Registrant. (1) [3.1}
32 Amended and Restated Bylaws of the Registrant, (1) [3.21
4.1 Specimen Unit Certificate. (1) [4.1]
42 Specimen Common Steck Certificate. (1) [4.2]
43 Specimen Warrant Certificate, (1) [4.3]
4.4 Form of Unit Purchase Opticn granted to EarlyBirdCapital, Inc. (2) (4.4]
4.5 Form of Warrant Agreement between Continental Stock Transfer & Trust Company (2) {4.5)
and the Registrant.
46 Indenture dated as of February 24, 1998 among RAM Energy, Inc., the Subsidiary (7 [4.1]
Guarantors named therein, and United States Trust Company of New York, Trustee.
4.6.1 Supplemental Indenture dated February 24, 1998 among RAM Energy, Inc., the (8) [4.6.1]
Subsidiary Guarantors named therein, and United States Trust Company of New York,
Trustee.
4.6.2  Second Supplemental Indenture dated as of November 22, 2002 among RAM Energy, (8){4.6.2])
Inc., the Subsidiary Guarantors and The Bank of New York, Successor to United
States Trust Company of New York, as trustee.
463 Third Supplemental Indenture dated as of April 29, 2004 among RAM Energy, Inc., (8) [4.6.3]
the Subsidiary Guarantors and The Bank of New York, Successor to United States
Trust Company of New York, as trustee.
4.6.4  Fourth Supplemental Indenture dated as of December 17, 2004 among RAM Energy, (8) [4.6.4]
Inc., The Bank of New York, Successor to United States Trust Company of New
York, as trustee, RWG Energy, Inc., WG Operating, Inc., WG Royalty Company,
Wise County Construction Company, LLC, and WG Pipeline LLC, as Additional
Subsidiary Guarantors,
10.1 Form of Stock Escrow Agreement between the Registrant, Continental Stock Transfer (2} [10.6]
& Trust Company and the Initial Stockholders.
10.2 Form of Registration Rights Agreement among the Registrant and the Initial (2)[10.9]
Stockholders.
10.2.1 Amendment to Registration Rights Agreement among this Registrant and the (1)[10.9.1]
Founders dated May 8, 2006.
10.3 Agreement and Plan of Merger dated October 20, 2005 among Registrant, RAM (3) [10.11]
Acaquisition, Inc., RAM Energy, Inc. and the Stockholders of RAM Energy, Inc.
10.3.1 Amendment No. 1, dated November |1, 2005, to Agreement and Plan of Merger dated @) [10.11]
October 20, 2005 among the Registrant, RAM Acquisition, Inc., RAM Energy, Inc.
and the Stockholders of RAM Energy, Inc.
103.2  Amendment No. 2, dated February 15, 2006, to Agreement and Plan of Merger dated (6) [10.11}

October 20, 2005 among the Registrant, RAM Acquisition, Inc., RAM Energy, Inc.
and the Stockholders of RAM Energy, [nc.
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Exhibit Description Method of Filing

104 Voting Agreement dated October 20, 2005 among the Registrant, the stockholders of  (3) [10.12]
RAM Energy, Inc. and certain security holders| of the Registrant.

104.1  Second Amended and Restated Voting Agreement included as Annex D of the (5) {Annex D]
Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement (No. (00-50682), dated April 12, 2006 and
incorporated by reference herein.

10.5 Lock-Up Agreement dated Ociober 20, 2005 executed by the stockholders of RAM (3 {10.11}]
Energy, Inc.

10.6 Employment Agreement between Registrant and Larry E. Lee dated May 8, 2006.* {13 {10.15]

10.6.1  First Amendment to Employment Agreement between Registrant and Larry E. Lee (9 [10.1]
dated October 18, 2006, *

10.7 Escrow Agreement by and among the Registrant, Larry E. Lee and Continental Stock (1) {10.16]
Transfer & Trust Company dated May 8, 2006.

10.8 Registration Rights Agreement among Registrant and the investors signatory thereto (H{10.17]
dated May &, 2006.*

10.90 Form of Registration Rights Agreement among|the Registrant and the Investors party  (3) [10.17]
thereto.

10.10 Agreement between RAM and Shell Trading-US dated February 1, 2006. (1 [10.22}

10.11 Agreement between RAM and Targa dated January 30, 1998. (1)[10.23]

10.11.1 Amendment to Agreement between RAM Energy and Targa dated effective as of (10) [10.23.1]
April 1, 2006, filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s Form 8-K dated June 5, 2006 and
incorporated by reference herein,

10.12  Long-Term Incentive Plan of the Registrant. Ingluded as Annex C of the Registrant’s  (5) [Annex C]
Definitive Proxy Statement (No. 000-50682), dated April 12, 2006 and incorporated
by reference herein.*

10.13 Third Amended and Restated Loan Agreement dated as of April 3, 2006, between (8) [10.14]
RAM Energy, Inc., the lenders described therein, Guggenheim Corporate Funding,
LLC as the Arranger and Administrative Agent,)Wells Fargo Foothill, Inc., as the
Documentation Agent, and WESTLB AG, New|York Branch, as the Syndication
Agent.

10.14  Deferred Bonus Compensation Plan of RAM Energy, Inc. dated as of April 21, 2004*  (12) [10.14]

211 Subsidiaries of the Registrant (I2)[21.1]

23.1 Consent of UHY LLP **

232 Consent of Forest A. Garb & Associates, Inc. **

233 Consent of Williamson Petroleum Consultants, Inc. **

31.1 Rule 13{A) - 14(A) Certification of our Principal Executive Officer **

31.2 Rule 13(A) ~ 14(A) Certification of our Principal Financial Officer *%

32.1 Section 1350 Certification of our Principal Executive Officer **

32.2 Section 1350 Certification of our Principal Finarcial Officer *ox
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L3
* %

(1)

(2)

(3

4

(5

(6)

(N

(8

6

Management contract or compensatory plan or arrangement.
Filed herewith.

Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on May 12, 2006, as the exhibit
number indicated in brackets and incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (SEC File No. 333-113583) as
the exhibit number indicated in brackets and incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on October 26, 2005, as the exhibit
number indicated in brackets and incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on November 14, 2005, as the
exhibit number indicated in brackets and incorporated by reference herein.

Included as an annex to the Registrant’s Definitive Proxy Statement (No. 000-50682), dated April 12, 2006,
as the annex letter indicated in brackets and incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 21, 2006, as the exhibit
number indicated in brackets and incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as an exhibit to the Registration Statement on Form 8-1 (SEC File No. 333-42641) of RAM Energy,
Inc., as the exhibit number indicated in brackets and incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Quarterly Report on Form 10-K filed on August 14, 2006, as the
exhibit number indicated in brackets and incorporated by reference herein.

Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on October 20, 2006, as the exhibit
number indicated in brackets and incorporated by reference herein.

(10) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K on June 3, 2006, as the exhibit number

indicated in brackets and incorporated by reference herein.

(11) Filed as an exhibit to Registrant’s amended Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q/A filed on December 20, 2006,

as the exhibit number indicated in brackets and incorporated by reference herein.

(12) Filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-1 (SEC File No. 333-138922) as

the exhibit number indicated in brackets and incorporated by reference herein.

(13) filed as an exhibit to the Registrant’s Current Report on Form 8-K filed on February 2, 2007, as the exhibit

number indicated in brackets and incorporated by reference herein.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d}{of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant
has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by fhe undersigned, thereunto duly authorized, in the City of
Tulsa, State of Oklahoma, on April 2, 2007.

RAM ENERGY RESOURCES, INC.

By /s/ LARRY E. LEE

Larry E. Lee, Chairman of the Board, President
and Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, this report has been signed by the
foliowing persons in the capacities indicated, on April 2,|2007.

Signature Title
/s/ LARRY E. LEE Chhirman of the Board, President and Chief Executive
Larry E. Lee Officer and Director (Principal Executive Officer)
fs/  JOHN M. LONGMIRE Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
John M. Longmire {(Principal Financial Officer and Principal Accounting
({fficer)
/s!/  SEAN P. LANE Director

Sean P. Lane

/s/ GERALD R. MARSHALL Director
Gerald R. Marshall

/s/ JOHN M. REARDON Director
John M. Reardon




RAM ENERGY RESOURCES, INC.
5100 East Skelly| Drive, Suite 650
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74135

To the Stockholders of RAM Energy Resources, Inc.;

You are cordially invited to attend the Annual Meettng of Stockholders of RAM Energy Resources, Inc. to
be held on June 12, 2007, at the Renaissance Tulsa Hotel and Convention Center, 6808 South 107 East Avenue,
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74133, commencing at 10:00 a.m., local time. We look forward to personally greeting as many
of our stockholders as possible at the meeting.

The Notice of the Annual Meeting and Proxy Statement accompanying this letter provide information
concerning matters to be considered and acted upon at the meeting. Immediately following the meeting, a report
on our operations will be presented, including a questiontand-answer and discussion period.

We know that most of our stockholders are unable tp attend the Annual Meeting in person. We solicit
proxies so that each stockholder has an opportunity to vate on all matters that are scheduled to come before the
meeting. Whether or not you plan to attend, please take 4 few minutes now to sign, date and return your proxy in
the enclosed postage-paid envelope. Regardless of the number of shares you own, your vote is important.

Thank you for your continued interest in RAM Energy Resources, Inc.

Very truly yours,

[
Larry E. Lee,
Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer

May 22, 2007




RAM ENERGY RESOURCES, INC.
5100 East Skelly Drive, Suite 650
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74135

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
June 12, 2607

To the Stockholders of RAM Energy Resources, Inc.:

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders of RAM Energy Resources,
Inc. will be held at the Renaissance Tulsa Hotel and Convention Center, 6808 South 107t East Avenue, Tulsa,
Oklahoma 74133, on June 12, 2007, commencing at 10:00 a.m., local time, for the fotlowing purposes:

1. To elect two directors of RAM Energy Resources, Inc., one to serve for a term of two years and one
to serve for a term of three years;

2. To ratify and approve the appointment of UHY LLP as the Company’s independent auditors for
2007; and

3. To transact such other business as may properly come before the meeting or any adjournment
thereof.

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on May 18, 2007, as the record date for the meeting,
and only holders of common stock of record at such time will be entitled to vote at the meeting or any

adjournment thereof.

By Order of the Board of Directors

7

John L. Cox
Secretary

Tulsa, Oklahoma

May 22, 2007

EVEN IF YOU INTEND TO BE PRESENT AT THE ANNUAL MEETING, PLEASE SIGN, DATE
AND RETURN THE ACCOMPANYING PROXY PROMPTLY SO THAT YOUR SHARES OF
COMMON STOCK MAY BE REPRESENTED AND VOTED AT THE ANNUAL MEETING. A
RETURN ENVELOPE IS ENCLOSED FOR THIS PURPOSE.




RAM ENERGY RESOURCES, INC.
5100 East Skelly Drive, Suite 650
Tulsa, Oklahoma 74135

PROXY STATEMENT
FOR
ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS
June 12, 2007

This Proxy Statement is furnished by RAM Energy Resources, Inc. in connection with the solicitation of
proxies by the Board of Directors of the Company to be used at the 2007 Annual Meeting of Stockholders to be
held at the time and place and for the purposes set forth in the foregoing Notice of Annual Meeting of
Stockholders, and at any and all adjournments of said meeting. Unless the context otherwise requires, all
references to “we” and “us” refer to RAM Energy Resources, Inc. and its subsidiaries.

Solicitation and Revocation of Proxies and Voting

The execution and return of the enclosed proxy will not affect your right to attend the Annual Meeting of
Stockholders and to vote in person. Even if you have given a proxy, you have the power to revoke it at any time
before it is exercised. You may revoke the proxy prior to its exercise by delivering written notice of revocation to
our corporate Secretary, at 5100 East Skelly Drive, Suite 650, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74135, by executing a later-dated
proxy, or by attending the Annual Meeting and voting in person. Properly executed proxies in the accompanying
form, received in due time and not previously revoked, will be voted at the Annual Meeting or any adjournment
thereof as specified therein by the person giving the proxy; however, if no specification is made, the shares
represented by proxy will be voted as recommended by the Board of Directors.

We will pay the expenses of this proxy solicitation, including the cost of preparing and mailing this Proxy
Statement and the accompanying proxy. Such expenses may also include the charges and expenses of banks,
brokerage firms, and other custodians, nominees, or fiduciaries for forwarding proxies and proxy material to
beneficial owners of our common stock. We expect to solicit proxies primarily by mail, but our directors,
officers, employees, and agents may also solicit proxies in person or by telephone or by other electronic means.
This Proxy Statement and accompanying proxy were first mailed to our stockholders on or about May 22, 2007.

Quorum; Abstentions; Broker Non-Votes

The presence, in person or by proxy, of the holders of shares of our outstanding common stock representing
a majority of the total combined voting power of all of our outstanding shares of common stock entitled to vote at
the Annual Meeting will constitute a quorum for the transaction of business. If a quorum is present, the election
of directors will require a plurality of the votes cast by the stockholders entitled to vote thereon, present in person
or represented by proxy. Two directors will be elected by a plurality of the votes cast by the holders of common
stock. See Proposal 1 - Election of Directors.

You may, with respect to the election of directors:

«  vote for the election of all nominees named herein;

*  withhold authority to vote for all such nominees; or

*  vote for the election of one nominee and withhold your vote for the other nominee by specifically so

indicating in the space provided on the proxy.

The ratification of the selection of UHY LLP as our independent auditors for 2007 requires the affirmative
vote by holders of shares of our outstanding common stock representing a majority of the voting power of the
shares present or represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting.

Abstentions and broker non-votes will be treated as present at the Annual Meeting for the purpose of
determining a quorum. A broker non-vote occurs when a record owner holding shares for a beneficial owner does




not vote on a particular proposal because the record owner does not have discretionary voting power under the
applicable rules of The Nasdaq Stock Market with respect to such shares, and the record owner has not received
instructions from the beneficial owner. Because directors are elected by a plurality of the votes cast, abstentions
and broker non-votes will not be counted in determining which nominees received the largest number of votes
cast. The ratification of the appointment of UHY LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm
requires the affirmative vote of the holders of at least a majority of the shares of our common stock, present in
person or represented by proxy at the Annual Meeting. Abstentions will be counted in tabulating the votes for
such proposal and, therefore, will have the same effect as a vote against the ratification of the appointment of
UHY LLP as our independent registered public accounting firm, as applicable. Broker non-votes will not be
counted as shares present in tabulating the votes on a proposal.

As a matter of policy, we maintain proxies and voting tabulations that tdentify individual stockholders on a
confidential basis. We make such documents available only to those persons who process the proxy cards,
tabulate the vote, and serve as inspectors of election and certain of our employees responsible for the Annual
Meeting. We do not disclose your vote except as may be necessary to meet legal requirements.

Only the holders of outstanding shares of our common stock of record at the close of business on May 18,
2007, are entitled to receive notice of and to vote at the Annual Meeting. On April 29, 2007, we had outstanding
41,153,530 shares of our common stock. Each share of common stock issued and outstanding on the record date
is entitled to one vote on each matter to be voted upon at the Annual Meeting.

DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE OFFICERS

Our Board of Directors and executive officers are:

Name ig_e P_os_iii(ﬂ

LaryE.Lee ................. 58 Chairman, President and Chief Executive Officer
John M. Longmire ............. 65 Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
Larry G. Rampey ............. 62  Senior Vice President

Drake N. Smiley .............. 59 Senior Vice President

JohnL.Cox .................. 56 Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer

Robert E. Phaneuf ............. 60 Vice President — Corporate Development
SeanP.Lane ................. 48 Director

Gerald R. Marshall .......... .. 73 Director

John M. Reardon .. ............ 65 Director

Larry E. Lee has served as our chairman, president and chief executive officer since May 2006. He is a
founder of our wholly owned subsidiary, RAM Energy, Inc., or RAM Energy, and has served as its president and,
with the exception of the period from June 1992 to November 1997, when he served as chief operating officer, he
has served as its chief executive officer since September 1987. Mr. Lee became chairman of the board of RAM
Energy in October 2005. Mr. Lee has been active in the oil and gas industry since 1976. Mr. Lee worked for the
private companies of Goldman Enterprises and Kerr Consolidated before developing the RAM Energy
companies in 1984. He served in the public sector as budget director for the city of Oklahoma City from 1971 to
1976, and was a member of the staff of Governor David Boren during 1976. Mr. Lee is a Wildcatter member of
the Oklahoma Independent Petroleum Association and a member of the Independent Petroleum Association of
America, having previously served as director. Mr. Lee is a member of the Board of Trustees, serves as chairman
of the Finance Committee, is a member of the Executive Committee, and is chairman elect of the Board of
Trustees for the Philbrook Museum of Art. He is also a member of the Board of Directors of the Oklahoma
Heritage Association. Mr. Lee serves as a member of the Executive Board of the Indian Nations Council of the
Boy Scouts of America. He is a lifetime member of World Presidents’ Organization. Mr. Lee received his B.B.A,
in finance from the University of Oklahoma.




John M. Longmire has been our chief financial officer and a senior vice president since May 2006 and has
been chief financial officer of RAM Energy since August 1994 and a senior vice president since December 1997.
Previously, Mr. Longmire was vice president of RAM Energy from August 1994 until December 1997 and was
its controller from March 1990 until August 1994. Mr. Longmire has 30 years experience in various financial
management positions in the oil and gas industry. Prior to joining RAM Energy in 1990, Mr. Longmire held
various positions with Texas International Company, Amarex, Inc. and Union Oil Company of California.

Mr. Longmire is a Certified Public Accountant and received his B.S. in 1973 from California State University at
Los Angeles.

Larry G. Rampey has been our senior vice president since May 2006 and a senior vice president of RAM
Energy since February 1998, previously serving as vice president of operations since May 1989, Mr. Rampey has
30 years of experience in the management of both domestic and international oil and gas properties, From 1972
until May 1989, Mr, Rampey was employed by Reading & Bates Petroleum Co., holding positions of vice
president of international operations and vice president of domestic operations, Mr. Rampey was employed by
Amoco prior to joining Reading & Bates. Mr. Rampey is a member of the Society of Petroleum Engineers and
the Oklahoma Independent Petroleum Association. Mr. Rampey received his B.S, in Industrial Engineering from
Oklahoma State University.

Drake N. Smiley has been our senior vice president of land and exploration since May 2006 and has held a
similar position with RAM Energy since January 1998. Mr. Smiley served as vice president of land, legal and
business development of RAM Energy from February 1997 until December 1997, Previously, Mr. Smiley was
employed by Reading & Bates, serving as manager of land. Before Reading & Bates, he was employed by Cities
Service Company. In June of 1994, Mr. Smiley accepted the position of vice president, land with Continental
Resources, Inc. in Enid, Oklahoma. Mr. Smiley has 28 years of experience in the petroleum industry and is a
member of the Oklahoma and Tulsa County Bar Associations, the Tulsa and American Associations of
Petroleum Landmen and the Oklahoma Independent Petroleum Association. He is a Phi Beta Kappa graduate of
the University of Missouri, where he also received his Juris Doctorate.

John L. Cox has been our vice president, secretary and treasurer since May 2006, vice president of RAM
Energy since June 2005 and secretary and treasurer of RAM Energy since November 2005. Prior to joining RAM
Energy, Mr. Cox served as chief financial officer of Cannon Energy, Inc. from March 2003 until June 2005.

Mr. Cox previously was controller for Mannix Oil and Gas, Inc. from February 2001 until March 2003 and
controller/bankruptcy accountant for the bankruptcy trustee for Bristol Resources Corporation from 997 to
February 2001. Mr. Cox was also a vice president and chief financial officer for Latex Petroleum from 1994 to
1997, controller of Panada Exploration, Inc. from 1990 to 1994, and controller/ manager of financial reporting
for Reading & Bates Petroleum Co. from 1976 to 1989. Mr. Cox is a Certified Public Accountant and received a
B.S. in Accounting from Oklahoma City University.

Robert E. Phaneuf has been our vice president-corporate development since May 2006 and served in a
similar capacity with RAM Energy since March 2006. From September 1995 until February 2006, Mr. Phaneuf
served as vice president of corporate development at Vintage Petroleum Corporation. From 1994 until September
1995, he was employed in the corporate finance group at Arthur Andersen LLP. From 1972 to 1976, Mr. Phaneuf
was an investment advisor with First [nternational Investment Management Company. From 1976 10 1994,

Mr. Phaneuf served as an energy analyst in the research department of several investment banking and brokerage
firms, including Schneider, Bernet & Hickman from 1976 to 1978; as Vice President of Kidder, Peabody & Co.
from 1978 to 1988; as Senior Vice President — Energy Research, Rauscher, Pierce, Refsnes, Inc. from 1988 to
1993; and as Senior Vice President — Head of Energy Research Group, Kemper Securities, from 1993 to 1994.
Mr. Phaneuf received a B.A. in psychology and an MBA in Finance from the University of Texas at Austin.

Sean P. Lane was appointed to our board in May 2006. He has served as a managing member of Kinsale
Advisors LLC since January 2003, providing business and risk management advisory services to companies and
investors in the energy, environmental and technology industries. From May 1999 until December 2002,

Mr. Lane was an executive vice president, chief administrative officer, general counsel and director of beenz.com
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inc. a global internet currency business. Mr. Lane served as a managing director of Liberty Power Investments,
LLC, an international electric power project development, finance and acquisition firm from December 1992
until May 1999. Mr. Lane has also served as an executive of Compania Boliviana de Energia Electrica, S.A., the
leading Bolivian electric utility, as well as The Henley Group, Inc., Wheelabrator Technologies, Inc. and Catalyst
Energy Corporation, all publicly traded firms with significant investments in the U.S. or international
independent power and environmental industries. Mr. Lane received his J.D. from Georgetown University Law
Center and a Bachelor’s degree in Political Economy and History fromt Fordham University.

Gerald R. Marshall was appointed to our board in May 2006 and has been a director of RAM Energy since
December 1997. Mr. Marshall was vice chairman of the Midland Group of Oklahoma City, Oklahoma, which
includes Midland Mortgage Co., MidFirst Bank, Midland Asset Management Co. and Home Shield Insurance
Co., from October 1996 to March 2003 and served as a director of MidFirst Bank from 1993 until March 2003,
and served as its chief credit officer from October 1996 until March 2001. From 1990 until 1995, Mr, Marshall
was chairman, chief executive officer and principal owner of RAM Management Associates, an asset
management contractor for the Resolution Trust Corporation. From 1989 until 1990, Mr. Marshall served as a
special consultant to Worthen Banking Corporation of Arkansas. From 1987 until 1989, Mr. Marshall was
interim chief executive officer of an insolvent savings and loan association in Little Rock, Arkansas, pending
federal resolution. From September 1984 until November 1986, Mr. Marshall served as chairman of the board
and chief executive officer of Bank of Oklahoma, Oklahoma City, N.A and from August 1981 to April 1984,
Mr. Marshall served as president and chief executive officer of Goldman Enterprises, a privately owned,
diversified group of companies. Prior to August 1981, Mr. Marshall served as chairman and chief executive
officer of Capital Bank, N.A. of Houston, Texas and was a senior vice president of its then parent company,
Mercantile Texas Corporation. Prior to 1981, Mr. Marshall served as president and director of The First National
Bank and Trust Company of Oklahoma City; as executive vice president of First National Bank in Dallas, and as
president of Liberty National Bank and Trust Company of Oklahoma City. Mr. Marshall received a B.S. in
Finance and Accounting from the University of Oklahoma.

John M. Reardon was appointed to our board in May 2006 and has served as a director of RAM Energy
since October 2005. He previously was a member of the RAM Energy board from January 1998 to May 2002,
Mr. Reardon has been market president of Union Bank of California, in Valencia, California, since November
2002, From August 1994 until November 2002, Mr. Reardon was president and chief executive officer of
Valencia National Bank, Santa Clarita, California. From 1991 to August 1994, Mr. Reardon was executive vice
president of Ramco Qit and Gas, Inc. and RAM Management Associates, Inc. Mr. Reardon was a senior vice
president of Wells Fargo Bank, Los Angeles, California from 1987 to 1991. Previously, he served as chairman,
president and chief executive officer of Southwestern Bank and Trust Company, Oklahoma City; executive vice
president of The First National Bank and Trust Company of Oklahoma City, Oklahoma; and vice president of
Liberty National Bank and Trust Company, Oklahoma City, Oklahoma. Mr. Reardon is currently president of the
board of directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Boys & Girls Club Foundation. In 2000, Mr. Reardon was
presented the Entrepreneur of the Year Award by Ernst & Young and he is a life member in the Entrepreneur of
the Year Award Hall of Fame. Mr, Reardon has served as a director of Gene Autry Western Heritage Museum,
Los Angeles, California; as a member and officer of several committees and sub-committees of the Housing and
Real Estate Firance Committee of the American Bankers Association: and as a director of the Oklahoma Bankers
Association. Mr. Reardon has served on the faculty of the University of Cklahoma School of Commercial
Banking; Southwestern Graduate School of Banking, Southern Methodist University, Dallas, Texas; the Real
Estate Finance School and the National Commercial Lending Schoot of the American Bankers Association; and
the Secured Lending School of the Oklahoma Bankers Association. He served as Chairman of the Federal
Government Relations Committee of the Oklahoma Bankers Association and as a member of the board of
directors of the Chair of Banking, the College of Business of the University of Oklahoma. He has also served as
an advisory director of Oklahoma State University and a member of the Oklahoma State Advisory Council of the
United States Small Business Administration, and President. Mr. Reardon received a B.S. in business from
Oklahoma State University and is a graduate of the Southwestern Graduate School of Banking, Southern
Methodist University in Dallas, Texas.




PROPOSAL I
ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Our Board of Directors currently consists of four persons. Our Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation provides for three classes of directors, The term of each class of directors is normally three years,
and the term of one class expires each year in rotation. The following is a list of our current directors, by class:

Term expiring in 2007 ....................... Larry E. Lee and Gerald R. Marshall(a)
Term expiringin 2008 . ...................... Sean P. Lane and John M. Reardon

(a) Mr. Marshall's term was scheduled to expire in 2006. However, as no election was held in 2006,
Mr. Marshall's term continued until 2007,

Larry E. Lee and Gerald R. Marshall, each of whom is currently a director, have been nominated for
election as directors at the Annual Meeting. Mr. Lee has been nominated to serve for a three-year term ending in
2010, and Mr. Marshall has been nominated to serve for a two-year term ending in 2009, In 2006, Mr. Marshall
was appointed to fill a vacancy with a term expiring in 2006. However, we did not hold an annval meeting of
stockholders in 2006 because of our acquisition by merger of RAM Energy. As a result, Mr. Marshall’s term has
carried over and he has been nominated for a two-year term ending in 2009, Two directors, Sean P. Lane and
John M. Reardon, will continue in office to serve pursuant to their prior appointments.

The Board of Directors proposes and recommends that Larry E, Lee be elected for a three-year term
expiring in 2010 and Gerald R. Marshall be elected for a two-year term ending in 2009. The election of Larry E.
Lee and Gerald R. Marshall must be approved by the affirmative vote of the holders of shares of our common
stock representing a plurality of the voting power of the shares of common stock present and voting at the
meeting.

The persons named as proxies in the accompanying proxy, who have been designated as such by our Board
of Directors, intend to vote, unless otherwise instructed in such proxy, for the election of Messrs. Larry E. Lee
and Gerald R. Marshall. Should either of Messrs. Larry E. Lee or Gerald R. Marshall become unable or unwilling
for any reason to stand for election as a director, the persons named in the proxy will vote for the election of such
other person as our Board of Directors may propose to replace such nominee, We know of no reason why either
of Messrs. Larry E. Lee and Gerald R. Marshall will be unavailable, unable or unwilling to serve.

The names of the directors whose terms of office will continue after the Annual Meeting, their principal
occupations during the past five years, other directorships held, and certain other information are set forth earlier
in this proxy statement.

Independence of Directors

We adhere to the rules of The Nasdaq Stock Market in determining whether a director is independent, Our
Board of Directors also consults with our counsel to ensure that the Board’s determinations are consistent with
those rules and all relevant securities and other laws and regulations regarding the independence of directors. The
Nasdaq listing standards define an “independent director” generally as a person, other than an officer of a
company, who does not have a relationship with the company that would interfere with the director’s exercise of
independent judgment. Consistent with these considerations, our Board of Directors has affirmatively determined
that Messrs. Lane, Marshall and Reardon are independent directors. Mr. Lee is not independent. Prior to our
acquisition of RAM Energy, Inc. on May 8, 2006, our directors were Lawrence S. Coben, Isaac Kier, David
Preiser and Jon Schotz. Each resigned as a director in conjunction with the acquisition effective May 8, 2006.
Messrs. Coben and Kier were not independent prior to their resignations.
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Board Meetings and Commiittees

Our Board of Directors has the responsibility for establishing our broad corporate policies and for our
overall performance. However, the Board is not involved in our day-to-day operations. The Board is kept
informed of our business through discussions with the chairman, president and chief executive officer and other
officers, by reviewing analyses and reports provided to it on a regular basis, and by participating in Board and
Committee meetings.

Meetings. Our Board of Directors held eight meetings during 2006. Prior to our acquisition of RAM Energy,
Inc., our board of directors consisted of Lawrence S. Coben, Isaac Kier, David A. Preiser and Jon Schotz. Upon
consummation of the RAM Energy acquisition or May §, 2006, Messrs. Coben., Kier, Preiser and Schotz
resigned as directors, and Larry E. Lee, Sean P. Lane, Gerald R, Marshall and John M. Reardon were appointed
as directors to fill the vacancies created by these resignations. Messrs. Lee, Marshall and Reardon were present
for all eight meetings of our Board of Directors held between May 8, 2006 and December 31, 2006, and
Mr. Lane was present for seven of the eight meetings.

Our Board of Directors has established an Audit Committee, a Compensation Committee, and a Nominating
and Corporate Governance Committee. In accordance with our Amended and Restated By-laws, the Board of
Directors annually elects from its members the members of each Committee.

Audit Committee. Members of our Audit Committee are Sean P. Lane, Gerald R. Marshall and John M.
Reardon, with Mr. Marshall acting as Chairman.

The Audit Committee is composed of non-employee directors, all of whom currently meet the
“independence” standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market and of Rule t0A-3 promulgated under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, as more fully described below under the caption “Audit Committee Report.”
The Audit Committee annually considers the qualifications of our independent auditor and makes
recommendations to the Board on the engagement of the independent auditor. The Audit Committee meets
quarterly with representatives of the independent auditor and is available to meet at the request of the
independent auditor. During these meetings, the Audit Committee receives reports regarding our books of
accounts, accounting procedures, financial statements, audit policies and procedures, internat accounting and
financial controls, and other matters within the scope of the Audit Committee’s duties. The Audit Committee
reviews the plans for and results of audits for us and our subsidiaries. The Audit Committee reviews the
independence of the independent auditor, and considers and authorizes the fees for both audit and non-audit
services provided by the independent anditor. Following consummation of our acquisition of RAM Energy on
May 8, 2006, our Audit Committee held three meetings and all members of our Audit Committee were in
attendance at each of these meetings. The Audit Committee has adopted a written charter which is available on
our website at Attp:/fvww. ramenergy.com.

Compensation Committee. Members of our Compensation Committee are Sean P. Lane, Gerald R. Marshall
and John M. Reardon, with Mr. Reardon acting as Chairman.

Currently, the members of our Compensation Committee are non-employee directors who meet the
“independence” standards of The Nasdaq Stock Market, but are eligible to participate in any of the plans or
programs that the Board administers. The Compensation Committee reviews and approves the compensation of
our senior executives. The Compensation Committee also administers our 2006 Long Term Incentive Plan and
approves restricted stock awards and other stock-based grants for our executive officers and other employees.
Our Compensation Committee has not adopted a charter. See “Executive Compensation and Other Information
— Compensation Discusston and Analysis” included elsewhere herein for information regarding our
compensation process. Following consummation of our acquisition of RAM Energy on May 8, 2006, our
Compensation Committee held one meeting, and all members of our Compensation Committee attended that
meeting.
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Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. Members of our Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee are Sean P. Lane, Gerald R. Marshall and John M. Reardon, with Mr. Lane acting as
Chairman.

Each member of our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is an independent director under
Nasdaq listing standards. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Commitiee is responsible for overseeing
the selection of persons to be nominated to serve on our Board of Directors. The Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee will consider persons identified by our Board members, management, stockholders,
investment bankers and others. During the period ending immediately after our 2008 annual meeting, the
nominees for our Board of Directors will be determined pursuant to the terms of a voting agreement (described
below) and approved by our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee.

We do not have any restrictions on stockholder nominations under our certificate of incorporation or
by-laws. The Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee will consider stockholder nominees to be our
directors. Any stockholder nominations must be received by us not less than sixty (60) days nor more than ninety
(90) days prior to the annual meeting; provided however, that in the event that less than seventy (70) days notice
or prior public disclosure of the date of the meeting is given or made to stockholders, notice by the stockholder,
10 be timely, must be received no later than the close of business on the tenth (10th) day following the day on
which such notice of the date of the meeting was mailed or such public disclosure was made, whichever first
occurs. Nominations should be delivered to the Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee at the
following address: The RAM Energy Resources Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee, ¢/o Sean P.
Lane, Commtitee Chairman, RAM Energy Resources, Inc., 5100 East Skelly Drive, Suite 650 Tulsa, Oklahoma
74135. The stockholder’s nomination notice shall set forth (i) as to each person whom the stockholder proposes
to nominate for election or reelection as a director (a) the name, age, business address and residence address of
the person, (b) the principal occupation or employment and business experience of the person for at least the
previous five years, {c) the class and number of shares of our capital stock which are beneficialty owned by the
person, and (d) any other information relating to the person that is required to be disclosed in solicitations for
proxies for election of directors pursvant to the rules and regulations of the SEC under Section 14 of the
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, and (ii) as to the stockholder giving the notice (a) the name and
record address of the stockholder and (b) the class and number of shares of our capital stock which is beneficially
owned by the stockholder. Such submission must be accompanied by the written consent of the proposed
nominee to be named as a nominee and to serve as a director, if elected. We may require any proposed nominee
to furnish such other information as may reasonably be required by us to determine the eligibility of such
proposed nominee to serve as a director.

Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee is responsible for identifying qualified candidates o
be presented to our Board of Directors for nomination as directors, ensuring that our Board and our
organizational documents are structured in a way that best serves our practices and objectives, and developing
and recommending a set of corporate governance principles. The charter for the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee requires that the Committee consist of no fewer than three Board members that satisfy
the “independence” requirements of The Nasdaq Stock Market. Each member of our Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee meets these requirements. Following consummation of our acquisition of RAM Energy
on May 8, 2006, our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee held one meeting in 2006, and all
members of the Commitiee were in attendance at that meeting. A copy of the current charter of the Nominating
and Corporate Governance Committee is available on our website at http./Avww. ramenergy.com.

In considering possible candidates for election as a director, the Nominating and Corporate Governance
Committee is guided by the principles that each director should be an individual of high character and integrity
and have:

. independence;

. wisdom;




*  integrity;

»  an understanding and general acceptance of our corporate philosophies;

*  business or professional knowledge and experience that can bear on our challenges and deliberations
and those of our Board of Directors;

*  aproven record of accomplishment with an excellent organization;
*  aninquiring mind;

*  awillingness to speak one’s mind;

*  an ability to challenge and stimulate management; and

+  awillingness to commit time and energy to our business affairs.

Qualified candidates for membership as a director will be considered without regard te race, color, religion,
gender, ancestry, national origin or disability.

In addition to considering possible candidates for election as directors, the Nominating and Corporate
Governance Committee may, in its discretion, review the qualifications and backgrounds of existing directors
and other nominees (without regard to whether a nominee has been recommended by stockholders), as well as
the overall composition of our Board of Directors, and recommend the slate of directors to be nominated for
election at the ensuing annual meeting of stockholders. Currently, we do not employ or pay a fee to any third
party to identify or evaluate, or assist in identifying or evaluating, potential director nominees.

In addition, the charter of our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee provides that the
Committee will evaluate our corporate governance effectiveness and recommend such revisions as it deems
appropriate to improve our corporate governance, The arcas of evaluation may include such matters as the size
and independence requirements of our Board of Directors, Board committees, management success and planning,
and regular meetings of our non-management directors without management in executive sessions. We do not
have a policy requiring members of our Board of Directors to attend annual meetings of our stockholders.

Election of Directors; Voting Agreement

In conjunction with our acquisition of RAM Energy, the former stockholders of RAM Energy, on the one
hand, and Lawrence S. Coben and Isaac Kier (two of our founders and former directors), on the other hand,
entered into a voting agreement pursuant to which they have agreed to vote for the other’s designees as our
directors until immediately following the election that will be held in 2008, as follows:

. in the class to stand for reelection in 2007 — Larry E. Lee and Gerald R. Marshall; and

. in the class to stand for reelection in 2008 — John M. Reardon and Sean P. Lane.

Pursuant to the voting agreement, the former stockholders of RAM Energy have the right to designate three
directors and Messrs. Caben and Kier have the right to designate one director. Messrs. Marshall, Lee and
Reardon are all designees of the former RAM Energy stockholders, Mr. Lane is a designee of Messrs. Coben and
Kier.

Stockholder Communications with the Board

General. Qur Board of Directors believes that direct access to our independent directors, who constitute our
Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee and our Audit Committee, is essential to ensuring that
corporate governance concerns, recommendations for director nominees, questions concerning our accounting
functions, internal controls or auditing practices, and reports of potential violations of law or Company policies,
are addressed at the highest level within the organization. Accordingly, our Board has established the following
contact procedures.




Nominating and Corporate Governance Inguiries. Our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee
has the responsibility of evaluating and improving our corporate governance effectiveness and identifying and
recommending gualified individuals to serve on our Board. Stockholders or Company employees wishing to
communicate with our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee concerning these matters may do so
through our investor relations staff by email to dmurry@ramenergy.com, or by regular mail addressed to:

RAM Energy Resources, Inc.

Autention: Ms. Donna Murry, Investor Relations
Meridian Tower, Suite 650

5100 E. Skelly Drive

Tulsa, OK 74135

A record of each communication will be maintained by our investor relations staff. All appropriate corporate
governance and similar communications from stockholders and employees received by our investor relations
staff promptly will be forwarded to the Chairman of our Nominating and Corporate Governance Committee. If a
response is requested, please so indicate in your communication, together with an email or regular mail address.
While the Committee may not respond to every inquiry, we can assure our stockholders and employees that
every inquiry received by the Commitiee will be reviewed and given full consideration.

Audit Committee Inguiries. Our Audit Committee has the responsibility of establishing procedures to
promote the integrity of our financial statements, including the engagement of internal and external auditors,
monitoring the performance of our accounting staff and overseeing the implementation of internal controls over
our financial statement reporting. In order to enhance the Committee’s performance of these responsibilities, the
Committee has established a toll-free Access Line to enable anyone who has a concern about the Company’s
auditing or accounting practices or our internal controls over financial statement reporting to communicate those
concerns directly to the Chairman of our Audit Committee. The Access Line also may be used to report concerns
about the conduct of Company employees, agents or contractors, or our outside auditors, or to report potential
violations of the law or of Company policies. The Access Line is maintained by a third-party provider and is
available 24 hours a day, seven days a week. All calls will be confidential and anonymous, unless the caller
wishes to leave his or her name and contact information.

The Access Line number is 1-800-249-524],

All calls made to the Access Line will be transcribed and emailed by the Access Line provider to the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. Upon receipt, the Chairman of the Committee will review the information,
advise the other members of the Committee, conduct such investigation and take such action as may be
appropriate to address the concerns expressed in the inquiry. Employees are reminded that the Company does not
permit retaliation of any kind against employees for good faith reports of concerns about the conduct of
Company employees, agents, contractors or outside auditors, or potential violations of law or Company policies.

Code of Ethics

The Company's Code of Ethics, which is applicable to ail directors, managers and employees, embodies the
Company’s global principles and practices relating to the ethical conduct of the Company’s business and its long-
standing commitment to honesty, fair dealing and full compliance with all laws affecting the Company’s
business. The Code of Ethics is available on our website at www.ramenergy.com. The Code of Ethics is also
available in print 10 any stockholder who requesits it.

The Company's toll free Access Line may also be used by employees, customers, suppliers, stockholders
and other interested parties to submit confidential and anonymous reports of suspected or actual violations of the
Company’s Code of Ethics relating, among other things, to:

*  accounting practices, internal accounting controls, or auditing matters and procedures;

» theft or fraud of any amount;




*  insider trading;

*  performance and execution of contracts;

«  conflicts of interest;

*  violations of securities and antitrust laws; and

*  violations of the Foreign Corrupt Practices Act.

Compliance with Section 16{(a) of the Securitics Exchange Act of 1934

Section 16(a) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 requires our directors, executive officers and persons
who beneficially own more than 10% of our common stock to file certain reports with the Securities and
Exchange Commission concerning their beneficial ownership of our equity securities. The SEC’s regulations also
require that a copy of all such Section 16(a) forms filed must be furnished to us by the executive officers,
directors and greater than 10% stockholders, Mr. Larry E. Lee failed to timely file two Form 4s and each of
Messrs. Longmire, Rampey, Smiley, Phaneuf and Cox failed to timely file one Form 4. To our knowledge, based
solely on a review of the copies of such forms and amendments thereto received by us with respect to 2006, all
Section 16(a) filing requirements were met.

Compensation Committee Interlocks and Insider Participation

At December 31, 2006, our Compensation Committee consisted of Sean P. Lane, Gerald R. Marshall and
John M. Reardon. No member of the Compensation Committee was one of our officers or employees, or an
officer or employee of any of our subsidiaries at any time during 2006, and no member of our Compensation
Committee had any relationship requiring disclosure in this proxy statement.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS THAT THE STOCKHOLDERS
VOTE “FOR” THE ELECTION OF MESSRS. LARRY E. LEE AND GERALD R. MARSHALL AS
DIRECTORS.

INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

UHY LLP has served as our independent public accountants for our fiscal years ended December 31, 2005
and 2006, and will serve as our independent public accountants for 2007. Previously, our independent public
accountants were BDO Seidman, LLP.

On May §, 2006, we dismissed BDO Seidman, LLP as our independent registered public accountants in
connection with the closing of the acquisition of RAM Energy. The decision was approved by our Board of
Directors. The report of BDO Seidman, LLP on our balance sheets as of December 31, 2005 and 2004, and the
related statements of operations, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year ended December 31, 2003, the
period ended December 31, 2004, and the period from February 5, 2004 (inception) to December 31, 2005 did
not contain an adverse opinion or disclaimer of opinion. However, such report dated February 10, 2006 contained
an explanatory paragraph relating to our ability to continue as a going concern.

During our fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004 and any subsequent interim period preceding
the termination (through May 8, 2006}, there were no disagreements with BDO Seidman, LLP on any matter of
accounting principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which
disagreements, if not resolved to the satisfaction of BDO Seidman, LLLP would have caused BDO Seidman, LLP
to make reference to the subject matter of the disagreements in connection with its report on the financial
statements for such years or subsequent interim periods. There were no reportable events as described in
Item 304 (a)(i)(v) of Regulation S-B.
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We requested that BDO Seidman, LLP furnish us with a letter addressed to the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”} stating whether or not it agreed with the above statements. A copy of the letter furnished
by BDO Seidman, LLP in response to that request, dated May 8, 2006 is filed as Exhibit 16.1 to our Form §-K
report filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, or SEC, on May 8, 2006.

On May 8, 2006, we engaged UHY Mann Frankfort Stein & Lipp CPAs, LLP (“UHY Mann”) as our new
independent registered public accountanting firm. During the two most recent {iscal years and the interim period
preceding the engagement of UHY Mann, we had not consulted with UHY Mann regarding either: (i) the
application of accounting principles to a specified transaction, either completed or proposed, or the type of audit
opinion that might be rendered on our financial statements; or (i} any matter that was either the subject of a
disagreement or reportable event identified in paragraph (a)(1)iv) of Item 304 of Regulation S-B.

Effective June |, 2006, the partners of UHY Mann joined URY LLP, a New York limited liability
partnership, which is the independent registered public accounting firm with which UHY Mann had an
affiliation. UHY LLP is a legal entity that is separate from UHY Mans. UHY Mann ceased to provide audit
services to us upon consummation of its transaction with UHY LLP, and, contemporaneously with the
consummation of such transaction, resigned as our independent auditors. None of the reports of UHY Mann on
our or our subsidiaries’ financial statements for either of the past two years or subsequent interim periods
contained an adverse opinicn or disclaimer of opinion, or was qualified or modified as to uncertainty, audit scope
or accounting principles.

The decision to change principal accountants from UHY Mann to UHY LLP was approved by our Audit
Committee. During the two most recent fiscal years preceding the date of engagement and all subsequent interim
periods, there were no disagreements between us or our subsidiaries and UHY Mann on any matter of accounting
principles or practices, financial statement disclosure, or auditing scope or procedure, which disagreements, if not
resolved to the satisfaction of UHY Mann, would have caused it to make reference to the subject matter of the
disagreements in connection with its report.

We requested that UHY Mann deliver to us a letter addressed to the SEC stating whether it agrees with the
statements made by us above, and if not, stating the respects in which it does not agree. A copy of the letter of
UHY Mann is filed as Exhibit 16 to our Form 8-K report filed with the SEC on June 5, 2006.

Effective June 1, 2006, we engaged UHY LLP as our independent public accountants for our fiscal year
ended December 31, 2006 and the interim periods prior to such year-end. During our two most recent fiscal years
preceding the engagement or subsequent interim period, we had not consulted with UHY LLP regarding the
application of accounting principles to a specific transaction, either completed or proposed, or the type of audit
opinion that might be rendered on our financial statements, nor did the limited liability partnership of UHY LLP
provide advice to us, either written or oral, that was an important factor considered by us in reaching a decision
as to the accounting, auditing or financial reporting issue. Further, during our two most recent fiscal years or
subsequent inierim periods, we had not consulted with the limited liability partnership of UHY LLP on any
matter that was the subject of a disagreement or a reportable event.

Audit Fees

Audit fees billed to us during the fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2006 for audit or
review of our annual financial statements and our assessment of the effectiveness of the internal controls over

financial reporting, and those financial statements included in our quarterly reports on Form 10-Q, totaled
$678,104 for 2005 and $352,483 for 2006.

Audit-Related Fees

Audit-related fees billed to us during our fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2006 for
assurance and related services reasonably related to the audit or review of our financial statements, but not
otherwise disclosed under the heading “Audit Fees” above, totaled $69,356 for 2005 and $157,246 for 2006.
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Tax Fees

No tax fees were billed to us by UHY LLP during our fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 or
December 31, 2006 for tax compliance, tax advice or tax planning.

All Other Fees

Fees billed to us during our fiscal years ended December 31, 2005 and December 31, 2006 for all other
non-audit services totaled $91,871 for 2005 and $105,555 for 2006. These services primarily relate to
pre-acquisition accounting and operating data verification supporting our detailed due diligence investigations for
the acquisition of RAM Energy that we consummated in 2006.

The Audit Committee has determined that the provision of non-audit services by UHY did not impact the
independence of that firm, and was compatible with maintaining such auditor’s independence,

The Audit Committee approves in advance all audit and non-audit services to be performed for us by our
independent accountants, The Audit Committee pre-approved services which represented the following
percentages of fees billed in each category in 2005 and 2006:

2005 2006
Audit-Related Fees .. ...t e 100.0 100.0
AllOther Fees ... . i e e e e 100.0 1000

PROPOSAL II
RATIFICATION OF APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS

UHY LLP was recommended by the Audit Committee of our Board of Directors for reappointment as our
independent auditors for 2007, and we have signed an engagement letter with UHY for UHY to serve as our
independent auditors for 2007. UHY served as our independent auditors for the year ended December 31, 2006.
UHY is a member of the SEC Practice Section of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants and is
registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board.

UHY representatives are expected to attend the 2007 annual meeting. They will have an opportunity to
make a statement if they desire to do so and will be available to respond to appropriate stockholder questions.

Stockholder ratification of the selection of UHY as our independent auditors is not required by our by-laws
or otherwise. However, we are submitting the selection of UHY to the stockholders for ratification as a matter of
good corporate practice. If the stockholders fail to ratify the selection, the Audit Committee will reconsider
whether or not to retain UHY. Even if the selection is ratified, the Audit Committee in its discretion may direct
the appointment of a different independent audit firm at any time during the year if it is determined that such a
change would be in our best interests and the best interests of our stockholders.

THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS UNANIMOUSLY RECOMMENDS A VOTE “FOR” THE

RATIFICATION OF THE APPOINTMENT OF THE FIRM OF UHY LLP AS INDEPENDENT
AUDITORS FOR RAM ENERGY RESOURCES, INC. FOR THE YEAR 2007.
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EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION AND OTHER INFORMATION

Compensation Discussion and Analysis
Overview of Compensation Program

Our Board of Directors has overall responsibility for establishing compensation for our directors and
executive officers. Our Board has delegated to the Compensation Committee of the Board the responsibility for
establishing, implementing and continually monitoring adherence with our compensation philosophy with respect
to our executive officers. The Committee ensures that the total compensation paid to our executive officers is
fair, reasonable and competitive. Throughout this proxy statement, the individuals who served as our chief
executive officer and chief financial officer during fiscal 2006, as well as the other individuals included in the
Summary Compensation Table provided below, are referred to as our named executive officers. With the
exception of our president and chief executive officer, Larry E. Lee, the types of compensation and benefits
provided to our named executive officers are similar to those provided to other executive officers, Compensation
and benefits provided to Mr. Lee are controlled by his employment agreement described below.

Compensation Philosophy and Objectives

The Committee believes that the most effective executive compensation program is one designed 10 retain
our key executives, reward the achievement of annual, long-term and strategic goals, align the executives’
interests with those of the stockholders and ultimately improve stockholder value. The Committee evaluates both
performance and compensation to ensure we maintain our ability to attract and retain superior employees in key
positions and that compensation provided to our key employees remains competitive relative to the compensation
paid to similarly situated executives of our peer companies. To that end, the Committee belicves executive
compensation packages provided to our executives, including our named executive officers, should include both
cash and stock-based compensation.

Role of Executive Officers in Compensation Decisions

The Committee makes all compensation decisions for all of our executive officers and, after consultation
with our president and chief executive officer, approves equity awards to all of our employees. Decisions
regarding the non-equity compensation of other employees are made by our president and chief executive officer
after consultation with the Committee.

Qur president and chief executive officer annually reviews the performance of each executive officer (other
than himself, whose performance is reviewed by the Committee). The conclusions reached as the result of and
recommendations based on these reviews, including recommendations with respect to salary adjustments and
annual bonus or equity award amounts, are presented to the Committee. The Committee then exercises its
discretion in determining adjustments or awards to executive officers.

Setting Executive Compensation

Based on the foregoing objectives, the Committee has structured our annual and long-term cash and
non-cash executive compensation to:

+  reward key executives who have been with us and contributed to our success;

*  entice executives to join us and provide incentive to remain employed;

*  motivate performance that will lead to long-term improvements in our oil and natural gas operations;
= strengthen the alignment between our stockholders and executive and key personnel; and

*  encourage and facilitate executive ownership of our stock.

Our Board engaged Villareal & Associates, Inc., an outside compensation consulting firm, to assist the
Board and the Committee in crafting our total compensation program for our directors and executive officers. In
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its reports, Villareal & Associates provided the Board and the Committee with relevant market data and
alternatives to consider when making compensation decisions for our directors and executive officers.

Villareal & Associates provided us certain comparative data with what it believed to be our compensation peer
group with which we compete for top executive-level talent. The comparative data include certain information
set forth in the current Mercer Energy Compensation Survey and the Watson Wyatt Reports on Top Management
and Middle Management Compensation Practices.

To meet our objectives, the Committee has determined to allocate a significant percentage of total
compensation (o incentive-based compensation. There is no pre-established policy or target for the allocation
between cash and non-cash or short-term and long-term incentive compensation. Rather, the Committee reviews
information provided by our president and chief executive officer, outside consultants and industry surveys and
reports to determine the appropriate level and mix of incentive compensation versus base salary.

2006 Executive Compensation Components

For the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, the principal components of compensation for our named
executive officers were:

=  base salary; ;
+  performance-based incentive compensation;
< retirement and other benefits; and

s perquisites and other personal benefits,

Base Salary

We provide our named executive officers and other employees with base salary to compensate them for
services rendered during the fiscal year. Base salary ranges for our named executive officers are determined for
each executive based on his or her pesition and respensibility by using market data. Base salary ranges are
designed so that salary opportunitics for a given position generally will be within the upper 25% quartile of the
market salary surveyed.

During its review of base salaries for executives, the Committee primarily considers:
»  market data provided by our outside consultant;
*  internal review of the executive's compensation, both individually and relative to other officers; and

*  individual performance of the executive.

Salary levels are typically considered annually as part of our performance review process as well as upon a
promotion or other change in job responsibility. Merit-based increases to salaries of named executive officers are
based on the Committee’s assessment of the individual’s performance.

Performance-Based Incentive Compensation

The Committee has the latitude to design cash and stock-based incentive compensation awards intended to
promote and reward high performance and achievement of corporate goals by key employees, encourage the
growth of stockholder value and allow key employees to participate in our long-term growth and profitability.
Compensation is paid in the form of cash bonuses, granis of restricted siock, share units, stock options, stock
appreciation rights, performance units and performance bonuses, or some combination of these awards. In
granting these awards, the Committee may establish any conditions or restrictions it deems appropriate. Stock-
based awards will generally vest between two and five years after the date of the grant. An exception was our
May 8, 2006 restricted stock awards made to Messrs, Longmire, Rampey and Smiley, which restricted stock
awards were made in connection with the consummation of our merger with RAM Energy, Inc. and vested thirty
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days following issuance. Awards of restricted stock to our insiders subject to Section 16{b}) of the Securities Act
of 1933 require the approval of the Committee, Ownership of restricted stock granted under our 2006 Long-Term
Incentive Plan by our named executive officers is set forth under the heading “Security Ownership of Certain
Beneficial Owners and Management.”

If made, all stock-based awards under our 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan will be made at or above the
market price of our common stock at the time of the award. The Committee may grant awards of stock options or
restricted stock awards to executives at any regularly scheduled or special meeting. The grant date of any stock
option or restricted stock award will be determined in accordance with FAS 123(R).

Three grant decisions were made in 2006. On May 8, 2006, at the initia} meeting of our Board immediately
following our merger with RAM Energy, Inc., our Board granted restricted stock awards of 10,000 shares to
Messrs. Lane, Marshall and Reardon, our non-employee directors. This is the maximum grant we can make in
any calendar year to our non-employee directors pursuaat to our 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan. These
restricted stock grants vested thirty days following issuance in order to provide an immediate sense of
participation by our non-employee directors in our performance and growth. Also on May 8, 2006, cur Board
granted restricted stock awards of 100,000 shares each to Messrs. Longmire, Rampey and Smiley, certain of our
named executive officers. This is the maximum grant we can make to employees in any calendar year pursuant to
our 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan. The restricted stock grants to Messrs. Longmire, Rampey and Smiley also
vested thirty days following issuance. The closing price of our common stock on May 8, 2006 was $6.72 per
share and the closing price of our common stock on the date of vesting of these restricted share grants was $6.04.
The amount of the grants, and the short vesting period, was approved by the Board to reward these named
executive officers for their long-standing service 1o RAM Energy, Inc., as well as to provide these executives the
ability to participate in the increase in value of RAM Energy, Inc. over the past several years.

On November 10, 2006, with the assistance of Villareal & Associates, the Committee made salary-based
awards for initial equity compensation grants to 22 of our employees, excluding Messrs. Longmire, Rampey and
Smiley. The awards were based on a percentage of base salary, which range from 100% to 200% of base salary.
Included as a recipient of the restricted stock awards granted November 10, 2006 was Mr. Cox, our vice
president, secretary and treasurer. The market price of our common stock on the grant date was $5.06 per share, ‘
These grants vest over a five year period.

The Commiitee does not use specific financial or operational targets to determine awards of incentive
compensation. The nature of the oil and natural gas industry makes targets difficult, because many of the
components of financial and operational targets tend to be outside of management’s control. These components
include commodity prices, availability of drilling and service equipment, and drilling and completion schedules
under the control of third parties, among others.

On March 12, 2007, our Compensation Committee approved cash bonuses for our executive officers for
performance during 2006. Mr Lee received a cash bonus of $200,000; Messrs. Longmire, Rampey and Smiley
each received cash bonuses of $100,000, and Messrs. Cox and Phaneuf each received cash bonuses of $75,000.
In addition, on March 12, 2007 Messrs. Rampey and Smiley each received restricted stock awards of 100,000
shares of our common stock. The restrictions lapse ratably over a five year period.

Retirement and Other Benefits

Our 401(k) Profit Sharing Plan is a tax-qualified retirement savings plan pursuant to which all employees,
including the named executive officers, are able to contribute the lesser of up to 100% of their annual salary or
the limit prescribed by the Internal Revenue Service to the plan on a before-tax basis. In 2006, we elected to
match 100% of each employee’s contribution to the plan. On March 29, 2007 our Board determined that for
2007. we would match 100% of employee contributions up to 6% of the employee’s salary. All contributions to
the plan as well as any matching contributions are fully vested upon contribution,
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Perquisites and Other Personal Benefits

We provide our executive officers with perquisites and other personal benefits that we believe are
reasonable and consistent with our overall compensation program to better enable us to attract and retain superior
employees for key positions. The Committee periodically reviews the levels of perquisites and other personal
benefits provided to our executive officers. The perquisites provided to our named executive officers are set forth
in footnotes 5 and 6 of the Summary Compensation Table below. Attributed costs of the personal benefits for the
named executive officers for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, are included in column (i) of the
Summary Compensation Table below.

Executive Employment Agreement

In connection with the consummation of our merger with RAM Energy, Inc. in May 2006, we entered into
an employment agreement with Larry E. Lee, under the terms of which Mr. Lee will serve as our president and
chief executive officer for a term of three years. The employment agreement provides that Mr. Lee will receive
an annual base salary of $450,000. [n addition, we pay the annual premium on a term life insurance policy owned
by Mr. Lee, the costs of his annual physical examinations, and certain country club dues and expenses. Mr. Lee
also may be awarded a bonus for any fiscal year during the employment term, either pursuant to an incentive
compensation plan maintained by us or as otherwise may be determined by our board of directors.

The employment agreement provides for certain payments in the event of Mr. Lee’s termination. The
termination payments are discussed below.

The employment agreement contains certain restrictive covenants that prohibit Mr. Lee from disclosing
information that is confidential to us and our subsidiaries and generally prohibits him, during the employment
term and for one year thereafter, from soliciting or hiring our employees and those of our subsidiaries. The
employment agreement does not contain any restrictive covenants thal otherwise limit Mr. Lee’s ability to
compete with us and our subsidiaries following his employment.

Tax and Accounting Implications

The Committee reviews and considers the deductibility of executive compensation under Section 162(m) of
the Internal Revenue Code, which provides that we may not deduct compensation of more than $1,000,000 paid
to certain individuals in any taxable yvear. We believe compensation paid by us is generally fully deductible for
federal income tax purposes. However, in certain situations, the Committee may approve compensation that will
not meet these requirements in order 1o ensure competitive levels of total compensation for our executive
officers. For fiscal 2006, all amounts paid to our named executive officers were deductible.

On October 22, 2004, the American Jobs Creation Act of 2004 was signed into law, changing the tax rules
applicable to nonqualified deferred compensation arrangements. We believe we are operating in good faith
compliance with the statutory provisions that were effective January 1, 2005.

Beginning on January 1, 2006, we began accounting for stock-based payments including grants and awards
under our 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan in accordance with the requirements of FAS 123(R).

Compensation Committee Report

The Compensation Committee has reviewed and discussed the Compensation Discussion and Analysis
required by Item 402(b) of Regulation S-K with management and, based on such review and discussions, the
Compensation Committee recommended to the Board that the Compensation Discussion and Analysis be
included in this proxy statement .

THE COMPENSATION COMMITTEE

John M. Reardon, Chairman
Sean P. Lane
Gerald R. Marshalf
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Summary Compensation Table

The table below summarizes the total compensation paid or earned by each of the named executive officers
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006. Substantially all of the compensation paid to our president and
chief executive officer, Larry E. Lee, results from the terms of his employment agreement. We have not entered
into any employment agreements with any of the other named executive officers.

Based on the fair value of equity awards granted to named executive officers in 2006 and the base salary of
the named executive officers, “Salary” accounted for approximately 33% of the total compensation of the named
executive officers while incentive compensation accounted for approximately 67% of the total compensation of
the named executive officers. The table below reflects compensation paid to each named executive officer while
executive officers of RAM Energy, Inc. prior to our acquisition of it on May 8, 2006, as well as amounts paid by
us after the acquisition date.

() (b) (c} (d) (e) () d)

All
Salary Bonus Stock awards com pe‘::;‘aetIi‘on Total
Name and Principal Position Year $) (t)] {$}4) {$)(5) (43]
LamyE. Lee ... ... ... . i it 2006 $450,000 $350000(1) $ — $227,345(6) $1,027,345
President and Principal Executive Officer
JohnM.Longmire ....................... 2006 190,000  100,0000(2)(3) 672,000 34,003 996,003
Senior Vice President and Principal Financial
Officer
Larry G.Rampey ........ ... ... ..ot 2006 212,500 100,000(2)(3) 672,000 36,977 1,021,497
Senior Vice President
Drake N.Smiley ......................... 2006 195,000  100,00002)(3) 672,000 39,265 1,066,265
Senior Vice President
JohnL.Cox........ ... ... ... .. oo 2006 156,250 75,000(2) — 34,869 266,119

Vice President, Secretary and Treasurer

(1) A bonus of $150,000 was paid to Mr. Lee by RAM Energy prior to our May 8, 2006 acquisition of RAM
Energy. A bonus of $200,000 was earned in 2006 and paid to Mr. Lee in 2007,

(2) These amounts represent bonuses earned in 2006 and paid in 2007.

(3) While not earned in 2006, deferred bonuses of $50,000 were paid in 2006 to each of Messrs. Longmire,
Rampey and Smiley as a result of Deferred Bonus Compensation Plan awards granted by RAM Energy in
2004 and 2005, and each will receive a bonus of $25,000 in 2007 as the final payment of the bonuses
awarded in 2005. The deferred bonus payments are not reflected in the bonus amounts in column (d).

(4) The amounts in column (e) reflect the dollar amount recognized for financial statement reporting purposes
for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, in accordance with FAS 123(R) of restricted stock awards
pursuant to our 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan, _

(3) The amounts shown in column (i) reflect for each named executive officer the value attributable to personal
use of Company-provided automobiles (each as calculated in accordance with Internal Revenue Service
guidelines) included as compensation on the IRS Form W-2 of the named executive officers who receive
such benefits. Income taxes on such amounts are also reimbursed by us and included on each officer’s W-2.
The value attributable to these amounts were as follows: Mr. Lee — $59,595; Mr. Longmire — $14,003;
Mr. Rampey — $16,977; Mr, Smiley — $19,265; and Mr. Cox — $14,869. These amounts also include a
401(k) match for each named executive officer of $20,000.

(6) For our president and chief executive officer, includes the following:

*  While the president and chief executive officer of RAM Energy, Inc. prior to its acquisition by us on
May &, 2006, perquisites totaling $152,486. This amount is comprised of use of company car and tax
thereon (described in footnote 3), meals and entertainment, travel and lodging, costs related to personal
residences, social and country club dues, boat storage costs, medical expenses, and other immaterial

perquisites.
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»  Following our acquisition on May 8, 2006, and under the terms of Mr. Lee’s employment agreement,
use of company car and tax thereon (described in footnote 5), an annual premium for a $5.0 million life
insurance policy, country club dues, and costs related to an annual physical examination. Other
perquisites include spousal travel, other club dues, meals and entertainment, and other immaterial
perquisites. Perquisites paid after May 8, 2006 totaled $54,859

Total amount paid for meals and entertainment was $34,954, of which $34,110 was incurred by RAM
Energy, Inc. prior to our acquisition of RAM Energy, Inc., and $844 was incurred after the date of the
acquisition. Total amount paid for travel and lodging was $31,579, of which $25,332 was incurred by RAM
Energy, Inc. prior to our acquisition of RAM Energy, Inc., and $6,247 was incurred after the date of
acquisition.

Grants of Plan-Based Awards In 2006

{a) (b 0] (4}
All Other All Other
Stock Option
Awards: Awards:
Number of Number of
Shares of Securities
Stock or  Underlying
Units (#) Options
Name Grant Date (N #)
Lamy B e .. e e — — —
Larry G.RamMpey . ...t i i 05/08/2006  100,000(2) —
John M. Longmire ............... . it 05/08/2006  100,0002) —
Prake N.Smiley .. ... e 05/08/2006 100,000(2) —
John L. CoX ... e e 11/10/2006 69,170(3) —
(1) The amounts shown in column (i) reflect the number of shares of restricted stock granted to each named

executive officer pursuant to our 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan.

These restricted stock grants vested thirty days following the grant date, resulting in the granting and vesting
of the restricted stock awards in the same year. The market price of the shares of our common stock on the
date of grant was $6.72 per share.

This restricted stock grant vests in equal increments annually over a five-year period from the date of grant,

(2

€))

Outstanding Equity Awards at Fiscal Year-end

Stock Awards

@ (g) th) (E) 0
Equity Equity
Incentive Incentive
Plan Awards: Plan Awards:
Number of Market or
Number of Market Value Unearned Payout Value
Shares or of Sharesor  Shares, Units of Unearned
Units of Units of or Other Shares, Units
Stock That Stock Rights That  or Other Rights
Have Not That Have Have Not That Have Not
Name Vested Not Vested Vested Vested
Larmry B Lee ..o o e — —_ — 5 —
Larry G.Rampey ....... ... — — — —
John M. Longmire .............. ... ... ... . ..., — — — —_
Drake N.Smiley .......... .. ... ... o iiiaan, — — — —
John L. Cox ... .. . i e — — 69,170 381,127
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Option Exercises and Stock Vested

Stock Awards

6] d) (e)

Number of

shares

Acquired on Value Realized
Name Vesting (#) on Vesting (5)
Lamy B Lee .o e e — 5§ —
Larry G.Rampey . ... i iiiieaneas 100,000 $604,000
John M. Longmire ..........cccvuuriirrrenneennnnanans 100,000 $604.000
Drake N, Smiley . ..., .. .. . .00 100,000 $604,000
John L. CoX .. i i e — 3} —

Potential Payments Upon Termination or Change of Control

With the exception of certain provisions in Larry E. Lee’s employment agreement and our Deferred Bonus
Compensation Plan, we are not obligated to any of the named executive officers in the event of termination of
such executive’s employment or upon a change of control.

Mr. Lee’s Employment Agreement. The amount of compensation payable to Larry E. Lee, as set forth in his
employment agreement, upon voluntary termination, termination for cause, tenmination for good reason and
termination in the event of disability or death is shown below. The amounts shown assume that such termination
was effective as of December 31, 2006, and thus includes amounts earned through such time and are estimates of
the amounts which would be paid out to Larry E. Lee upon his termination. The actual amounts to be paid out
can only be determined at the time of his separation from us.

The term “disability” means disability (either physical or mental) which {i) materially and adversely affects
Mr. Lee’s ability to perform his duties required of his office, and (ii) at least 26 weeks after its commencement, is
determined to be total and permanent by a physician selected by us or our insurers and acceptable to Mr. Lee or
his legal representative. The term “cause” means termination for one of the following reasons:

*  the conviction of Mr. Lee of a felony by a federal or state court of competent jurisdiction;

* an act or acts of dishonesty taken by Mr. Lee and intended to result in substantial personal enrichment
of Mr. Lee at our expense; or

. Mr. Lee’s failure to follow a direct, reasonable and lawful written order from the Board, within the
reasonable scope of his duties, which failure is not cured within 30 days.

The term “good reason”™ means:

=  the assignment to Mr. Lee of any duties inconsistent in any respect with his position (including status,
offices, titles and reporting requirements), authority, duties or responsibilities as contemplated by the
employment agreement;

= any other action taken by us which results in a diminution in Mr. Lee’s position, compensation,
authority, duties or responsibilities, excluding for this purpose an isolated, insubstantial and inadvertent
action not taken in bad faith and which we remedy within ten (10) days after receipt of notice thereof
given by Mr. Lee;

*  any failure by us to otherwise perform our obligations under the employment agreement, other than an
isolated, insubstantial and inadvertent failure not occurring in bad faith and which we remedy within
ten (10) days after receipt of notice thereof given by Mr. Lee;

=  our requiring Mr. Lee to be based at any office or location other than that described in the employment
agreement, except for periodic travel reasonably required in the performance of his responsibilities;
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*  any purported termination by us of Mr. Lee’s employment otherwise than as expressly permitted by the
employment agreement; or

«  any failure by us to cause any successor entity to assume our obligations to Mr. Lee under the
employment agreement.

Payments Made Upon Termination Other Than for Cause, Death or Disability, or by Mr. Lee for Good Reason

In the event Mr. Lee is terminated for reasons other than cause, death or disability, or Mr. Lee resigns for
good reason:

*  we will be obligated to pay to Mr. Lee in a lump sum payment the following amounts:
*  his annual base salary through the date of termination to the extent not already paid,

»  the highest bonus paid to Mr. Lee during his employment term for a full fiscal year, pro rated for
that porticon of the year of termination in which Mr. Lee is employed by us;

«  anamount equal to 200% of Mr. Lee’s base salary in effect on the date of termination;
*  any deferred compensation and accrued vacation pay;

* if Mr. Lee qualifies for accelerated vesting of stock options, restricted stock awards or other
employee benefits, but the acceleration would adversely affect the tax status of the plan or other
participants in the plan, an amount equal to the benefit he would receive had accelerated vesting
occurred; and

*  a“gross-up” payment in an amount equal to any excise tax, or interest or penalties related to any
excise tax, assessed against Mr. Lee pursuant to Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended, based upon the payments discussed above, the vesting of any stock or option
rights under any benefit plan and the payment of the “gross-up” amount;

. all of Mr. Lee’s stock options and restricted stock awards will vest; and

*  Mr. Lee and his family, if applicable, may continue to participate in any welfare benefit plan offered by
us through the term of the employment agreement to the same extent as if Mr, Lee continued to be
emploved by us through the full term of the employment agreement.

Payments Made Upon Termination for Cause or by Mr. Lee for other than Good Reason

In the event Mr. Lee is terminated for cause, or Mr. Lee resigns for other than good reason, we have no
further obligations to Mr. Lee other than a lump sum payment of the following amounts:

*  his annual base salary through the date of termination to the extent not already paid;
*  any deferred compensation; and

*

¢ a‘““gross-up” payment in an amount equal to any excise tax, or interest or penalties related to any excise
tax, assessed against Mr. Lee pursuant to Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as
amended, based upon the payments discussed above and the payment of the “gross-up” amount.

Payments Made Upon Death or Disability
In the event of Mr. Lee’s death or disability:
«  we will be obligated to pay to Mr. Lee in a lump sum payment the following amounts:
»  his annual base salary through the date of termination to the extent not already paid;
¢ the bonus paid to Mr. Lee for the last full fiscal year, pro rated for that portion of the year of

termination during which year Mr. Lee is employed by us;
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*  an amount equal to Mr. Lee’s base salary in effect on the date of termination for the lesser of
twelve (12) months or the remaining term of the employment agreement;

¢ any deferred compensation and accrued vacation pay;

* if Mr. Lee qualifies for accelerated vesting of stock options, restricted stock awards or other
employee benefits, but the acceleration would adversely affect the tax status of the plan or other
participants in the plan, an amount equal to the benefit he would receive had accelerated vesting
oceurred; and

*  a“gross-up” payment in an amount equal to any excise tax, or interest or penalties related to any
excise tax, assessed against Mr. Lee pursuant to Section 4999 of the Internal Revenue Code of
1986, as amended, based upon the payments discussed above, the vesting of any stock or option
rights under any benefit plan and the payment of the “gross-up” amount; and

+ all of Mr. Lee’s stock options and restricted stock awards will vest.

The following table shows the potential payments upon termination of Mr. Lee’s employment with us as set
forth in his employment agreement.

Voluntary
Termination  Voluntary Involuntary
Without Termination Not For
Executive Benefits and Payments Upon Good With Good Cause For Cause
Separation Reason Reason Termination Termination Disability Death

Compensation:
Base Salary(1) ............. $— $900,000  $900,000 $— $450,000 $450,000
Bonus .................... -_— — — — — —
Benefits & Perquisites:
Stock Awards . ............. —_ — — — — —
Deferred Compensation(1} . . . . _ — — — — —
Health and Welfare
Benefits(2) .............. — 29,008 29,008 — — —
Excise Tax and Gross-Up .. ... — — — — — —
Accrued VacationPay ....... —_ —_ — — — —

Total ............c it $— $929,008  $929,008 $— $450,000 $450,000

(1) Assumes termination as of December 31, 2006 and all salary due and payable, and all matching
contributions pursuant to our 401(k) plan, deferred compensation and accrued vacation pay to that date have
been paid.

(2) Average monthly cost is $1,036, with approximately 28 months remaining under the term of the
employment agreement.

Deferred Bonus Compensation Plan. On April 21, 2004, RAM Energy, Inc. adopted a Deferred Bonus
Compensation Plan for its senior management employees. The plan provides additional compensation for
significant business transactions with a portion of each bonus to be deferred to encourage retention of key
employees. Qur Compensation Committee did not make grants under this plan for services rendered in 2006, and
does not expect to make grants under this plan in the future.

For services rendered in 2004 and 2005, Messrs. Longmire, Rampey and Smiley were granted cash awards
of $75,000 each, with one-third of each award vesting on each anniversary date for three years beginning on
July 1, 2004 and July 1, 2005, respectively. In the event of a change of control, each participant in our Deferred
Bonus Compensation Plan becomes 100% vested in all unvested portions of previously granted awards as of the
date such change of control occurs. Similarly, in the event of a participant’s involuntary termination or
termination of employment due to death or disability, the participant will immediately become 100% vested in
the award as of the date of involuntary termination, death or disability A lump sum cash payment must be made
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within thirty (30) days of becoming vested. [n the event of the death of a participant, the deferred portion of the
participant’s award that becomes vested as of the date of death shall be paid to the beneficiary designated by the
participant.

Under this plan, an involuntary termination results when a participant is terminated without cause. A change
of control occurs on the date on which one of the following events occurs:

*  any sale or transfer of our common stock which results in less than fifty percent (50%) of our
outstanding voting securities being owned by persons or entities (or the heirs, legatees, family members
or family-owned entities of persons or entities) who owned fifty percent {50%) or more of such
securities prior to such sale or transfer;

= our merger or consolidation with or into another entity as a result of which less than fifty percent
{50%) of the outstanding voting securities of the surviving or resulting entity are owned by persons or
entities (or the heirs, legatees, family members or family-owned entities of persons or entities) who
owned fifty percent (50%) or more of our voting securities prior to such merger or consolidation; or

* the sale of all or substantially all of our assets to an entity of which less than fifty percent (50%) of the
outstanding voting securities of such entity are owned by persons or entities (or the heirs, legatees,
family members or family-owned entities of persons or entities) who owned fifty percent (50%) or
more of our voting securities prior to such asset sale.’

As of January 1, 2007, the potential payments upon termination to our named executive officers who are
participants in our Deferred Bonus Compensation Plan upon a change of control, termination of their
employment without cause or their disability or death as set forth in the plan is $25,000 each.

Director Compensation

Our Board determines all cash and non-cash compensation paid to our directors. We use a combination of
cash and stock-based incentive compensation to attract and retain qualified candidates to serve on our Board. We
intend to pay our non-employee directors an annual fee of $75,000, of which at least $40,000 is payable in the
form of restricted stock awards under our 2006 Long-term Incentive Plan. The objective of this policy is to
increase each director’s beneficial ownership in us and more closely align the director’s interests in our long-term
growth and profitability with that of our stockholders. As reflected below, amounts in excess of the $75,000
annual fee were paid in 2006 due to the increased efforts expended by the non-employee directors in 2006 in
connection with our merger with RAM Energy, Inc. We also reimburse all of our directors for travel and other
expenses. Committee chairs do not receive any additional compensation for their services. Our employee
directors are not compensated for their services as a director of our Board.

On May 8, 2006, we granted restricted stock awards of 10,000 shares to each of Messrs. Lane, Marshall and
Reardon, which fully vested on June 8, 2006. The awards were expensed at the fair market price of our common
stock on the date of vesting, or $6.04 per share.

Director Summary Compensation Table. The table below summarizes the compensation paid by us to
non-employee directors for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006.

(b) {c) (n ()
Fees Earned Stock All Other
or Paid in Awards  Compensation
Name Cash ($) ($)42) $) Total(4)
Sean P. Lane . ... e $23,333 $67.200 $0 $90,533
Gerald R. Marshall ........... .. ... i i, $31,333(1) $67,200 $0(3) $98,533
John M. Reardon . ......... ... .. oo i $31,333(1) $67,200 $0(3) $98,533

(1) Messrs. Marshall and Reardon served as directors of RAM Energy, Inc. prior to its acquisition by us on
May 8, 2006.
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(2) The amounts reflect the dollar amount recognized for financial reporting purposes for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2006 in accordance with FAS 123(R)
(3) Excludes perquisites.

2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan,

Our 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan, or the 2006 Plan, became effective in May 2006 upon consummation
of the merger.

The purposes of our 2006 Plan are to create incentives designed to motivate our employees to significantly
contribute toward our growth and profitability, to provide our executives, directors and other employees, and
persons who, by their position, ability and diligence, are able to make important contributions to our growth and
profitability, with an incentive to assist us in achieving our long-term corporate objectives, to attract and retain
executives and other employees of outstanding competence, and to provide such persons with an opportunity to
acquire an equity interest in us.

We may grant incentive and non-qualified stock options, stock appreciation rights, performance units,
restricted stock awards and performance bonuses, which we refer to collectively as awards, to our officers and
key employees, and those of our subsidiaries. In addition, the 2006 Plan authorizes the grant of non-qualified
stock options and restricted stock awards to our directors and to any independent contractors and consultants who
by their position, ability and diligence are able to make importaat contributions to our future growth and
profitability. Generally, all classes of our employees are eligible to participate in our 2006 Plan.

We reserved 2,400,000 shares of our authorized common stock for issuance of awards to be granted
pursuant to our 2006 Plan, 1,209,195 shares of which remained reserved for issuance at March 31, 2007, Each
share issued under an option or under a restricted stock award will be counted against this limit. Shares to be
delivered at the time a stock option is exercised or at the time a restricted stock award is made may be available
from authorized but unissued shares or from stock previously issued but which we have reacquired and hold in
our treasury. In accordance with the 2006 Plan, no option can be granted at an exercise price less than the fair
market value of our common stock on the date of grant.

In the event of any change in our outstanding common stock by reason of any reorganization,
recapitalization, stock split, stock dividend, combination of shares, merger, consolidation, issuance of rights or
other similar transactions, the number of shares of our common stock which may be issued upon exercise of
outstanding options, and the exercise price of options previously granted under our 2006 Plan, will be
proportionally adjusted to prevent any enlargement or dilution of the rights of holders of previously granted
options as may be appropriate to reflect any such transaction or event.

AUDIT COMMITTEE REPORT

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of RAM Energy Resources, Inc. (the “Company™) is
responsible for providing independent, objective oversight and review of the Company’s accounting functions
and internal controls. The Audit Committee is comprised of three non-employee directors. The Audit Committee
is governed by a written charter adopted and approved by the Company’s Board of Directors in May 2006. The
Company’s Board of Directors determined that all members of the Audit Committee are “independent” under
The Nasdaq Stock Market listing standards, and that Gerald R. Marshall is an audit committee financial expert,
as defined by SEC rules.

The responsibilities of the Audit Committee include recommending to the Company’s board of directors an
accounting firm to serve as its independent auditors. The Audit Committee also, as appropriate, reviews and
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evaluates, and discusses and consults with the Company’s management, its internal audit personnel and its
independent accountants regarding the following:

*  the plan for, and the independent accountants’ report on, each audit of the Company’s financial
statements;

*  the Company’s financial disclosure documents, including all financial statements and reports filed with
the SEC or sent to its stockholders, as well as the adequacy of its internal accounting controls, and
accounting, financial and auditing personnel;

e changes in the Company’s accounting practices, principles, controls or methodologies, or in its
financial statements, and recent developments in accounting rules; and

»  the establishment and maintenance of an environment at the Company that promotes ethical behavior.

The Audit Committee Charter of RAM Energy Resources, Inc. provides, among other things, that the Audit
Committee must pre-approve all audit and non-audit services to be provided by the Company’s independent
auditors. The Audit Committee reviewed the Audit Committee Charter and, after appropriate review and
discussions, the Audit Committee determined that it had fulfilled its responsibilities under the Audit Committee
Charter.

The Audit Committee is responsible for recommending to the Company’s Board of Directors that the
Company’s financial statements be included in its annual report. The Audit Committee took a number of steps in
making this recommendation for 2006. First, the Audit Committee discussed with UHY LLP, the Company’s
independent auditors for 2006, those matters required to be discussed by SAS 61 (Codification of Statements on
Auditing Standards, AU § 380), including information concerning the scope and results of the audit. These
communications and discussions are intended to assist the Audit Committee in overseeing the financial reporting
and disclosure process. Second, the Audit Committee discussed UHY’s independence with UHY and received
the written disclosures and a letter from UHY regarding its independence as required by Independence Standards
Board Standard No. 1, Independence Discussions with Audit Committees, This discussion and disclosure
informed the Audit Committee of UHY’s independence, and assisted the Audit Committee in evaluating such
independence. The Aundit Committee also concluded that UHY’s provision of non-audit services to the Company
is compatible with UHY s independence. Finally, the Audit Committec reviewed and discussed, with the
Company’s management and with UHY, the Company’s audited consalidated balance sheets at December 31,
2006, and the related consolidated statements of income, stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the year ended
December 31, 2006. Based on the discussions with UHY concerning the audit, the independence discussions, the
financial statement review and additional matters deemed relevant and appropriate by the Audit Committee, the
Audit Committee recommended to the Company’s Board of Directors that the Annual Report on Form 10-K of
RAM Energy Resources, Inc., for its fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, include these financial statemeants.

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Sean P. Lane

Gerald R. Marshall
John M, Reardon

March 29, 2007
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SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF
CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT

The following table sets forth information regarding the beneficial ownership of our common stock as of
April 29, 2007 by:

«  each person known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of our outstanding shares of
common stock;

. each of our named executive officers;
* each of our directors; and

= all our current executive officers and directors as a group.

Number of Percent of

Name and Address of Beneficial Owner Shares Class(l)
Larry B Lee(2) ) .. i e e e 12,605,187 31%
Britani Taliey Bowman{d)(5) ........ ... ... ... .. .. . i i, 11,430,187 28%
John M. Longmire(2) ........ ... ... i i 67,300 *
John L. Cox(2) .. ... i e e 69,170 *
Larry G. Rampey(2) . ... i it et e e 167,300 *
Drake N. Smiley(2) ... ... 167,300 *
Gerald R.Marshall(2) ...........c0 i i, 15,000 *
John M. Reardon(2) . ... e 16,000 *
Sean P Lane(6) . . ... ... i e e 15,500(7) *
Robert E. Phaneuf(2) . ... .. . . 75,100

Rockbay Capital Management, LP(8) . .............. ... .. 2,295,690 5.6%
Cumberland Associates, LLC(9) ... ...t 2,239,883 5.5%
All directors and executive officers as a group (9 individuals) ........... 13,191,857 2%

*  Lessthan 1%

(1) The outstanding shares of common stock used to determine the percentage of shares beneficially owned by
the designated stockholders do not include approximately 12,650,000 shares reserved for issuance upon the
exercise of outstanding warrants and 825,000 shares of our common stock issuable upon the exercise of
currently exercisable options to purchase 275,000 units, each unit consisting of one share of our common
stock and warrants to purchase two shares of our common stock, and an aggregate of 1,209,195 shares
reserved for issuance upon the exercise of options that may be granted by us or awards that may be made
under our 2006 Long-Term Incentive Plan.

(2) The business address of this person is 5100 E. Skelly Drive, Suite 650, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74135,

(3) Includes 500,000 shares owned by a family trust for the benefit of Mr. Lee’s family.

(4) Ms. Bowman’s business address is 3155 East 86th Street, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74137,

(5) These shares are held by Danish Knights, A Limited Partnership. Ms. Bowman beneficially owns 98.5% of
Danish Knights and is the custodian for a 1.3% interest owned by her minor child. Dannebrog Corporation,
the general partner of Danish Knights, owns the remaining 0.2% interest. Ms. Bowman is the president and
sole director of Dannebrog Corporation. Accordingly, Ms. Bowman exercises voting and dispositive power
over all shares held by Danish Knights.

(6) Mr. Lane’s business address is 520 Eighth Avenue, 7th Floor, New York, NY 10018.

(7) Inchudes currently exercisable warrants to purchase 5,500 shares of common stock.

(8) the business address is 600 Fifth Avenue, , 24th Floor, New York, NY 10020. Rockbay Capital
Management, LP, a Delaware limited partnership (the “Investment Manager™), is the investment manager
with respect to our common stock held by certain investment vehicles advised by the Investment Manager
(each a “Rockbay Fund). RCM Advisors, LLC, a Delaware limited liability company (the “General
Partner™), serves as the general partner of the Investment Manager, Mr, Atul Khanna is the Chief Executive
Officer, and Mr. Jonathan Baron is the Senior Managing Director, of the General Partner, and each has the
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power to exercise investment discretion over, and may be deemed to be the beneficial owner of, all of our
common stock owned by the Rockbay Funds. Each of the Investment Manager, the General Partner, and
Messrs. Khanna ancl Baron disclaim any beneficial ownership of any shares of our common stock.,

(9 The business address is 1114 Avenue of Americas, New York, NY 10036. Comberland Associates LLC is
engaged in the business of managing, on a discretionary basis, eight securities accounts, the principal one of
which is Cumberland Partners. Gary G. Tynes, Bruce G. Wilcox, Andrew M. Wallach, Lawrence M. Rifkin,
Barry A. Konig, Steven D. Morrow and Bradley H. Gendell are the members of Cumberland Associates
LLC.

CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Our by-laws require that no contract or other transaction shall be made or entered into between us and
(i) any of our directors or executive officers; (ii) any person known to be a beneficial owner of more than 5% of
any class of our voting securities (a “5% owner”); or (iii) any immediate family member of any director,
executive officer or 5% owner unless (y) the contract or transaction is on terms no less favorable to us than may
reasonably be available to us from an unaffiliated third party, and (z) if material in amount, is approved by vote
of a majority of our disinterested directors.

In October 2004, our subsidiary, RAM Energy, agreed to purchase from KCS Energy an interest in an
exploratory oil and gas prospect generated by KCS in the Arkoma Basin of Eastern Oklahoma, and to participate
in the drilling of the first well to be drilled on the prospect. RAM Energy acquired a 30.0% interest in prospect,
generally, and an additional 8.6% interest in the drill site section for the initial test well, In November 2004,
RAM Energy paid its 38.7% share in the estimated $1.2 million dry hole cost for the initial test well. In
connection with its participation in the prospect, RAM Energy agreed to allow certain of its senior executive
officers, managers, stockholders, an attorney and an independent geologist, to participate in the prospect for their
own account by purchasing an aggregate 5% interest in the prospect at the same price paid by RAM Energy to
KCS. Accepting participants included, among other officers and employees of RAM Energy, Messrs. Rampey
and Smiley, both senior vice presidents of RAM Energy, Mr. Lee, president, CEO and a 50% stockholder of
RAM Energy, and Dr. William W. Talley II, then Chairman of RAM Energy and principal owner of Danish
Knights, a 50% stockholder of RAM Energy. Other participants included Forrest Fischer, John R, Frick, Jr.,
Brandon Lee, Sivad Corp., an entity in which Tully Davis is a beneficial owner, and Richard Erickson. Messrs,
Fischer, Frick, Lee and Davis are non-officer employees of RAM Energy. In addition, David Stinson, an outside
attorney, and an independent geologist under contract with RAM Energy, also participated. In November 2004,
RAM Energy entered into a participation agreement with each of the participating parties pursvant to which such
parties agreed to participate in the prospect and pay their respective shares of the costs (including dry hole costs)
incurred in drilling and completing the initial well on the prospect and to subject their interests to an operating
agreement for the further development of the prospect. The participation agreements provided that in order to
facilitate billings, distribution of production revenues and other administrative matters, record title to the interests
acquired by the participants would be held by REPCO, LLC, a limited liability company formed and owned 50%
each by Mr. Lee and Danish Knights. REPCO was formed specifically for the purpose of holding title to the
interests of the participating parties in the prospect and to facilitate their participation. In December 2004, RAM
Energy assigned an undivided 5% interest in the prospect to REPCO, to hold as nominee for the participants, and
the participants were invoiced by REPCO for their respective shares of acreage and dry hole costs on the initial
test well. While REPCO is carried on the books of RAM Energy as the party liable for joint interest billings and
as the party entitled to receive production revenues attributable to the interests owned by the participating parties,
pursuant to the terms of the participation agreements, each participant is directly liable to RAM Energy for his
proportionate share of such costs and is entitled to his proportionate share of such revenues. At December 31,
2004, the participating parties were indebted to RAM Energy in the amount of $9,169 representing their
aggregate unpaid share of joint interest billings on the prospect. At December 31, 2005, the unpaid balance of
joint interest billings on the prospect attributable to the participants was $141,988. An additional well was drilled
on this prospect in 2006, and each of the original participants participated in that well through REPCO. At
December 31, 2006, no balance was owing to us by REPCO.

26




For the year ended December 31, 2006 our general and administrative expenses include an aggregate of
approximately $152,000 of expenses paid for the benefit of Larry Lee. Some of the expenses paid may have been
personal in nature. All of the above amounts paid for the benefit of Mr. Lee related to expenses incurred with
respect to periods ended prior to May 8, 2006, the date of our acquisition of RAM Energy, which was prior to the
time that Mr. Lee became one of our directors, officers and principal stockholders.

Prior to May 8, 2006, our corporate name was Tremisis Energy Acquisition Corporation, or Tremisis. On
May 8, 2006, we acquired RAM Energy through the merger of our wholly owned subsidiary into RAM Energy.
The merger was accomplished pursuant to the terms of a merger agreement dated October 20, 2005, as amended,
which is referred to as the merger agreement, among us, our acquisition subsidiary, RAM Energy, and the
stockholders of RAM Energy. Upon completion of the merger, RAM Energy became our wholly owned
subsidiary and we changed our name to RAM Energy Resources, Inc,

Upon consummation of the merger, the stockholders of RAM Energy received an aggregate of 25,600,000
shares of our common stock and $30.0 million of cash. Mr. Lee received an aggregate of 12,555,187 shares of
our common stock and $14.7 million in cash, and Danish Knights, A Limited Partnership, another of the
principal stockholders of RAM Energy, received an aggregate of 12,555,187 shares of our common stock and
$14.7 million in cash. Prior to consummation of the merger, and as permitted by the merger agreement, on
April 6, 2006, RAM Energy repurchased a portion of its outstanding stock for an aggregate consideration of
$10.0 million, of which Mr. Lee and Danish Knights each received $3.7 million.

The merger was accounted for as a reverse acquisition. For financial accounting and reporting purposes,
RAM Energy was treated as the acquiring company and the continuing reporting entity, Upon completion of the
merger, our assets and liabilities were recorded at their fair value, which is considered to approximate historical
cost, and added to those of RAM Energy. Because we had no active business operations prior to consummation
of the merger, the merger was accounted for as a recapitalization of RAM Energy.

On May 8, 2006, in conjunction with the consummation of the merger, we entered into a registration rights
agreement with the former stockholders of RAM Energy under which we agreed to provide them with demand
and “piggyback™ registration rights with respect to our shares of common stock which they received in the
merger.

We have and will continue to reimburse our officers and directors for any reasonable out-of-pocket business
expenses incurred by them in connection with certain activities on our behalf, such as identifying and
investigating possible target businesses and business combinations. Since May 8, 2006, we have not, and we will
not in the future, make personal loans to our officers, directors or stockholders owning five percent or more of
our common stock.

OTHER INFORMATION

Availability of Form 10-K and Annual Report to Stockholders

We are required to provide an annual report to our stockholders who receive this proxy statement. We will
also provide copies of the annual report to brokers, dealers, banks, voting trustees and their nominees for the
benefit of their beneficial owners of record. Additional copies of the annual report to our stockholders, are
available without charge to our stockholders upon written request to our Corporate Secretary. You may review
our filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission by visiting our website at http.//iwww. ramenergy.com.

Shareholder Proposals for 2008

Our 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders is expected to be held on or about June 12, 2008, and proxy
materials in connection with that meeting are expected to be mailed on or about May 22, 2008. In order to be

27




included in our proxy materials for our 2008 Annual Meeting, we must receive stockholder proposals prepared in
accordance with the proxy rules on or before January 21, 2008,

Any such proposal should be addressed to the Secretary, RAM Energy Resources, Inc., 5100 East Skelly
Drive, Suite 650, Tulsa, Oklahoma 74135. Upon receipt of any such proposal, we will determine whether or not
to include such proposal in the proxy statement for our 2008 Annual Meeting of Stockholders in accordance with
applicable law. We suggest that such proposals be sent by certified mail, return receipt requested.

If we receive notice after April 7, 2008 of any proposal which a stockholder intends to present at our 2008
Annual Meeting, then under the proxy rules, the persons named in the proxy solicited by our Board of Directors
for our 2008 Annual Meeting may exercise discretionary voting with respect to such proposal.

In addition, our by-laws currently provide that in order for a stockholder to properly bring business before
an annual meeting, the stockholder must have given timely notice of such proposed business in a writing
delivered to our corporate Secretary not less than sixty (60) nor more than ninety (90) days prior to the meeting.
If we mail or otherwise provide notice, or public disclosure, of the date of our annual meeting on a date that is
less that seventy (70} days prior to the date of the annual meeting, the stockholder’s notice that he or she
proposes to bring business before the annual meeting must be received by us no later than the tenth business day
following the day on which our notice of the annual meeting was mailed, or public disclosure was made,
whichever event first occurs.

General

We know of no matters to be presented at our 2007 Annual Meeting other than those inciuded in the Notice.
Should any other matter requiring a vote of stockholders arise, including a question of adjourning the meeting,
the persons named in the accompanying proxy will vote thereon according to their best judgment in what they
consider our best interests. The enclosed proxy confers discretionary authority to take action with respect to any
additional matters that may come before the meeting.

It is important that your stock be represented at the meeting regardless of the number of shares you hold.
Whether or not you plan to attend, please sign, date and return the enclosed proxy promptly. For your

convenience, a return envelope is enclosed requiring no additional postage if mailed within the United States.

BY ORDER CF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

John L. Cox
Secretary

Tulsa Oklahoma
May 22, 2007

28




Directors
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Chairman of the Board, President,
Chief Executive Officer and Director

Senior Vice President and
Chief Financial Officer

Senior Vice President Operations
Senior Vice President Land and Exploration
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Vice President Corporate Development

Governance
Documents

In accordance with responsible management
practices, the following RAM Energy Resources,
Inc. documents are available online for down-
load and review at www.ramenergy.com

Code of Ethics

Insider Trading Policy and Guidelines
with Respect to Certain Transactions
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“In the volatile energy sector, the strong history of RAM Energy, Inc. is testament

to the succﬁess of our vision and the soundness of our business proposition:
the acquisition, exploration, exploitation and development of oil and natural gas

properties and the production of oil and natural gas.”
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